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PART |

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains “forwaodking statementsiithin the meaning of Section 27A of the Securitied
of 1934 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchahegteof 1934. These include statements relatinglamg prospects, goc
strategies, future actions, events or performandeosher statements which are other than stateméhistorical fact. In additio
all statements regarding anticipated growth inrevenue, anticipated effects of any product recafiticipated market conditio
planned product launches and expected results efabpns and integration of any acquisition arevéodiooking. To identify
these statements look for words like “believes,)gects,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “could,” “seeks,” “intends,” “plans,”
“estimates” or “anticipates” and similar words drrases. Forwartboking statements necessarily depend on assunsptifata ¢
methods that may be incorrect or imprecise andalgect to risks and uncertainties. Among the facdtioat could cause our act
results and future actions to differ materiallynfrthose described in forward-looking statements are

”ou L] ”ou ”ow

. Adverse changes in global or regional general lssinpolitical and economic conditions due to theremt globe
economic downturn, including the impact of contimuuncertainty and instability of certain Europé&arion countries th:
could adversely affect our global markets.

. Foreign currency exchange rate and interest ratguthtions including the risk of fluctuations irethalue of the ye
pound and euro that would decrease our revenuesanahgs.

. Acquisitionfelated adverse effects including the failure tacsssfully obtain the anticipated revenues, margine
earnings benefits of acquisitions, including theiffsam acquisition; integration delays or costs dhd requirement
record significant adjustments to the preliminagir fvalue of assets acquired and liabilities assluméthin the
measurement period, required regulatory approwalsaf acquisition not being obtained or being detiagr subject |
conditions that are not anticipated, adverse ingpatthanges to accounting controls and reportioggaures, continge
liabilities or indemnification obligations, incress leverage and lack of access to available fimgn@ncluding financin
for the acquisition or refinancing of debt owedusyon a timely basis and on reasonable terms).

. A major disruption in the operations of our mantf@ing, research and development or distributiozilifees, due t
technological problems, including any related to imflormation systems maintenance or enhancemeatsral disaste
or other causes.

. Disruptions in supplies of raw materials, particly@omponents used to manufacture our siliconadyel lense:

. Compliance costs and potential liability in conmaetwith U.S. and foreign healthcare regulatiomssluding produc
recalls, warning letters and potential losses tiggufrom sales of counterfeit and other infringippducts.

. Legal costs, insurance expenses, settlement codtdhe risk of an adverse decision or settlemelattee@ to produt
liability, patent infringement or other litigation.

. Changes in tax laws or their interpretation anchgea in statutory tax rat

. Limitations on sales following product introductsdue to poor market acceptal

. New competitors, product innovations or technols.

. Reduced sales, loss of customers and costs andsegeelated to reca

3
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New U.S. and foreign government laws and regulatiand changes in existing laws, regulations arfdregmen
guidance, which affect the medical device induatrgl the healthcare industry generally.

Failure to receive, or delays in receiving, U.Sfaveign regulatory approvals for produ
Failure to obtain adequate coverage and reimbursiinoen third party payors for our produt

The requirement to provide for a significant lidtgilor to write off, or accelerate depreciation @nsignificant asse
including goodwill.

The success of our research and developmenttiastiand other starp projects

Dilution to earnings per share from the Sauflonudgition or other acquisitions or issuing stc
Changes in accounting principles or estim;

Environmental risk:

Other events described in our Securities anch&xge Commission filings, including the “Businessitl “Risk Factors”
sections in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for ftsgal year ended October 31, 2014s such Risk Factors may
updated in quarterly filings.

We caution investors that forwaldeking statements reflect our analysis only orrtbted date. We disclaim any intent to up
them except as required by law.
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Item 1. Business

The Cooper Companies, Inc. (Cooper, we or the Cag)pa Delaware corporation organized in 1980, gdodoal medical devic
company publicly traded on the NYSE Euronext (NYSBXO). Cooper is dedicated to being A Quality deLlCompany™ with &
focus on shareholder value. Cooper operates througlbusiness units, CooperVision, Inc. and CoopsgiSal, Inc.

CooperVision is a global manufacturer providing durcts for contact lens wearers. CooperVision degglananufactures a
markets a broad range of single-use, timaek and monthly contact lenses, featuring advandrials and optics. CooperVisic
products are designed to solve vision challengeb as astigmatism, presbyopia and ocular drynetls; avbroad collection
spherical, toric and multifocal contact lenses. @o¥ision's products are primarily manufactureditatfacilities located i
Hampshire, United Kingdom, Juana Diaz, Puerto RBudapest, Hungary and Scottsville, New York. Cao®jmon distribute
products from West Henrietta, New York, Fareham,itéth Kingdom, Liege, Belgium, and various smalleternatione
distribution facilities.

CooperSurgical focuses on supplying women's heditiicians with products and treatment options rgiiove the delivery
healthcare to women. CooperSurgical's primary ¢ivges include internal growth and growth througlyaisitions to expand |
core businesses and the introduction of advanadthtdogybased products to aid clinicians in the managemedttreatment
commonly seen conditions. CooperSurgical custonaeeshealthcare professionals and institutions piogi care to and fi
women. CooperSurgical products support the pointhedithcare delivery in the hospital, clinicianfice and fertility clinics
CooperSurgical's major manufacturing and distrdoufacilities are located in Trumbull, Connectiduialov, Denmark, Pasade
California, Stafford, Texas, and Berlin, Germany.

CooperVision and CooperSurgical each operate ihlyiigompetitive environments. Competition in thedieal device indust
involves the search for technological and therdapenhovations. Both of Cooper's businesses competearily on the basis
product quality and differentiation, technologibainefit, service and reliability.

COOPERVISION

CooperVision competes in the worldwide soft contiects market and services three primary regions: Americas, EME,
(Europe, Middle East and Africa) and Asia Pacifibe contact lens market has two major product categ;

» Spherical lenses including lenses that correat+and farsightedness uncomplicated by more compkuabidefect:

» Toric and multifocal lenses including lensesttha addition to correcting neaand farsightedness, address more con
visual defects such as astigmatism and presbyopiadaing optical properties of cylinder and axishiah correct fc
irregularities in the shape of the cornea.

In order to achieve comfortable and healthy contert wear, products are sold with recommendedcepient schedules, of
defined as modalities, with the primary modalitiesng single-use, two-week and monthly.

CooperVision offers spherical, aspherical, torigftifocal and toric multifocal lens products in masodalities. We believe that
order to compete successfully in the numerous sictfieghe contact lens market, companies must difearentiated products tt
are priced competitively and manufactured
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efficiently. CooperVision believes that it is thalp contact lens manufacturer to use three differeanufacturing processes
produce its lenses: lathing, cast molding and FIP&®bsteffective combination of lathing and molding. Weabelieve that tt
manufacturing processes acquired in connection thighSauflon acquisition will be of value to usthese new platforms a
processes may add greater flexibility and reduoe tio market of our combined product offerings.sTinicreased manufacturi
flexibility should allow CooperVision to competeiils markets by:

* Producing high, medium and low volumes of lenseslanaith a variety of materials for a broader ranfienarket niche:
single-use, twaweek, monthly and quarterly disposable sphereg tomd multifocal lenses and custom toric lensepédient:
with a high degree of astigmatism.

» Offering a wide range of lens parameters, leading higher rate of successful fitting for practiéos and better visual act
for patients.

Sales of contact lenses utilizing silicone hydrogeiterials, a major product material in the indyskrave grown significantl
Silicone hydrogel materials supply a higher leviebxygen to the cornea, as measured by the trasfntity of oxygen through
given thickness of material, or “dk/tthan traditional hydrogel lenses. We believe oulitglio compete successfully with a f
range of silicone hydrogel products is an imporfactor to achieving our desired future levels ales growth and profitabilit
Silicone hydrogel lenses now represent a signifigeortion of CooperVision's contact lens sales and Biofinity® brand i
CooperVision's leading product line. Under the Biiby brand, CooperVision markets monthly silicamgdrogel spherical, tor
and multifocal lens products. CooperVision has #ésmched twoweek silicone hydrogel spherical and toric lensdpais unde
our Avaira® brand. In fiscal 2013, we launched MyD4, our single-use spherical silicone hydrogel lém&urope.

We believe that the global market for single-usetact lenses will continue to grow, that competitsilicone hydrogel singlase
lens products are gaining market share and thgtrépresent a risk to our business. To meet thisipated demand, we plan
launch MyDay in more geographical regions, suckhasUnited States during fiscal 2015, and to camtithe implementation
capital projects to invest in increased singletus@ufacturing capacity.

Consistent with this strategy, on August 6, 2014, c@mpleted the acquisition of Sauflon Pharmacalsticimited (Sauflon),
privately-held European manufacturer and distributor of sofitact lenses and aftercare solutions. The atignisdf Sauflol
expands our contact lens product portfolio partidylwith Sauflon's clariti® 1day brand of singlee sphere, toric and multifo
silicone hydrogel lenses. Clariti lenses receiveattddl States FDA clearance in August 2013. Sauoheadquartered in t
United Kingdom and has a global presence with nmastufing facilities in the United Kingdom and HungaThe Sauflo
acquisition is intended to accelerate the growthadés of our single-use products by enabling ditnieit, Singleuse strategy wi
a full suite of hydrogel and silicone hydrogel puot offerings in the major product categories dfese, toric and multifoc
lenses. This acquisition is also intended to previ an enhanced relationship with key Europesailees and opportunities 1
operational synergies.

In addition, CooperVision lenses compete based wviging superior comfort through the use of lerdge technolog
CooperVision lenses have a round to partial roushgeenhich we believe increases comfort. Cooper¥isi®roclear&line of
spherical, toric and multifocal lenses are manuiact with omafilcon, a material that incorporatdsogphorylcholine (P(
Technology™ that helps enhance tissieeice compatibility. Proclear lenses are the dehges with FDA clearance for the cli
"... may provide improved comfort for contact lens weanho experience mild discomfort or symptoms netato drynes
during lens wear." Mild discomfort relating to degs during lens wear is a condition that often esumatients to discontin
contact lens wear.
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In addition to its PC Technology™ and silicone togkl product offerings, CooperVision competes mdbntact lens market w
our traditional hydrogel products.

Contact Lens Product Sales

Fheres: Net sales of CooperVision's spherical lenses repted 56 percent of CooperVision's net sales galfi2014 includin
net sales of single-use spherical lens that reptede®2 percent of net sales in the fiscal year.

Toric and Multifocal: Net sales of CooperVision's toric lenses represke8iepercent of CooperVision's net sales in fiRtH4
Net sales of multifocal lenses represented 11 peafenet sales in the fiscal ye

Proclear: Net sales of CooperVision's PC Technology productghich consist of spherical, toric and multifocalogucts
including Biomedics® XC and Proclear® 1 Day - reqameted 24 percent of CooperVision's net salesgafi2014.

Slicone Hydrogel: CooperVision's silicone hydrogel spherical, tomd anultifocal lens products, including Sauflon‘aritl lense
in the fiscal fourth quarter of 2014 and not ircdk2013, represented 49 percent of CooperVisioetssales as compared tc
percent in fiscal 2013.

CooperVision Competition

The contact lens market is highly competitive. Gadfision's three largest competitors in the worltlvmarket and its prime
competitors in the spherical, toric and multifotsals categories of that market are Johnson & Johk$sion Care, Inc., CIB.
Vision owned by Novartis AG and Bausch & Lomb Inmorated owned by Valeant Pharmaceuticals Intennaltionc.

Over the past decade, the contact lens industryekparienced a global shift toward silicone hydidgeses that now repres
approximately 50% of the global contact lens mark&operVision's primary competitors control thejority of the silicon
hydrogel segment of the market. CooperVision coegpgt the silicone hydrogel segment of the mark#t aur Biofinity monthly
spherical, toric and multifocal lenses, Avaira tweek spherical and toric lenses and MyDay single-spherical lenses. !
believe that the addition of Sauflon's clariti 1dagnd of singlaise sphere, toric and multifocal lenses providesp@oVision witt
the broadest product portfolio in the single-usiemie hydrogel market.

In the toric lens market, a similar shift towarticsine hydrogel lenses has occurred, but we belieakelens manufacturers a
continue to compete to provide the highest possédel of visual acuity and patient satisfactiondffering a wide range of le
parameters, superior wearing comfort and a higlell@¥ customer service, both for patients and atintens practitioner
CooperVision competes based on its three manufagtyrocesses, including manufacturing processesntly acquired wit
Sauflon, yielding wider ranges of toric lens parter® providing wide choices for patient and ptamier and superior vist
acuity, as well as by offering excellent custom@wige, including high standards of on-time prodisiivery.

CooperVision's primary competitors have greatedrimal resources and larger research and develdgudgets and sales forc
CooperVision seeks to offer a high level of custos®rvice through its direct sales organizatiormaiad the world and throu
telephone sales and technical service represesgato consult with eye care professionals abaiugie of the Company's l¢
products.
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CooperVision also competes with manufacturers efgiysses and with refractive surgical procedurasdbrrect visual defec
CooperVision believes that its contact lenses edghttinue to compete favorably against eyeglasségtaere are opportunities
contact lenses to gain market share, particulartparkets where the penetration of contact lemsései vision correction market
low. CooperVision also believes that laser visiomrection is not a significant threat to its salésontact lenses.

COOPERSURGICAL

CooperSurgical offers a broad array of productdusethe care and treatment of women. The Companticppates in th
women's healthcare market through offering quagirtyducts, innovative technologies and superioriserto clinicians worldwidt
CooperSurgical collaborates with clinicians to igfgnproducts and new technologies from disposaisteducts to sophisticat
instruments and equipment. The result is a broatigtio of products that aid in the delivery of imgwed clinical outcomes tr
healthcare professionals use routinely in the diagnand treatment of a wide spectrum of womeratthhéssues.

Since its inception in 1990, CooperSurgical haaditg grown its market presence and distributiostem by developing produ
and acquiring products and companies that compleitsgousiness model.

CooperSurgical competes in the globalvitrte fertilization (IVF) market with a product pbolio of IVF media and assist
reproductive technology (ART) solutions that enteatite work of fertility professionals to the benefi families. In July 201
CooperSurgical acquired Origio to form a combinegdival device company that develops, manufactundsdéstributes highl
specialized products that target IVF treatment witipal to make fertility treatment safer, moréceght and convenient.

Market for Women's Healthcare

CooperSurgical participates in the market for woméealthcare with its diversified product linegdlinee major categories ba
on the point of healthcare delivery: hospitals andgical centers, obstetricians and gynecolog@égyns) medical offices a
fertility clinics.

CooperSurgical expects patient visits to ob/gynshe United States to increase over the next dedadeng this growth is
steady number of reproductive age women with irginggfertility issues, a large and stable midadgd population and a grow
population of women over the age of 65 accordirggUWinited States Census estimates. CooperSurgipatexgrowth in fertilit
treatments as more women choose to delay childigetoithe micthirties and beyond. Office visit activity relattml menopaus
problems, including abnormal bleeding, incontineand osteoporosis, are also expected to incremgtelglover the next decac
CooperSurgical believes that in the past clinicigrismarily saw women only during their reproductiyears. Now, with ne
treatment options available and a more educatedlgign, CooperSurgical expects the relationshifwben the patient a
clinician will continue into the middle years araddr.

Another trend in the market for women's healthdamudes the migration of ob/gyn clinicians awapnfr private practic
ownership and toward aligning with group practioegmployment with hospitals and healthcare systdinis trend includes tl
increasing influence of supply chain controls, swsh value analysis committees, on product evaluatiod procuremel
CooperSurgical believes that the market factorsatedriving this trend will continue in the neéarm.

The response in the United States market to therédible Care Act (ACA) includes the developmem@iv models of healthce
delivery. One goal of these new models is to delimere coskffective healthcare including a trend to move tirest out ¢
hospitals and surgery centers and into the offaténg without compromising care. We expect thentt to continue in the ne
term.
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While general medical practitioners play an impatt@le in women's primary care, the ob/gyn spétié the primary market f
CooperSugical's medical devices.

Some significant features of this market are:

» Patient visits are for annual checkups, canceresang, menstrual disorders, vaginitis (inflammatioh vaginal tissue
treatment of abnormal Pap smears, osteoporosiadtied in bone mass) and the management of menepptegnancy al
reproductive management.

* We estimate that approximately othérd of the office visits to ob/gyns are patiesteking diagnosis and treatment for
symptoms of abnormal uterine bleeding.

* Ob/gyns traditionally provide the initial evaluatidor women and their partners who seek infertiissistance. Ovulatc
drugs and intrauterine insemination (IUl) are comrtreatments in these cases along with embryofeapsocedures.

* IVF is performed by reproductive endocrinologistsubgroup of ob/gyns, along with partner embryists:

» Osteoporosis and incontinence have become freqiiaghoses as the female population ages. Earlytifidation anc
treatment of these conditions will both improve vems health and help reduce overall costs of treattm

» Sterilization is a frequently performed surgicabqgadure

* Hysterectomy, one of the most commonly performedyisal procedures, is increasingly performed usintaparoscop
approach.

» The trend to move hospitbhsed procedures to an office or clinical settmg@adntinuing as a method to reduce cost ti
healthcare system while maintaining positive chhicutcomes.

Woman's Healthcare Product Sales

Net sales of CooperSurgical products used in offind surgical procedures, representing 65% of Q&uypgical's net sale
decreased 1% in fiscal 2014 as compared to figehB.2Net sales of fertility products, represent®®§o of CooperSurgical's r
sales, grew 7% in fiscal 2014 as compared to fi20aB.

CooperSurgical Competition

CooperSurgical focuses on selected segments ofvtdmen's healthcare market, supplying diagnostidyets and surgic
instruments and accessories. In some instancespe€®urgical offers all of the items needed for anplete procedur
CooperSurgical believes that opportunities exist dontinued market consolidation of smaller tecbggidriven firms the
generally offer only one or two product lines. Mas¢ privately owned or divisions of public commnincluding some owned
companies with greater financial resources tharp€ono

Competitive factors in these segments include teldgical and scientific advances, product qualitsice, customer service &
effective communication of product information taygicians, fertility clinics and hospitals. Cooper§ical competes based on
sales and marketing expertise and the technological
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advantages of our products. CooperSurgical's gyyateludes developing and acquiring new produntduding those used in n
medical procedures. As CooperSurgical expands mgugt line, we also offer educational programsnfadical professionals
the appropriate use of our products.

CooperSurgical is seeking to expand our presendeeisignificantly larger hospital and outpatiemtgscal procedure segment
the market that is at present dominated by biggenpetitors such as Johnson & Johnson's Ethicon -Bodgery, Bostc
Scientific, Gyrus ACMI and Covidien. These compmtthave welkestablished positions within the operating roomiremment
CooperSurgical intends to leverage our relationshith gynecologic surgeons and focus on devicesiipgo gynecologi
surgery to facilitate our expansion within the scagsegment of the market.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Cooper employs about 250 people in our researchdamdlopment and manufacturing engineering depatsnélost of thes
employees are in CooperVision. CooperVision prodietelopment and clinical research is supportedntgrnal and extern
specialists in lens design, formulation sciencdyrper chemistry, clinical trials, microbiology afmochemistry. CooperVisior
research and development activities primarily idelyrograms to develop new contact lens designsgakaith improving
formulations and manufacturing processes.

CooperSurgical conducts research and developmehbuse and also has consulting agreements with nattespecialist:
CooperSurgical's research and development actvitielude the design and improvement of surgicalc@dure devices, t
advancement and expansion of CooperSurgical'sgtiortsif assisted reproductive technology produassyvell as products witr
the general obstetrics and gynecology offerings.

Coopersponsored research and development expendituregdiscal 2014, 2013 and 2012 were $66.3 milli®58.8 million an
$51.7 million, respectively. Research and develagregpenditures represented 4 percent of net safecal 2012 2014. Durin
fiscal 2014, CooperVision represented 79 percedtG@GwoperSurgical represented 21 percent of théregaarch and developm
expenses, the same as fiscal 2013. We did nocipati in any customesponsored research and development programs
fiscal 2012 - 2014.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION
Medical Device Regulatiol

Our products are medical devices subject to extengigulation by the United States Food and Drughificstration (FDA) in th
United States and other regulatory bodies abro&A Fegulations govern, among other things, medwevice design ar
development, testing, manufacturing, labeling,aler recordkeeping, premarket clearance or appraghaértising and promotic
and sales and distribution. Unless an exemptiotieppeach medical device we wish to distribute wwrcially in the Unite
States will require either prior 510(k) clearaneepdor premarket approval (PMA) from the FDA. A joidty of the medice
devices we currently market have received FDA deee through the 510(k) process or approval thrahghPMA proces
Because we cannot be assured that any new progaatgvelop, or any product enhancements, will ligesti to the shorter 510
(k) clearance process, significant delays in tiwd@uction of any new products or product enhancegsumay occur.

10
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Device Classification

The FDA classifies medical devices into one of ¢hctasses - Class I, 1l or llldepending on the degree of risk associated
each medical device and the extent of control neéalensure its safety and effectiveness. Both €ddpion and CooperSurgic
develop and market medical devices under diffel@rels of FDA regulation depending on the clasatfin of the device. Cla
Il devices, such as flexible and extended weatawirienses, require extensive premarket testidgagproval, while Class | a
Il devices require lower levels of regulation. Thajority of CooperSurgical's products are ClagieNices.

Class | devices are those for which safety andcci¥ieness can be assured by adherence to the feA&ral regulatory contre
for medical devices, which include compliance witie applicable portions of the FDA's Quality SystBmagulation, facilit
registration and product listing, reporting of acbee medical events, and appropriate, truthful and-misleading labelin
advertising, and promotional materials (General tts). Some Class | devices also require prematlegtrance by the FLC
through the 510(k) premarket notification processatdibed below.

Class Il devices are subject to the FDA's Genemldt®ls, and any other special controls as deemeedssary by the FDA
ensure the safety and effectiveness of the deRiamarket review and clearance by the FDA for Alladsvices is accomplish
through the 510(k) premarket notification procedwarsuant to the Medical Device User Fee and Mudation Act of 200
(MDUFMA), unless a specific exemption applies, 3 Qfremarket notification submissions are subjeaiger fees. Certain Cl
Il devices are exempt from this premarket revieacpss.

Class Ill devices are those devices which havevaineended use, or use advanced technology thadtisubstantially equivale
to that of a legally marketed device. The safetyl affectiveness of Class IIl devices cannot be rassgolely by the Gene
Controls and the other requirements described abliwese devices almost always require formal dingtudies to demonstr:
safety and effectiveness and must be approved ghroloe premarket approval process described beRremarket approv
applications (and supplemental premarket apprgsaliGations) are subject to significantly higheeufees under MDUFMA the
are 510(k) premarket notifications.

510(k) Clearance Pathway

When we are required to obtain a 510(k) clearaoce device that we wish to market, we must sulanptemarket notification
the FDA demonstrating that the device is substinteguivalent to a previously cleared 510(k) devir a device that was
commercial distribution before May 28, 1976, forigththe FDA has not yet called for the submissiérp@market approv
applications. By regulation, the FDA is requiredd¢spond to a 510(k) premarket notification witBh days of submission of 1
notification. As a practical matter, clearance talee significantly longer. If the FDA determinesthhe device, or its intend
use, is not substantially equivalent to a previpuastared device or use, the FDA will place the deyvar the particular use of
device, into Class Ill.

After a device receives 510(k) clearance, any nigatibn that could significantly affect its safaiy effectiveness, or that chan
its intended use, will require a new 510(k) cleasaor could require premarket approval. The FDAIe$ each manufacturer
make this determination initially, but the FDA caaview any such decision and can disagree with ufaaturer's determinatic
If the FDA disagrees with a manufacturer's deteatnom that a new clearance or approval is not requfor a particule
modification, the FDA can require the manufactucecease marketing and/or recall the modified dewictil 510(k) clearance
premarket approval is obtained. In these circuntetsra manufacturer also may be subject to
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significant regulatory fines or penalties. We hawade and plan to continue to make additional prodmbhancements a
modifications to our devices that we believe doneguire new 510(k) clearances.

Premarket Approval Pathway

A PMA application must be submitted if the devi@eot be cleared through the 510(k) premarketioatibn procedures. T
PMA process is much more demanding than the 5Jf¥arket notification process. A PMA applicationshbe supported
extensive data including, but not limited to, teichh preclinical, clinical trials, manufacturingié labeling to demonstrate to
FDA's satisfaction the safety and effectiveneghefdevice for its intended use.

After a PMA application is complete, the FDA begars indepth review of the submitted information. The F, statute ar
regulation, has 180 days to review an accepted RBI#lication, although the review generally occurera significantly longe
period of time, and can take up to several yeausin this review period, the FDA may request daddal information, includin
clinical data, or clarification of information alidy provided. Also during the review period, aniadry panel of experts frc
outside the FDA may be convened to review and ewalthe application and provide recommendationthéoFDA as to tr
approvability of the device. In addition, the FDAllveonduct a preapproval inspection of the mantufeng facility to ensur
compliance with the Quality System Regulation (QI®w PMA applications or PMA application suppleriseare required fi
significant modifications to the manufacturing pges, labeling and design of a device that is aggrdlarough the premarl
approval process. Premarket approval supplememés aéquire submission of the same type of infoionats a premark
approval application, except that the supplemeiitniged to information needed to support any chemfrom the device cover
by the original premarket approval application, andy not require as extensive clinical data ordbevening of an advisc
panel.

Clinical Trials

A clinical trial is almost always required to supp@a PMA application and is sometimes required do610(k) premark
notification. These trials generally require sulsitia of an application for an investigational devexemption (IDE) to the FD.
The IDE application must be supported by approprta, such as animal and laboratory testingtsesllowing that the potent
benefits of testing the device in humans outweitites risks and that the testing protocol is sciewtify sound. The ID
application must be approved in advance by the F@xAa specified number of patients, unless the ypecbds deemed a non-
significant risk device and eligible for more abbated investigational device exemption requireraei@tlinical trials for
significant risk device may begin once the IDE &ailon is approved by both the FDA and the appaberinstitutional revie!
boards at the clinical trial sites. All of Coopecsarrently marketed products have been clearedllbgppropriate regulato
agencies, and Cooper has no product currently beargeted under an IDE.

Continuing FDA Regulation

After a device is placed on the market, numeroupiledory requirements apply. These include: the Q®Rich require
manufacturers to follow design, testing, contralcuimentation and other quality assurance procedlurgsg the manufacturil
process; labeling regulations, which prohibit threnpotion of products for unapproved or “off-labalses and impose otl
restrictions on labeling; new FDA unique devicenidfger legislation that requires changes to lamgliand packaging; t
Physician Payments Sunshine Act, which requiresdperting of certain payments to health care gracers; and medical devi
reporting regulations, which require that manufeartsi report to the FDA if their device may havesalior contributed to a de
or serious injury or malfunctioned in a way thatuleblikely cause or contribute to a death or

12




THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

serious injury if it were to recur. The FDA has &opostmarket and regulatory enforcement powers. We algesu tc
unannounced inspections by the FDA to determinecompliance with the QSR and other regulations.

Failure to comply with applicable regulatory re@mirents can result in enforcement action by the Ritfich may include any
the following sanctions: fines, injunctions andilcpenalties; recall, seizure or import holds of puoducts; operating restrictio
suspension of production; refusing our requestid(k) clearance or premarket approval of new petsjwithdrawing 510(}
clearance or premarket approvals that are alressdytep and criminal prosecution.

Even if regulatory approval or clearance of a maldievice is granted, the FDA may impose limitasian restrictions on the u
and indications for which the device may be labeded promoted. Medical devices may be marketed @orlythe uses ar
indications for which they are cleared or approvEDA regulations prohibit a manufacturer from prdimg a device for
unapproved or “off-label” use. Failure to complythwthis prohibition on “off-labelpromotion can result in enforcement actiol
the FDA, including, among other things, warningdeg, fines, injunctions, consent decrees and aiviriminal penalties.

Foreign Regulation

Health authorities in foreign countries regulateo@er's clinical trials and medical device sales Tdégulations vary widely fro
country to country. Even if the FDA has approvegraeduct, the regulatory agencies in each countrgtrapprove new produ
before they may be marketed there. The worldwidelitéd Device regulations are increasing, with maoyntries becomir
regulated for the first time. For example, Hong Band Singapore are now regulated and followingGlabal Harmonizatic
Task Force model for regulating medical devicesesEhemerging regulated countries require the sagoeous safety da
compiled in preelinical and clinical studies for the rest of thend. Japan has one of the most rigorous regulatgsyems in tt
world and requires igountry clinical trials. The Japanese quality aedufatory standards remain stringent even withntiogee
recent harmonization efforts and updated Japamggdations. China is also updating its regulatiand is requiring rigorous in-
country product testing.

These regulatory procedures require a considefalkstment in time and resources and usually resu#t substantial del:
between new product development and marketindhdf@Gompany does not maintain compliance with régnjestandards or
problems occur after marketing, product approvay bewithdrawn.

In addition to FDA regulatory requirements, Cooglsio maintains ISO 13485 certification and CE nagfrovals for its produc
A CE mark is an international symbol of adheremcedrtain standards and compliance with applic&bi®pean medical devi
requirements. These quality programs and approassrequired by the European Medical Device Divectand must L
maintained for all products intended to be solthim European market. The 1SO 13485 Quality Measengi8ystem registration
now also required for registration of products isidAPacific and Latin American countries. In ortiemmaintain these qual
benchmarks, the Company is subjected to rigorcasnbial reassessment audits of its quality systechgecedures.

Other Health Care Regulation

We may be subject to various federal, state areignrlaws pertaining to healthcare fraud and akinskjding antikickback law:
and physician selfeferral laws, and laws pertaining to healthcaregoy and security. Violations of these laws areighiable b
criminal and civil sanctions, including, in somestinces, exclusion from participation in federad atate healthcare progral
including Medicare, Medicaid, Veterans
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Administration health programs and TRICARE. Simlaf the physicians or other providers or entitigish whom we do busine
are found to be noncompliant with applicable lathey may be subject to sanctions, which could aully have a negative imp:
on our business, financial conditions and resultsperations. While we believe that our operatiaresin material compliance w
such laws, as applicable to us, because of the leangmd farreaching nature of these laws, there can be noaasse that w
would not be required to alter one or more of aacpices to be in compliance with these laws.

The impact to our businesses of the United St&esient Protection and Affordable Care Act (Affdotea Care Act or ACA
provisions related to coverage expansion, paynefatms and delivery system changes remains unoefithe ACA imposes a z
percent excise tax, with limited exceptions, on anyty that manufactures or imports Class |, il #ihmedical devices offered f
sale in the United States that began on Janua@113. CooperVision's products are not subject tdx because contact len
are excluded from the tax. However, United Staédsssof CooperSurgical's products are subjectitotéix which is recorded
selling, general and administrative expense orstatgement of Income.

In addition, the federal government, as part ofAR&\, as well as certain state governments haveteddaws aimed at increas
transparency in relationships between medical @eemmpanies and healthcare professionals. We averequired by law t
report many types of payments made and items ofevatovided to licensed healthcare professionaladdition, certain foreig
jurisdictions are currently acting to implement ga&n laws. Failure to adhere to our policies, coynplith required laws (
implement adequate policies and practices to addarfegnges to legal and regulatory requirementsda@glult in sanctions such
fines, injunctions and civil penalties.

RAW MATERIALS

CooperVision's raw materials primarily consist afieus chemicals and packaging materials and arerghy available from mo
than one source. However, CooperVision relies da sappliers for certain raw materials used to maige silicone hydrog:
contact lens products. If current raw material $iepp fail to supply sufficient materials on a tilpmdasis or at all for any reas
we may suffer a disruption in the supply of ouicsihe hydrogel contact lens products.

Raw materials used by CooperSurgical are geneealgilable from more than one source. However, bexaome produc
require specialized manufacturing procedures, wedcexperience inventory shortages if we were meguto use an alternati
supplier on short notice.

MARKETING AND DISTRIBUTION

CooperVision markets our products in the UnitedteStahrough our field sales representatives, whb ara optometrist:
ophthalmologists, opticians, optical chains andritistors. CooperVision augments our United Statdes and marketing effo
with ecommerce, telemarketing, social media and advegtiga professional journals. In the EMEA and Asiac#lc regions
CooperVision primarily markets our products througir field sales representatives. In other coustrigooperVision us
distributors and has given some of them the exadusght to market our products within specific geaphic areas.

CooperSurgical's products are marketed by a netebdedicated field sales representatives, indegatnagents and distributc
In the United States, CooperSurgical augments @lessand marketing activities by participating ational and regional indus
tradeshows, professional educational programs atatnet promotions including-eommerce, social media and collabore
efforts with professional organizations, telemarigt direct mail and advertising in professionalirjeals. Fertility products a
marketed globally through our field sales represtargs and distributors.
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PATENTS, TRADEMARKS AND LICENSING AGREEMENTS

Cooper owns or licenses a variety of domestic aneign patents, which, in total, are material to owerall business. The nan
of certain of Cooper's products are protected agemark registrations in the United States PatettTaademark Office and,
some cases, also in foreign trademark offices. idpfibns are pending for additional trademark aatépt registrations. Coog
intends to protect our intellectual property rightgressively.

No individual patent or license is material to @@mpany or either of our principal business uniteothan our license agreerr
effective as of November 19, 2007, between Coomoiand CIBA Vision AG and CIBA Vision Corporatioithis licens
relates to patents covering CooperVision's silicbgdrogel contact lens products. Our royalty olilgyas under this licen:
agreement extend until the expiration of the applie patent rights, which we believe occurred ipt&mber 2014 in the Unit
States and, we believe will occur in March 2016ml# of the United States.

In addition to trademarks and patent licenses, wu@ certain trade secrets, copyrights, know-howaher intellectual property.
DEPENDENCE ON CUSTOMERS

Neither of our business units depends to any natexient on any one customer or any one affiligiedip of customer:

GOVERNMENT CONTRACTS

Neither of our business units is materially subjecprofit renegotiation or termination of contmar subcontracts at the elec
of the United States government.

BACKLOG
Backlog is not a material factor in either of Cotpbusiness units.
SEASONALITY

CooperVision's contact lens sales in its fiscatfguarter, which runs from November 1 through aanB1, are typically low
than subsequent quarters, as patient traffic tctiicmers' offices is relatively light during tiheliday season.

COMPLIANCE WITH ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS

Federal, state and local provisions that regula¢edischarge of materials into the environmentetate to the protection of t
environment, do not currently materially affect @eds capital expenditures, earnings or competfiaation.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION ABOUT BUSINESS SEGMENTS, GEOGRAPHIC ARE AS, FOREIGN OPERATIONS
AND EXPORT SALES

The information required by this item is includedthe "Business Segment Information" of our notesdnsolidated financi
statements and "Risk Factors" as part of this AhRegort on Form 10-K for the fiscal year endeddbdet 31, 2014.

EMPLOYEES

On October 31, 2014 Cooper had about 9,460 employees, including 1et@ployees of Sauflon, acquired in August 2014
believe that relations with our employees are good.

NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE CERTIFICATION

We submitted our 2014 annual Section 12(a) CEGfication with the New York Stock Exchange. The tifamation was nc
qualified in any respect. Additionally, we filedtithe Securities and Exchange Commission as éghibithis Annual Report «
Form 10-K for the year ended October 31, 20140B©® and CFO certifications required under Secti@d & the Sarbane®xley
Act of 2002.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Cooper Companies, Inc. Internet address ig/tpw.coopercos.com. The information on the ConymlVeb site is not p:
of this or any other report we file with, or furhi, the Securities and Exchange Commission (S&@).annual reports on Fo
10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and currepbres on Form 8<, along with all other reports and amendmentgifith ol
furnished to the SEC, are publicly available fréelmarge on our Web site as soon as reasonabljiqgalale. The public may re
and copy these materials at the SEC's Public ReferRoom at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20TB2.public may obta
information on the operation of the Public RefeeRoom by calling the SEC at 1-800-SB&30. The SEC maintains a Web
that contains such reports, proxy and informati@tesnents and other information whose Internetesidis http://www.sec.gc
The Company's Corporate Governance Principlesc&#md Business Conduct Policy and charters of s@aciding committee
the Board of Directors are also posted on the CoylpdVeb site.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Our business faces significant risks. These risks include those described below and may include additional risks and uncertainties
not presently known to us or that we currently deem immaterial. Our business, financial condition and results of operations could
be materially adversely affected by any of these risks, and the trading prices of our common stock could decline by virtue of these
risks. These risks should be read in conjunction with the other information in this report.

Risks Relating to Our Business

We operate in the highly competitive healthcare indstry and there can be no assurance that we will bable to compet
successfully.

Each of our businesses operates within a highlypatitive environment. In our soft contact lens bess, CooperVision fac
intense competition from competitors' productspanticular silicone hydrogel contact lenses, ang faae increasing competiti
as other new products enter the market. Our mapetitors in the contact lens business, Johnsdol&son Vision Care, In
CIBA Vision (owned by Novartis AG) and Bausch & Lbminc. (owned by Valeant Pharmaceuticals Inteomati, Inc.), hav
substantially greater financial resources, largsearch and development budgets, larger salessfagoeater market penetrat
and/or larger manufacturing volumes than CoopeoviisiThey offer competitive products and differetatiih materials, plus
variety of other eye care products including lemsecproducts and ophthalmic pharmaceuticals, winey give them

competitive advantage in marketing their lenses Market for contact lenses is intensely competitimd is characterized
declining sales volumes for older product lines gralving demand for silicone hydrogel based pragludur ability to respond
these competitive pressures will depend on ouitald decrease our costs and maintain gross magegid operating results anc
introduce new products successfully, on a timelgi®@n the Americas, EMEA and Asia Pacific, andathieve manufacturii
efficiencies and sufficient manufacturing capaeityd capabilities for such products. Any significdatrease in our costs per |
will depend, in part, on our ability to increasdesavolume and production capabilities. Our failtwmerespond to competiti
pressures in a timely manner could have a matedietrse effect on our business, financial condiiod results of operations.

To a lesser extent, CooperVision also competes mahufacturers of eyeglasses and providers of dtiners of vision correctic
including ophthalmic surgery.

There can be no assurance that we will not encoumteeased competition in the future, for exampith increased produ
entries from Asia Pacific contact lens manufactrer that our competitors' newer contact lens yetsdwill not successful
erode CooperVision's contact lens business, whichdchave a material adverse effect on our busjrfesmcial condition ar
results of operations.

In the women's healthcare market, competitive factoclude technological and scientific advancesdpct quality, price ar
effective communication of product information tdwygicians and hospitals. CooperSurgical competdl @&i humber ¢
manufacturers in each of its niche areas, somenhafhwhave substantially greater financial and pemsbresources and sell am
broader range of products, which may give themdmaatage in marketing competitive products.

Acquisitions that we have made and may make in thieiture involve numerous risks.

We have a history of acquiring businesses and ptedbat have significantly contributed to our gtiown recent years. As part
our growth strategy, particularly at CooperSurganadl more recently at CooperVision, we intend totionie to consider acquiri
complementary technologies, products and busineBsase
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acquisitions could result in potentially dilutivesuiances of equity securities, the incurrence lof aled contingent liabilities and
increase in amortization and/or impairments of gathcand other intangible assets, which could havmaterial adverse efft
upon our business, financial condition and resufitsperations. In fiscal 2014, CooperVision comgtethe acquisition of Saufl
Pharmaceuticals Limited, and in fiscal 2012, CoBpegical completed the acquisition of Origio a/fe3e acquisitions adc
significant operations to CooperVision and Coopegital, respectively, and greatly expanded thdirmational businesses. 1
acquisitions have, correspondingly, added riskeoudd face with respect to acquisitions and include

» failure to successfully obtain the anticipated rexes, margins and earnings benefits, includingstnglon acquisitiot

+ difficulties in, and expenses related to, the iraégn of the operations, technologies, products$ personnel of the acquir
company and establishment of appropriate accourdargrols and reporting procedures and other régylacomplianc
procedures;

» increased leverage and the risk of lack of acaeavailable financing, including financing for thequisition or refinancing
debt owed by us on a timely basis and on reasoneiies;

» risks of entering markets in which we have no wmitid prior experienc

» potential loss of employet

e aninability to identify and consummate future a@siions on favorable terms or at
» diversion of management's attention away from oblusiness concert

» expenses of any undisclosed or potential liabdjtieontingent liabilities or indemnification obligans of the acquire
company;

» expenses, including restructuring expensediubdown our own locations or terminate our employ
* adilution of earnings per share;

» risks inherent in accounting allocations and tek that we are required to record significant adpesits to the preliminary f
value of assets acquired and liabilities assumddimihe measurement period.

Product innovations are important in the industry in which we operate, and we face the risk of produabsolescence if w
are unable to develop new products or gain regulaty approvals or if our competitors introduce new products.

Product innovations are important in the contans Imarket in which CooperVision competes and indteas of the healthc:
industry in which CooperSurgical competes. Coopegi8al has not allocated substantial resourcesto product developme
but rather it has historically purchased, leverageticensed the technology developments of otHeéomperSurgical has recer
invested in expanding the internal research aneldpwmnent function with the goal of organizationabwgth and to compleme
our acquisitions strategy. CooperVision has begasting in new product development since 2005uificy the development
silicone hydrogebased contact lenses. Research and developmenttmmitments, higher feasibility risk with longesrir
projects, the cost of obtaining necessary regulapproval and other costs related to product iatioas can be substantial. T
can be no assurance that we will successfully olstacessary regulatory approvals or clearancesuionew products or that ¢
new products will successfully compete in the migoleee and, as a result, justify the expense iraiv their development a
regulatory approval. In addition, our competitoraynihave developed or may in the future develop pesucts or technologie
such as contact lenses with anti-microbial or alérgenic features, that could lead to the obselese of one or more of ¢
products. Competitors may also introduce new usesdntact
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lenses, such as for drug delivery or the contrahgbpia. Failure to develop new product offeringd &echnological changes ¢
to offer products that provide performance thatikeast comparable to competing products coulé laawmaterial adverse effect
our business, financial condition, or results oér@ions.

If our products are not accepted by the market, weavill not be able to sustain or expand our business.

Certain of our proposed products have not yet loéinitally tested or commercially introduced, and wannot assure that any
them, assuming they receive necessary regulatgoyoeals, will achieve market acceptance or geneogirating profits. |
addition, we have been slower to introduce neveaile hydrogel contact lens products than our catopetwhich put thes
products at a competitive disadvantage. The dewsop of a market for our products may be influenoganany factors, some
which are out of our control, including:

» acceptance of our products by eye care and worhealthcare practitione

» the cost competitiveness of our prodt

« consumer reluctance to try and use a new prc

» regulatory requiremen

» adequate coverage and reimbursement by third paytgrs

» the earlier release of competitive products, suscsilecone hydrogel products, into the market by @ampetitors; ar

» the emergence of newer and more competitive pre
New medical and technological developments may rede the need for our products.

Technological developments in the eye care and wtamigealthcare industries, such as new surgicatepioes or medic
devices, may limit demand for our products. Cormefiactive surgical procedures such as Lasik syrged the development
new pharmaceutical products may decrease the derfioanour optical products. If these new advancesvigde a practici
alternative to traditional vision correction, thendand for contact lenses and eyeglasses may niigtdgarease. We cannot ass
that medical advances and technological developneititnot have a material adverse effect on owsitesses.

Our substantial and expanding international operatons are subject to uncertainties which could affecour operating
results.

A significant portion of our current operations f@ooperVision and our newly acquired Sauflon andihiOrbusinesses &
conducted and located outside the United Statekoan growth strategy involves expanding our exgstioreign operations a
entering into new foreign jurisdictions. We havgnificant manufacturing and distribution sites iorth America and Eurog
Approximately twothirds of our net sales for CooperVision for thecéll years ended October 31, 2014 and 2013, respg(
were derived from the sale of products outsideUhged States. We believe that sales outside theetlistates will continue
account for a material portion of our total neesdbr the foreseeable future. International opmmatand business expansion p
are subject to numerous additional risks, including

* we may have difficulty enforcing intellectual properights in some foreign countri

« we may have difficulty gaining market share in do@s such as Japan because of regulatory restr&ctand custom
preferences;
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* we may find it difficult to grow in emerging marlsesuch as China, India, Russia and other develaptigns due to, amo
other things, customer acceptance, undevelopedibdison channels, regulatory restrictions and ¢ and busine
knowledge of these new markets;

* tax rates in some foreign countries may exceecethdshe United States, and foreign earnings magubgect to withholdin
requirements or the imposition of tariffs, exchaogatrols or other restrictions;

» we may find it difficult to comply with a varietyf dnited States and foreign compliance and regjatequirements such
the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, the Dodd-Frackaind the U.K. Bribery Act;

* we may find it difficult to manage a large orgati@a spread throughout various countt
» fluctuations in currency exchange rates could ashigraffect our result
» foreign customers may have longer payment cyclas thustomers in the United Sta

» failure to comply with United States DepartmehtCommerce and other nations impexport controls may result in fir
and/or penalties;

» general economic and political conditions in thertaes where we operate may have an adverse @ffieotir operations
those countries or not be favorable to our growrtitegy;

» foreign governments may adopt regulations or takeroactions that would have a direct or indiredtease impact on o
business and market opportunities, including bafinated to increased enforcement of potentialiyfticting and ambiguot
anti-bribery laws; and

* we may have difficulty enforcing agreements andecting receivables through some foreign legalesys

As we continue to expand our business globally,smacess will depend, in large part, on our abitityanticipate and effective
manage these and other risks associated with termational operations. However, any of these faatould adversely affect ¢
international operations and, consequently, ouraijrg results.

Current market conditions and recessionary pressurg in one or more of our markets could impact our aflity to grow our
business.

In the United States and globally, market and enwooconditions have been unprecedented over thé fpas years ar
challenging with tighter credit conditions and s&veconomic growth. The U.S. economy has experteaceecession and fa
continued concerns about the systemic impacts\rad economic conditions such as the growing tefcit, high energy cos
geopolitical issues, the availability and cost @dit, and an unstable real estate market. Foregmntries, in particular the Et
zone, are affected by similar systemic impacts.aA®sult, we continue to have lower than historggbectations for mark
growth in fiscal 2015.

Continued turbulence particularly in internationarkets and economic conditions may adversely affecliquidity and financi:
condition, and the liquidity and financial conditiof our customers. If these market conditions ioowiet, they may limit our abilit
and the ability of our customers, to replace matutiabilities and to access the capital marketsa®t liquidity needs, whi
could have a material adverse effect on our firere@ndition and results of operations.
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We face risks associated with disruption of manufaaring and distribution operations and failure to develop nev
manufacturing processes that could adversely affectur profitability or competitive position.

We manufacture a significant portion of the medaVice products we sell. Any prolonged disruptiorthe operations of o
existing manufacturing or distribution facilitieahether due to technical or labor difficulties, westion of or damage to a
facility (as a result of natural disaster, use atmtage of hazardous materials or other event§rament action by the FDA
other regulatory body if we are found to be in mampliance with current Good Manufacturing Practi¢eGMP) or othe
reasons, could have a material adverse effect omwginess, financial condition and results of afiens. In addition, materiz
such as silicone hydrogel require improvements uo rmanufacturing processes to make them cost eféectVhile we hav
improved our manufacturing capabilities for ourcsihe hydrogel products, our failure to continuelévelop improvements to ¢
manufacturing processes and reduce our cost ofsgomdd significantly impact our ability to compete

CooperVision manufactures molded contact lenseshmepresent the majority of our contact lens nexss, primarily at ol
facilities in the United Kingdom and Puerto Ricdwrdugh the Sauflon acquisition, CooperVision acegiimanufacturing facilitie
in the United Kingdom and Hungary. CooperSurgicahofactures the majority of its products in Trunhb@bnnecticut, Staffor
Texas, Malov, Denmark, and Pasadena, California.nvdaufacture certain products at only one manufagsite for certai
markets, and certain of our products are approwednbnufacturing only at one site. Before we cam aisecond manufactur
site, we must obtain the approval of regulatoryhatrities, and because this process is expensivegemerally have not sou
approvals needed to manufacture at an additiotl I§ithere were any prolonged disruption in therations of the approv
facility, it could take a significant amount of &@mto validate a second site and replace lost ptoadtich could result in lo
customers and thereby reduce sales, profitabitityraarket share.

CooperVision distributes products out of West Hettai, New York, Hampshire, United Kingdom, Liegeslddum and variot
smaller international distribution facilities. Caurgical's products are primarily distributed ofitits facilities in Trumbul
Connecticut, and Malov, Denmark. Any prolongedufigion in the operations of our existing distriloutifacilities, whether due
technical or labor difficulties, destruction of @amage to any facility (as a result of natural stisg use and storage of hazar¢
materials or other events) or other reasons, coalg a material adverse effect on our businesandial condition and results
operations.

If our manufacturing operations fail to comply with applicable regulations, our manufacturing could bedelayed ol
disrupted, our products could be subject to recalland sales and profitability could suffer.

Our manufacturing operations and processes areireeqto comply with numerous federal, state andeifpr regulator
requirements, including the FDA's cGMP for medevices, known as the QSR regulations, which gotleFrprocedures relat
to the design, testing, production processes, olsntguality assurance, labeling, packaging, s@ramporting, exporting ai
shipping of our products. We also are subjectatestequirements and licenses applicable to manués of medical devices.
addition, we must engage in extensive recordkeepimd) reporting and must make available our manuifi;mgf facilities an
records for periodic unscheduled inspections byegawental agencies, including the FDA, state aittherand comparak
agencies in other countries. Failure to pass a cGDER or similar foreign inspection or to complyttwihese and other applica
regulatory requirements could result in disruptadrour operations and manufacturing delays in asdito, among other thing
significant fines, suspension of approvals, seizurecalls or import holds of products, operatiggtrictions and crimin
prosecutions. As a result, any failure to complyhwapplicable requirements could adversely affaat product sales a
profitability.
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We rely on independent suppliers for raw materialsand we could experience inventory shortages if weare required to ust
an alternative supplier on short notice.

We rely on independent suppliers for key raw matericonsisting primarily of various chemicals gatkaging materials. R:
materials used in our operations are generallylaai from more than one source. However, becaasee products requi
specialized manufacturing procedures, we could rpee inventory shortages if we were required s& @n alternati
manufacturer on short notice. For example, sombeprimary material used to make our silicone bgdt contact lens produc
including MyDay, Biofinity, Avaira and clariti, arsupplied by a sole supplier. We may suffer a gisom in the supply of o
silicone hydrogel contact lens products if our digpp, particularly those which are the sole sowtany necessary material,
to supply sufficient material on a timely basisatrall for any reason and/or we need to switchrtcalternative supplier.
disruption in the supply of raw materials couldrdpg production of our silicone hydrogel contagtderoducts, thereby advers
impacting our ability to market and sell such pratduand our ability to compete in this importangreent of the contact le
market.

If we fail to protect our intellectual property adequately, our business could suffer.

We consider our intellectual property rights, imthg patents, trade secrets, trademarks and liegrgjreements, to be an inte
component of our business. We attempt to protectirtellectual property rights through a combinatiof patent, tradema
copyright and trade secret laws, as well as licensigreements and thiprty nondisclosure and assignment agreements
failure to obtain or maintain adequate protectibrour intellectual property rights for any reasauld have a material adve
effect on our business, financial condition andilisof operations.

We also may seek to enforce our intellectual prgpeghts on others through litigation. Our clainesen if meritorious, may |
found invalid or inapplicable to a party we belienéringes or has misappropriated our intellectodperty rights. In additio
litigation can:

* be expensive and time consuming to prosecute end
» resultin a finding that we do not have certaieliectual property rights or that such rights laackficient scope or streng
» divert management's attention and resourct

* require us to license our intellectual prope

We have applied for patent protection in the Unifdtes and other foreign jurisdictions relatingéotain existing and propos
processes and products. We cannot assure thatfany patent applications will be approved. Patgmplications in the Unite
States and other foreign jurisdictions are maietaiim secrecy for a period of time, which may lastil patents are issued, ¢
since publication of discoveries in the scientidicpatent literature tends to lag behind actuatalisries by several months,
cannot be certain that we will be the first creatbinventions covered by any patent applicationmake or the first to file pate
applications on such inventions. The patents we could be challenged, invalidated or circumventeathers and may not be
sufficient scope or strength to provide us with amyaningful protection or commercial advantage.alée cannot assure that
will have adequate resources to enforce our patents

Both CooperVision and CooperSurgical also rely npaiented proprietary technology or technology whgatents will expire
less than a few years. It is possible that othdisndependently develop the same or similar textbgy or otherwise obtain acci
to our unpatented technology. To protect our treelerets and other proprietary information, we negemployees, consultar
advisors and collaborators to enter into confideityi agreements and assignment agreements, wtaokraglly provide th
inventions conceived
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by the party in the course of rendering servicesigowill be our exclusive property. However, we mainassure that the
confidentiality agreements will provide meaningfuibtection for our trade secrets, kntvaw or other proprietary information
the event of any unauthorized use, misappropriaratisclosure of such trade secrets, kriew or other proprietary informatic
Enforcing a claim that a party illegally obtaineadas using our trade secrets is difficult, expeasand time consuming and
outcome is unpredictable.

We rely on trademarks to establish a market idefbit our products. To maintain the value of o@di&marks, we might have
file lawsuits against third parties to prevent th&om using trademarks confusingly similar to olutive of our registered
unregistered trademarks. We also might not obtgistrations for our pending or future trademarngliaptions, and might have
defend our registered trademark and pending apilisafrom challenge by third parties. Enforcingdafending our register
and unregistered trademarks might result in sigaifi litigation costs and damages, including tladility to continue using certe
trademarks.

The laws of foreign countries in which we do buseer contemplate doing business in the future noayecognize intellectu
property rights or protect them to the same exésntlo the laws of the United States. Adverse datetrans in a judicial ¢
administrative proceeding could prevent us from wfacturing and selling our products or prevent nasnf stopping others fro
manufacturing and selling competing products, d&edeby have a material adverse effect on our bssirimancial condition al
results of operations.

Our products or processes could be subject to claisnof infringement of the intellectual property of aghers.

Our competitors in both the United States and fpreountries, many of which have substantially gmesesources and have m
substantial investments in competing technologiesy have applied for or obtained, or may in thereitapply for and obtai
patents that will prevent, limit or otherwise irftge with our ability to make and sell our existiagd planned products. In-
contact lens industry, CooperVision and its competiall hold patents covering contact lens desigasiness methods, proce:
and materials. Claims that our products, businesthoals or processes infringe upon the propriefights of others often are r
asserted until after commencement of commerciaksafl products incorporating our technology.

Significant litigation regarding intellectual praperights exists in our industries. For examplepg@erVision has faced signific:
patent litigation over its silicone hydrogel coritéens products. Third parties have made, and malenn the future, claims
infringement against us or our contract manufacsureconnection with the use of our technologyy Ataims, even those withc
merit, could:

* be expensive and time consuming to del
e cause us to cease making, licensing or using ptediaat incorporate the challenged intellectuapprty
e require us to redesign or reengineer our prodidesasible

» divert management's attention and resourct

* require us to enter into royalty or licensing agneats in order to obtain the right to use a necggs@duct, component
process.

We cannot be certain of the outcome of any litmatiAny royalty or licensing agreement, if requirethy not be available to
on acceptable terms or at all. Our failure to abthie necessary licenses or other rights couldemtethe sale, manufacture,
distribution of some of our products and, therefomild have a material adverse effect on our legsin
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A successful claim of infringement against us or oantract manufacturers in connection with the ak@ur technology, i
particular if we are unable to manufacture or sel{y of our planned products in any major marketild@dversely affect o
business.

We could experience losses from product liability laims, including such claims and other losses reging from sales o
counterfeit and other infringing products.

We face an inherent risk of exposure to produdilitg claims in the event that the use of our proi results in personal inju
We also face the risk that defects in the desigmanufacture of our products or sales of countediedther infringing produc
might necessitate a product recall and other astipnmanufacturers, distributors or retailers ideorto safeguard the healtt
consumers and protect the integrity of the sulijemhd. Consumers may halt or delay purchases aicupt that is the subject ¢
claim or recall, or has been counterfeited. We kemedme risk with thirgearty carrier policies that are subject to dedlesitan
limitations. There can be no assurance that we nwillexperience material losses due to productilitialclaims or recalls, or
decline in sales resulting from sales of countedebther infringing products, in the future.

We face risks related to environmental matters.

Our facilities are subject to a broad range of ebhiStates federal, state, local and foreign enmigortal laws and requiremer
including those governing discharges to the air&ater, the handling or disposal of solid and hdaas substances and was
remediation of contamination associated with thease of hazardous substances at our facilitieoHaite disposal locations a
occupational safety and health. We have made, aitidcentinue to make, expenditures to comply withcls laws an
requirements. Future events, such as changes stingxiaws and regulations, or the enforcementettferor the discovery

contamination at our facilities, may give rise tw@ional compliance or remediation costs that ddwdve a material adverse ef
on our business, financial condition and resultepdrations. Such laws and requirements are cdhstdranging, are different
every jurisdiction and can impose substantial fined sanctions for violations. As a manufacturevarfious products, we ¢
exposed to some risk of claims with respect toremvihental matters, and there can be no assuraacm#terial costs or liabiliti
will not be incurred in connection with any suchinis.

Our indebtedness could adversely affect our finanal health and prevent us from fulfilling our debt adbligations.
We have now and expect to continue to have a gignif amount of indebtedness.
Our indebtedness could:

* increase our vulnerability to general adverse ecoa@nd industry conditior

» require us to dedicate a substantial portion ofoash flow from operations to payments on our ineldfess, thereby reduc
the availability of our cash flow to fund workinggital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, redeamd development effo
and other general corporate purposes;

» limit our flexibility in planning for, or reactingp, changes in our business and the industry ichwwve operat
» place us at a competitive disadvantage comparedrtoompetitors that have less d

e limit our ability to borrow additional funds; a
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» make it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligens with respect to our debt, including our obtign to repay our cre:
facilities under certain circumstances.

Our credit facilities contain financial and othestrictive covenants that could limit our ability @angage in activities that may
in our longterm best interests. Our failure to comply withsb@ovenants could result in an event of defauithyhf not cured ¢
waived, could result in the acceleration of allafr debt, which could adversely affect our businessnings and financ
condition.

We are vulnerable to interest rate risk with respetto our debt.

We are subject to interest rate risk in connectwith the issuance of variable and fixeste debt. In order to maintain our des
mix of fixed-rate and variableate debt, we currently use, and may continue & inderest rate swap agreements and excl
fixed and variableate interest payment obligations over the liféhaf arrangements, without exchange of the underlgimcipa
amounts. We may not be successful in structuriredp suwvap agreements to manage our risks effectivdtich could adverse
affect our business, earnings and financial comaliti

Exchange rate fluctuations and our foreign currencyhedges could adversely affect our financial resudt

As a result of our international operations, cuckseaxchange rate fluctuations may affect our resofitoperations and financ
position. Our most significant currency exposunesthe British pound sterling, euro and Japanese W& expect to generate
increasing portion of our revenue and incur a $icgmt portion of our expenses in currencies othan U.S. dollars. To the ext
we are unable to materially offset noonfunctional currency flows, exchange rate flusares could have a positive or nega
impact on our financial condition and results oéigiions. Because our consolidated financial resut reported in U.S. dolle
if we generate sales or earnings in other currendie translation of those results into U.S. dslliean result in a significe
increase or decrease in the amount of those sakarioings and can make it more difficult for ohareholders to understand
relative strengths or weaknesses of the underlyurginess on a period-ovperiod comparative basis. Although from time toe
we enter into foreign exchange agreements witmfizd institutions to reduce our net exposure tatilations in foreign curren
values relative to our non-functional currency gations or balances, these hedging transactionsteliminate that risk entirely.

Increases in our effective tax rates or adverse otbmes resulting from examination of income tax retuns could adversel
affect our results.

Our future effective tax rates could be adverséigcted by earnings being higher than anticipatecountries where the Comp:
has higher statutory rates or lower than anticgh@ecountries where it has lower statutory rabyschanges in valuation of ¢
deferred tax assets and liabilities, or by chamgésax laws or interpretations of those laws. We @so subject to the examina
of our income tax returns by other tax authoritesl the outcome of these examinations could hawatarial adverse effect
our operating results and financial condition.

We operate globally and changes in tax laws couldigersely affect our results.

We operate globally and changes in tax laws codicisely affect our results. We have overseas raatwing, administrati
and sales offices and generate substantial reveameegrofits in foreign jurisdictions. Recentlynamber of countries, includil
the United States, have proposed changes to teifatvs, some of which affect taxation of earnimgsognized in foreic
jurisdictions. Such changes in tax laws or theferipretation, if adopted, could adversely affect efiective tax rates and ¢
results.
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Volatility in the securities markets, interest rates, and other factors could substantially increaseuws defined benefit pensior
costs.

We sponsor a defined benefit pension plan for eygals in the United States. This defined benefisjpenplan is funded wi
trust assets invested in a diversified portfolioseturities and other investments. Changes inestaeates, mortality rates, e¢
retirement rates, investment returns, discounsratel the market value of plan assets can affectuthded status of our defir
benefit pension plan and cause volatility in the periodic benefit cost and future funding requiesrts of the plan. A significa
increase in our obligations or future funding regoments could have a negative impact on our restittperations and cash flo
from operations.

We manage our businesses utilizing complex computesystems that are regularly maintained and upgraded an
interruption to these systems could disrupt our bumess or force us to expend excessive costs.

We utilize complex computer systems, including giee resource planning and warehouse managerystenss, to support ¢
business units and we have a continuous improvestetegy in place to keep our systems and ovaraytbachnology stable a
in line with business needs and growth. Regularrages of our computer hardware and software rengsare typical ar
expected. We employ controlled change managemettioeh@ogies to plan, test and execute all suchesysfipgrades al
improvements, and we believe that we assign adectiatfing and other resources to projects to enswccessful implementati
However, we cannot assure that our systems willtraee future business needs or that upgrades wédlrate as designed. !
cannot assure that there will not be associateéssiee costs or disruptions in portions of our hess in the course of «
maintenance, support and/or upgrade of these sgstem

We attempt to protect our computer and communioatisystems but may experience interruptions andches includin
computer viruses, malicious software, cyberattaaksl "hacking,”that could impair our ability to conduct busineswd
communicate internally and with our customers, esuit in the theft of trade secrets or other misamation of assets,
otherwise compromise privacy of our sensitive infation, or that of our customers or other busipesters.

If we do not retain our key personnel and attract ad retain other highly skilled employees, our busiass could suffer.

If we fail to recruit and retain the necessary penel, our business and our ability to obtain nest@mers, develop new prodt
and provide acceptable levels of customer servdcddcsuffer. The success of our business is heaéihendent on the leaders
of our key management personnel. Our success a&jgends on our ability to recruit, retain and mdavhighly skilled sale
marketing, engineering and scientific personnem@etition for these persons in our industry isnists and we may not be abls
successfully recruit, train or retain qualified gamnel.

Provisions of our governing documents and Delawaraw, and our rights plan, may have anti-takeover décts.

Certain provisions of our Second Restated Cert#icd Incorporation and Amended and RestatedaBys may inhibit changes
control of the Company not approved by our Boardokctors. These provisions include: (i) advano#éiae requirements f
stockholder proposals and nominations and (iijgthority of our board to issue without stockholdpproval preferred stock w
such terms as our board may determine. We also thavprotections of Section 203 of the Delaware ée@nCorporation Lav
which could have
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similar effects. Our Board of Directors extended pteferred stock purchase rights plan, commonigwkm as a “poison pill,”
pursuant to an amended rights agreement dated @stober 29, 2007, that expires on October 29, 20hé& rights agreement
intended to prevent abusive hostile takeover attefmp requiring a potential acquirer to negotiéie terms of an acquisition w
our Board of Directors. However, it could have #féect of deterring or preventing an acquisitionoofr Company, even if
majority of our stockholders would be in favor oich acquisition, and could also have the effeechaking it more difficult for
person or group to gain control of the Companyoarhtange existing management.

Risks Relating to Government Regulation of Manufaaire and Sale of Our Products

Our failure to comply with regulatory requirements or to receive regulatory clearance or approval forour products or
operations could adversely affect our business.

Our products and operations are subject to rigomegsilation by the FDA, and numerous other fedestdie and foreic
governmental authorities. In the United States,RB& regulates virtually all aspects of a medicaVide's design, developme
testing, manufacture, safety, labeling (includifg, example the upcoming FDA unique device ideetifiegulations), storag
recordkeeping, reporting, marketing, promotion amtribution, as well as the export of medical degi manufactured in t
United States to foreign markets. Our failure tonpty with FDA regulations could lead to the impasit of administrative ¢
judicial sanctions, including injunctions, suspensi or the loss of regulatory approvals, producalis, termination of distributic
or product seizures. In the most egregious casesinal sanctions or closure of our manufacturiagilfties are possible.

Our medical devices require clearance or approy&h® FDA before they can be commercially distréslin the United States ¢
may require similar approvals by foreign regulatagencies before distribution in foreign jurisdicts. Medical devices may ol
be marketed for the indications for which they approved or cleared. The process of obtaining,ware and maintainin
regulatory clearances and approvals to market dcaledevice, particularly from the FDA, can be ¢pstnd time consumin
There can be no assurance that such clearancegppralals will be granted on a timely basis, iéktor that significant delays
the introduction of any new products or productamements will occur, which could adversely aff@at competitive positic
and results of operations. In addition, the FDA é&meign jurisdictions may change its policies, ptdadditional regulations
revise existing regulations, each of which coulevent or delay premarket approval or clearanceuofpooducts or could impe
our ability to market our currently approved orasked products. For example, the FDA recently has lveviewing the premart
clearance process in response to internal andnateoncerns regarding the 510(k) program. In Jgn2@11, the FDA announc
a plan of action that included twerfiye action items designed to make the process mgogous and transparent. Since ther
FDA has implemented some changes intended to impitsvpremarket programs. Some of these changeprapdsals und
consideration could impose additional regulatoiguieements on us that could delay our ability téagb new 510(k) clearanc
for our products, increase the cost of complianceestrict our ability to maintain our currentatances.

Modifications and enhancements to a medical dealse require a new FDA clearance or approval if/theuld significantl
affect its safety or effectiveness or would congtita major change in its intended use, designastufacture. The FDA requir
every manufacturer to make this determination énfitst instance, but the FDA may review any maatufeer's decision. We ha
made modifications and enhancements to our medates that we do not believe require a new clearar application, but v
cannot confirm that the FDA will agree with our dgans. If the FDA requires us to seek clearancapproval for modification
a previously cleared product for which we have tuohed that new clearances or approvals are unreagyesge may be required
cease marketing or to recall the modified produdil we obtain clearance or approval, and we maysiigect to significal
regulatory fines or penalties, which could have
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a material adverse effect on our financial resaftd competitive position. We also cannot assure wawill be successful
obtaining clearances or approvals for our modiioce, if required.

Even if regulatory approval or clearance of a maldievice is granted, the FDA may impose limitasi@n restrictions on the u
and indications for which the device may be labeded promoted, and failure to comply with FDA regdigns prohibiting
manufacturer from promoting a device for an unapedo or “off-label” use could result in enforcement action by the F
including, among other things, warning lettersefininjunctions, consent decrees, and civil or icrpenalties.

Development and marketing of our products are subjet to strict governmental regulation by foreign regilatory agencies
and failure to receive, or delay in receiving, forgn qualifications could have a material adverse é&ct on our business.

In many of the foreign countries in which we market products, we are subject to regulations dafigctamong other thing
product standards, packaging requirements, labengirements, import restrictions, tariff regubaits, the reporting of cert:
payments to health care practitioners in certaimketa (for example, the French Sunshine Act of 20MRities and te
requirements. Many of the regulations applicableundevices and products in such countries argasito those of the FDA.

In the European Economic Area, a medical device @@y be placed on the market if it is in confoyniith the essenti
requirements set out in the European Directives iamglementing regulations that govern medical desicThese Directiv
prescribe qualityprograms and standards which must be maintaineddier to achieve required ISO certification andypprov
the use of CE marking. In order to maintain ISCtifieation and CE marking quality benchmarks, firmsiality systems ai
procedures are subjected to rigorous periodic rigges and reassessment audits.

In many countries, the national health or soci@usé organizations require our products to belifjgd before they can |
marketed with the benefit of reimbursement eligfipil To date, we have not experienced difficulty damplying with thes
regulations. However, our failure to receive, dags in the receipt of, relevant foreign qualificats could have a material adve
effect on our business, financial condition andiltsof operations.

Our products are subject to reporting requirementsand recalls, even after receiving regulatory cleanace or approval
which could harm our reputation, business and finanial results.

After a device is placed on the market, numeroggiletory requirements apply, including the FDA'sRQfegulations, whic
require manufacturers to follow design, testingntom, documentation and other quality assurancecquures during tl
manufacturing process; labeling regulations, whicbhibit the promotion of products for unapprovead“off-label” uses an
impose other restrictions on labeling; and medmavice reporting regulations that require us toorepo FDA or simila
governmental bodies in other countries if our patgumalfunction in a way that would be reasonaidgly to contribute to dea
or serious injury if the malfunction were to reclihe FDA and similar governmental bodies in othmrrdries have the authority
require the recall of our products in the eventnwdterial deficiencies or defects in design or maaufre. Medical devi
manufacturers, such as CooperVision and Cooper&lygnay under their own initiative recall a protifi@ reasonable possibil
of serious injury or any material deficiency inevite is found. For example, CooperVision recentgicluded a recall of limite
lots of Avaira Toric contact lenses and Avaira Spheontact lenses. Recalls of any of our producy divert managerial a
financial resources and have an adverse effectunrfisancial condition and results of operations.rékall could harm ol
reputation with customers and consumers which caddce the sales of our products. In addition, the
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FDA or other foreign governmental agencies may @amp@nt enforcement actions in connection with allr@dasich could impai
our product offerings and be harmful to our bussre®d financial results.

Changes in legislation and government regulation dhe healthcare industry as well as thirdparty payors' efforts to control
the costs of healthcare could materially adverselgffect our business.

In recent years, an increasing number of healthoafi@m proposals have been formulated by the legie and executiy
branches of the United States federal and statergments. In March 2010, the President signed titeei® Protection ar
Affordable Care Act, as amended by the Health @acbEducation Reconciliation Act, which we refectilectively as the Heal
Care Reform Law. The Health Care Reform Law makésnsive changes to the delivery of health caréhen United State
Among the provisions of the Health Care Reform Laf\greatest importance to the medical device itvghage the following:

» A 2.3 percent excise tax on any entity that martufas or imports medical devices offered for saléhie United States, w
limited exceptions, which exceptions include alhawt lenses;

* A new PatienCentered Outcomes Research Institute to overseetifil priorities in, and conduct comparative ata
effectiveness research, along with funding for siedearch;

* New reporting and disclosure requirements on médiegice manufacturers for al“transfer of value’made or distributed
prescribers and other healthcare providers, andoamership and investment interests held by phgmsgior their immedia
family members, and any payments or other “tragss@drvalue”to such owners. Manufacturers were required torbdgi:
collection on August 1, 2013 and were requiredefmort such data to the government by March 31, 2BtHin future perioc
by the 90"calendar day of each year thereafter;

* Payment system reforms including a national piloigpam on payment bundling to encourage hospipdgsicians and oth
providers to improve the coordination, quality afficiency of certain healthcare services throughdied payment models;

» Creation of the Independent Payment Advisory Baahith, beginning in 2014, will have authority tocoemmend certa
changes to reduce Medicare spending and those neendations could have the effect of law even if g§ess doesn't act
the recommendations; and

» Establishment of a Center for Medicare Innovatibtha Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Servicesetst innovative payme
and service delivery models to lower Medicare arediidaid spending.

These measures could result in decreased net revanuincreased expenses from our medical deviodupts and decree
potential returns from our development efforts.tis time, the full effect that the Health Care &tef Law would have on o
business remains unclear. For example, the Health Reform Law imposes a new excise tax of 2.3gueraf the price for whic
certain medical devices are sold, which went irftece on January 1, 2013. CooperVision is not dfdcby this tax becau
contact lenses are excluded from the tax. Howéeited States sales of almost all of CooperSurgigabducts are subject to 1
tax.

Other legislative changes have been proposed aptetisince the Health Care Reform Law was ena@rdiugust 2, 2011, tl
President signed into law the Budget Control Act26fL1, which, among other things, created the Jeelect Committee «
Deficit Reduction to recommend proposals in spemaeductions to Congress. The Joint Select Comeniid not achieve i
targeted deficit reduction of at least $1.2 triflifor the years 2013 through 2021, triggering #rggdlations automatic reductio
to several government programs. These reductiahsde aggregate reductions to Medicare paymersodders of up to 2% p
fiscal year, which went into effect on April 1, 2010n January 2, 2013, President Obama signedamtohe American Taxpay
Relief Act of 2012, which, among other things, et reduced Medicare payments to several providecyding hospital:
imaging centers and cancer treatment centers.
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We expect that additional state and federal healehceform measures will be adopted in the futineluding those initiative
affecting coverage and reimbursement for our pregjuamy of which could limit the amounts that fedeand state governme
will pay for healthcare products and services, Wiuould adversely affect the growth of the marketdur products or demand
our products, or result in additional pricing praes. Also, any adoption of healthcare reform psagon a state-bstate bas
could require us to develop stapecific marketing and sales approaches. We camadict the effect such reforms or the pros
of their enactment may have on our business.

In addition, thirdparty payors, whether governmental or commerciélether inside the United States or abroad, inanghy
attempt to contain or reduce the costs of healthcHnese coatontrol methods include prospective payment systeangitate
rates, group purchasing, redesign of benefits,inagupre-authorizations or second opinions prior to certagdical procedure
encouragement of healthier lifestyles and exploradf more coseffective methods of delivering healthcare. Althlbucps
controls or other requirements imposed by tipiagty payors have not historically had a signiftcaffiect on contact lens prices
distribution practices, this could change in theurfe and could adversely affect our business, firmrcondition and results
operations.

The costs of complying with the requirements of fegfal laws pertaining to the privacy and security ofhealth information
and the potential liability associated with failureto do so could materially adversely affect our busess and results ¢
operations.

Other federal legislation affects the manner inclithive use and disclose health information. The tHdakurance Portability a
Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, mandates, amgoother things, the adoption of standards foreleetronic exchange
health information that may require significant adtly changes to current practices. The UnitedeStDepartment of Health ¢
Human Services (HHS) has released several ruleslatiag the use of specified standards with respedaertain healthca
transactions and health information. The electréw@nsactions rule requires the use of uniformdseafs for common healthci
transactions, including healthcare claims inforomatiplan eligibility, referral certification and @worization, claims status, pl
enrollment and disenroliment, payment and remitaandvice, plan premium payments and coordinatiobeoiefits. The privac
rule imposes standards governing the use and dise®f individually identifiable health informatioThe security rule releas
by HHS establishes minimum standards for the sgcwf electronic health information, and requirdse tadoption ¢
administrative, physical and technical safeguards.

Additionally, the Health Information Technology fBconomic and Clinical Health (HITECH) Act of 200&s signed into law
part of the America's Recovery and ReinvestmentiA&ebruary 2009. Previously, HIPAA directly regi@d only certain cover
entities, such as health care providers and he#dtis. Under the HITECH Act, certain of HIPAA's\y@atcy and security standa
are now also directly applicable to covered ergtitrisiness associates. As a result, businessatssoare now subject to civil €
criminal penalties for failure to comply with apgble privacy and security rule requirements. Meeeothe HITECH Act s
forth new notification requirements for health dsg¢&urity breaches, increased the civil and crirppaalties that may be impos
against covered entities, business associatesa@asibly other persons, and gave state attorneyarglemew authority to file civ
actions for damages or injunctions in federal ®twtenforce HIPAA and seek attorney's fees ants @ssociated with pursui
federal actions.

While with the possible exception of limited valadded software solutions for eye care professiowhiseh we believe a
HIPAA compliant, we do not believe that we are aazed entity or a business associate under HIPAZnynof our custome
may be covered entities or business associatesctubjHIPAA. Some customers as an expectatioraasacting business with
may require us to enter into business associate
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agreements, which would obligate us to safeguaddrestrict the manner in which we use certain ptett health information (
defined by HIPAA) that we obtain in the course af cgommercial relationship with them, triggeringigaatial liability on us fc
failure to meet our contractual obligations. Altsimely, some customers may limit the scope ofammmercial relationship wi
them with regard to our access to certain protelegadth information. Pursuant to the HITECH Actthé government determir
that we are a business associate, we could beiaddiy subject to direct governmental enforcemfentfailure to comply witl
certain privacy and security requirements. In addjtthe final omnibus rule released in January320dmong other thing
modifies the breach reporting standard in a matirarwill likely make more data security incideqtglify as reportable breach
The costs of complying with these contractual d@iligns and new legal and regulatory requirememd,the potential liabilit
associated with failure to do so could have a natadverse effect on our business, financial diooiand results of operatio
To the extent HIPAA is applicable to certain arzil practice management software services offerey¢ care professionals,
believe those offerings are HIPAA compliant.

Laws pertaining to healthcare fraud and abuse couldmaterially adversely affect our business, financiacondition and
results of operations.

We may be subject to various federal, state arelgnrlaws pertaining to healthcare fraud and abns&jding antikickback laws
physician selfreferral laws and false claims laws. Violations tbése laws are punishable by criminal and civilcians
including, in some instances, exclusion from pgrtition in federal and state healthcare progranduding Medicare, Medicai
Veterans Administration health programs and TRICABHilarly, if the physicians or other providensemtities with whom w
do business are found to be naympliant with applicable laws, they may be subjecsanctions, which could indirectly hav
negative impact on our business, financial condiaiad results of operations. While we believe thatoperations are in mate|
compliance with such laws, because of the comphexfarreaching nature of these laws, there can be noassuthat we wou
not be required to alter one or more of our prastio be in compliance with these laws.

Indeed, changes in state laws and model codehiotdiave required us to alter certain of our caamgke efforts. For example,
April of 2009, Massachusetts issued regulationseging the conduct of pharmaceutical and medicaicdemanufacturers wi
respect to healthcare practitioners. This regulati@came effective on July 1, 2009 and sets forttatwnedical devic
manufacturers may and may not permissibly do watspect to providing meals, sponsoring continuinglioz education ar
otherwise providing payments or items of econon@ndiit to healthcare practitioners located withie state. Additionally, t
regulation requires medical device manufacturetsatze in place robust fraud and abuse complianogrgms. Other states (e
California, Vermont and Nevada) have adopted sintélars. The Advanced Medical Technology AssociatiddvaMed), a trac
association representing the interests of medieaicd manufacturers, has also released a revisdd ob ethics outlinin
permissible interactions with health care professi®. This code became effective July 1, 2009. &Haws, regulations a
guidance documents act to limit our marketing pcast require the dedication of resources to ensomgliance, and expose u
additional liabilities.

In addition, the recent Health Care Reform Law, agnother things, amends the intent requiremenhefféderal AntiKickback
Statute and certain criminal healthcare fraud t#atgo that a person or entity no longer needsite lactual knowledge of t
statute or specific intent to violate it in orderttave committed a violation. The Health Care Raftwtaw also provides that t
government may assert that a claim including itemservices resulting from a violation of theseigs constitutes a false
fraudulent claim for purposes of the civil Falsai@ls Act or the civil monetary penalties statute.
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Any violations of these laws or regulations cowddult in a material adverse effect on our busirfgsancial condition and resu
of operations. In addition, changes in these laaglations, or administrative or judicial interfaions, may require us to furtl
change our business practices or subject our egistusiness practices to legal challenges, whichdcleave a material adve
effect on our business, financial condition andilisof operations.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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The following is a summary of Cooper's principatiliies as of October 31, 2014 Cooper generally leases its office

operations facilities but owns several manufactuamd research and development facilities, inclydi05,850 square feet
Hamble, United Kingdom, 49,500 square feet in Swudle, New York, 63,787 square feet in Malov, Dearky and 33,630 sque
feet in Stafford, Texas. We also own Sauflon's cmafe headquarters in Twickenham, United Kingdor?, @16 square feet. C
lease agreements expire at various dates throwgpetr 2030. The Company believes its propertiesaitable and adequate

its businesses.

Location

AMERICAS

United States:
California

New York
Connecticut

Other United States
Puerto Rico
Brazil
Canada

EMEA
United Kingdom

Belgium
Denmark
France
Germany

Hungary
Italy
Netherlands
South Africa
Spain

AS A PACIFIC
Japan

Australia
Other Asia Pacific

Approximate
Square Feet

Operations

136,36

390,27
210,83

42,20(
333,12
17,54¢
11,64

675,55!

119,14¢
63,78’
12,38¢
75,88

158,30(
31,197
33,86¢
13,25(
30,67¢

74,68¢

33,95
55,52¢

Executive offices; CooperVision research & develeptrand administrative offices;
CooperSurgical manufacturing and distribution

CooperVision manufacturing, marketing, distributanmd administrative offices

CooperSurgical manufacturing, marketing, distribntiresearch & development and
administrative offices

CooperSurgical manufacturing; CooperVision marlgtin
CooperVision manufacturing and distribution
CooperVision marketing and distribution

CooperVision marketing

CooperVision manufacturing, marketing, distributioesearch & development and
administrative offices; CooperSurgical marketing

CooperVision distribution
CooperSurgical manufacturing, marketing and adriratise offices
CooperVision marketing and distribution; CooperScabmarketing

CooperVision marketing and distribution; Cooper$eagmanufacturing, marketing and
distribution

CooperVision manufacturing and marketing

CooperVision marketing and distribution; CooperSeabmarketing
CooperVision and CooperSurgical marketing and ihistion
CooperVision marketing and distribution

CooperVision marketing and distribution; CooperSecamarketing

CooperVision manufacturing, marketing, distributenmd administrative offices;
CooperSurgical marketing

CooperVision manufacturing, marketing, distributenmd administrative offices
CooperVision and CooperSurgical marketing and ihistion

33




THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

On or about November 11, 2014, Johnson & Johnsa@oWViCare (JJVC) filed an action in the districuoof Dusseldor
Germany, against CooperVision GmbH and CooperVijslan. (collectively “CooperVision”for patent infringement. In tl
action, JJVC alleges that certain CooperVision potsl infringe JJVG European Patent No. EP 1 754 728 B1, and isrwg
damages and to enjoin these products from seltin@earmany. CooperVision is challenging the validifythe patent before t
European Patent Office. CooperVision denies J3\Allegations of infringement and intends to deféredaction vigorously ai
to continue its challenge to the patent beforeEbsopean Patent Office. We are not in a positioagsess whether any los:
adverse effect on our financial condition is prdbaly remote or to estimate the range of potefdss, if any.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Sktwlder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seites.

Cooper's common stock, par value $0.10 per shauteaded on the New York Stock Exchange under yhasl “COO.” In the
table that follows, we indicate the high and lowWiisg prices of our common stock for each three-thqreriod of 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013
Quarterly Common Stock Price Range
Years Ended October 31, High Low High Low
Fiscal Quarter Ended
January 31 $ 135.0( $ 118.5¢ $ 102.47 $ 88.8(
April 30 $ 145.3: $ 116.9¢ $ 110.8¢ $ 100.2¢
July 31 $ 163.2: $ 127.0: $ 129.0¢ $ 105.7:
October 31 $ 166.5: $ 143.6: $ 135.4. $ 124.0(

At November 30, 2014, there were 489 common stddins of record.
Dividend Policy

Our current policy is to pay annual cash divideadour common stock of $0.06 per share, in two aemial payments of $0.
per share each. In dollar terms, we paid cash ifodehds of about $2.9 million in fiscal 2014 an®.$million in fiscal 201:
Dividends are paid when, as and if declared atltberetion of our Board of Directors from fundsaélg available for that purpos
Our Board of Directors periodically reviews our idend policy and considers the Company's earnifigancial conditior
liquidity needs, business plans and opportunitiesather factors in making and setting dividendgyol

Performance Graph
The following graph compares the cumulative togalim on the Company's common stock with the cutiweldotal return of th
Standard & Poor's Smallcap 600 Stock Index andStamdard & Poor's Health Care Equipment Index Her fiveyear perio

ended October 31, 2014The graph assumes that the value of the investmethe Company and in each index was $10
October 31, 2009, and assumes that all dividends veenvested.
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COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among The Cooper Companies, Inc., the S&P Smallcap 600 Index
and the S&P Health Care Equipment Index

£700 -

s'l} 1 i
10409 10/0 10011 10012 10/13 10/14
—&— The Cooper Companies, Inc. - S&P Smalicap 600 —-a— S&P Health Care Equipment

*$100 invested on 10/31/09 in stock or index, idahg reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending October 31.

Copyright© 2014 S&P, a division of The McGraw-Hlbmpanies Inc. All rights reserved.

10/09 10/10 10/11 10/12 10/13 10/14
The Cooper Companies, Inc. $ 100.0C $ 176.4: $ 248.0: $ 343.7¢ $ 463.0¢ $ 587.6¢
S&P Smallcap 600 $ 100.0C $ 126.27 $ 139.5¢ $ 158.5¢ $ 220.5! $ 241.0:

S&P Health Care Equipment $ 100.0C $ 104.0( $ 1108t $ 12657 $ 158.9. $ 197.9
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Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use Bfoceeds

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
During the three-month period ended October 31420te repurchased shares of our common stocKlas/fo

Maximum Approximate

Total Number of Dollar Value of Shares
Shares Purchased that May Yet Be
Total Number Average as Part of Publicly Purchased Under
of Shares Price Paid Announced Plans Publicly Announced
Period Purchased Per Share or Programs Plans or Programs
8/1/14 — 8/31/14 — 3 = — 3 211,500,00
9/1/14 —9/30/14 — $ — — $ 211,500,00
10/1/14 — 10/31/14 175,78t $ 146.6¢ 175,78t $ 185,700,00
Total 175,78t 175,78t

The transactions described in the table above septeghe repurchase of the Compangbmmon stock on the New York St
Exchange as part of the share repurchase progrprowesul by the Company’Board of Directors in December 2011 (2012 <
Repurchase Program). The program as amended imibec€012 and December 2013 provides authorizé&tioa total of $500.
million. Purchases under the 2012 Share Repurdissgram may be made from timetioie on the open market at prevalil
market prices or in privately negotiated transanxgiand are subject to a review of the circumstaimcpkace at the time and will
made from time to time as permitted by securitégsl and other legal requirements. This programmbasxpiration date and m
be discontinued at any time. At October 31, 20Qltfe remaining repurchase authorization under2®&2 Share Repurche
Program was approximately $185.7 million.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of Securities Remaining
Available for Future Issuance Under

Number of Securities to be Issued  Weighted-Average Exercise Equity Compensation Plans
Upon Exercise of Outstanding Price of Outstanding Options, (Excluding Securities Reflected in
Options, Warrants and Rights® Warrants and Rights Column A)
Plan Category (A) (B) (©)
Equity compensation plans
approved by shareholdé?s 1,922,603 $63.32 1,696,162
Equity compensation plans not
approved by shareholders — — —
Total 1,922,603 $63.32 1,696,162

W The amount of total securities to be issued uniderGompany's equity plans shown in Column A incduBie8,667 Restrict
Stock Units granted pursuant to the Company's g@iéns. These awards allow for the distributionsbéres to the gre
recipient upon the completion of tin@sed holding periods and do not have an assoaatdise price. Accordingly, the
awards are not reflected in the weightegrage exercise price disclosed in Column B. Art®un Column A do not refle
performance share awards without a final payout.

@ Includes information with respect to the Second Adesl and Restated 2007 Lofigrm Incentive Plan for Employees of -
Cooper Companies, Inc. (2007 Plan), which was ajgatdy stockholders on March 16, 2011, and providethe issuance
up to 5,230,000 shares of common stock, and therfdeAmended and Restated 2006 Long Term Incentiae fr Non-
Employee Directors of The Cooper Companies, Ine @irectors’Plan), which was approved by stockholders on Marg,
2011, and provides for the issuance of up to 9%0gb@res of common stock. As of October 31, 20fp401.,507,591 shares
common stock may be issued pursuant to the 2007 d&td 334,212 shares of common stock may be igsulestiant to tt
2006 Directors’ Plan.

Also includes information with respect to the 1996hg Term Incentive Plan for NoBmployee Directors (1996 Directc
Plan) and the Second Amended and Restated 2001 Temy Incentive Plan (2001 Plan) of The Cooper Camgs, Inc
which were originally approved by stockholders oarbh 21, 1996 and March 28, 2001. The 1996 Directlan and 20(
Plan have expired by their terms, but up to 80,80@res of common stock may be issued pursuant &mdawhat rema
outstanding under these plans.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

Five Year Financial Highlights

Years Ended October 31,

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
Consolidated Operations
Net sales $ 171777 ¢ 1,587,720 $ 1,445,113 $ 1,330,83 $ 1,158,51
Gross profit $ 1,091,571 $ 1,026,800 $ 924,01 $ 804,80: $ 676,72:
Income before income taxes $ 296,53 $ 312,27. $ 275,45, $ 192,76 $ 124,42t
Net income attributable to

Cooper stockholders $ 269,85¢ $ 296,15, $ 248,33¢ $ 175,43(  $ 112,80:
Diluted earnings per share attributable

to Cooper stockholders $ 551 $ 5.9¢ $ 5.08 % 365 $ 2.4¢
Number of shares used to compute

diluted earnings per share 48,96( 49,68t 49,15 48,30¢ 46,50¢
Dividends paid per share $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.06 $ 0.0€
Consolidated Financial Position
Current assets $ 79161 $ 747,24. % 657,86( $ 540,34 $ 491,34(
Property, plant and equipment, net 937,32! 739,86 640,25! 609,20! 593,88
Goodwill 2,220,92 1,387,61 1,370,24 1,276,56 1,261,971
Other intangible assets, net 453,60! 198,76¢ 214,78: 128,34 114,17
Other assets 54,87: 63,77 58,23¢ 70,05¢ 63,63¢

$ 4458341 $ 3,137,260 $ 294138 $ 2,62451 $ 2,525,01

Short-term debt $ 101,51¢ $ 4298 $ 2528 % 52,97¢ % 19,15¢
Other current liabilities 340,66- 278,26t 237,26¢ 214,22 180,36:
Long-term debt 1,280,83: 301,67( 348,42: 327,45: 591,97
Other liabilities 146,88! 90,84 117,25 92,37: 66,74"
Total liabilities 1,869,901 713,76 728,22t 687,03l 858,24.
Stockholders' equity 2,588,441 2,423,49. 2,213,15: 1,937,48i 1,666,77!

$ 445834 $ 3,137,260 $ 294138 $ 262451 $ 2,525,0%

In our fiscal fourth quarter of 2014, Cooper acgdiGauflon Pharmaceuticals Limited, as discusséeérim 7. Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operations and Note 2 of our notes tsalidated financial
statements.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations.

Note numbers refer (‘Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements” iml& Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

We discuss below the results of our operationgisoal 2014 compared with fiscal 2048d the results of our operations for fi
2013 compared with fiscal 2012 Certain prior period amounts have been reclaskifo conform to the current peric
presentation. We discuss our cash flows and cufirericial condition under “Capital Resources aiglidity.”

Outlook

Overall, we remain optimistic about the long-termogpects for the worldwide contact lens and womédrealthcare marke
However, events affecting the economy as a whalduding the uncertainty and instability of glolmarkets driven by Unite
States and European debt concerns, the Affordaate Bct, including the trend of consolidation wittthe healthcare indust
and the economic downturn in Japan together withiga currency volatility, particularly the yen,reuand the pound, impact
current performance and continue to represenkdaisur performance for fiscal year 2015.

CooperVision - We compete in the worldwide contact lens markeh witr spherical, toric and multifocal contact lenséered i
a variety of materials including using silicone hygel Aguaform® technology and phosphorylcholine technology |
Technology™. We believe that there will be lowentamt lens wearer dropout rates as technology iv@sr@and enhances
wearing experience through a combination of impdodesigns and materials and the growth of prefemedalities such
singleuse and monthly wearing options. CooperVision =ufed on greater worldwide market penetration asnweduce ne\
products and continue to expand our presence gtiggiand emerging markets, including through asitjons.

Sales of contact lenses utilizing silicone hydrapaterials, a major product material in the indygtave grown significantly. O
ability to compete successfully with a full randesicone hydrogel products is an important fadtmachieving our desired futt
levels of sales growth and profitability. Coopetigis markets monthly and twaeek silicone hydrogel spherical and toric
products under our Biofinit§ and Avaira® brands, a monthly multifocal silicone hydrogel lemgler Biofinity and a singlase
spherical silicone hydrogel lens under MyDdy

We believe that the global market for single-usetact lenses will continue to grow and that comjpwetisilicone hydrogel single-
use products are gaining market share and thatrdmgsent a risk to our business. We compete Mitbay, our singledse
spherical silicone hydrogel lens, and our Procle@ay products including Procleérl Day multifocal. We forecast increas
demand for our existing and future singlee products. To meet this anticipated demands@alf2015 we plan to continue
implementation of capital projects to invest inrgsed single-use manufacturing capacity.

Consistent with this strategy, on August 6, 2014 acquired Sauflon Pharmaceuticals Limited (Salflen privatelyhelc
European manufacturer and distributor of soft carienses and aftercare solutions. The acquisitfiddauflon expands our cont
lens product portfolio particularly with Sauflor¢kriti® 1day brand of singlese sphere, toric and multifocal silicone hydr
lenses. Clariti lenses received United States FI2arance in August 2013. Sauflon is headquarteréte United Kingdom ai
has a global presence with manufacturing facilitiethe United Kingdom and Hungary.
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We paid approximately $1,131.1 million for Sauflaonsisting of approximately $1,073.2 million irsbaand approximately $5¢
million in the form of loan notes. We financed thequisition with available offshore cash and créaiilities along with func
from the new $700.0 million term loan facility debed below and in the notes to consolidated fir@rstatements. We are in-
process of determining the purchase price allopafar this acquisition which is described in moretal in the notes
consolidated financial statements.

The Sauflon acquisition is intended to accelerdagegrowth in sales of our single-use products kabkng a multi-tier, singlesse
strategy with a full suite of hydrogel and silicomgdrogel product offerings in the major productegaries of sphere, toric
multifocal lenses. This acquisition is also intethd® provide for enhanced relationships with keyrdpean retailers al
opportunities for operational synergies.

CooperSurgical - Our CooperSurgical business competes in the hiffsigmented medical device segment of the wor
healthcare market. CooperSurgical has steadily igribsv market presence and distribution system byeldg@ing products ar
acquiring companies and products that complemanbitsiness model. In October 2014, CooperSurgicalieed EndoSe
Corporation, a developer of an offibased disposable hysteroscopy system that has FEa#aoce. We paid $44.0 million
EndoSee and expect the acquisition to be neutrahtnings per share excluding acquisition costsrataded amortization. V'
intend to continue to invest in CooperSurgical'sibess through acquisitions of companies and ptolihues. CooperSurgic
product sales are categorized based on the poiheathcare delivery including products used in iceddoffice and surgic
procedures by obstetricians and gynecologists yoisigthat represented 65% of CooperSurgical's akdssin fiscal 201.
CooperSurgical's remaining sales are products usddrtility clinics that now represent 35% of Cawfurgical's net sal
compared to 33% in fiscal 2013.

Capital Resources - On August 4, 2014, we entered into a thyear, $700.0 million senior unsecured term loare@grent by ar
among the Company, the lenders party thereto ary@#®k National Association as administrative agéiis syndicated cret
facility will mature and the balance is payableAugust 4, 2017. There is no amortization of priatipand we may prepay lo
balances from time to time, in whole or in parttheut premium or penalty. We utilized this facility fund the acquisition
Sauflon Pharmaceuticals Limited, as well as to pi®working capital and for general corporate psgso

At October 31, 2014, we had $25.2 million in cagtimarily outside the United States, and $720.3ionilavailable under o
existing revolving Credit Agreement. The $700.0lignl term loan entered into on August 4, 2014, #rel$300.0 million ten
loan entered into on September 12, 2013, remaistanding as of October 31, 2014. In our fiscal touquarter of 2014, v
completed the acquisition of Sauflon for $1.13idil| discussed above. Looking forward, our casharadlability under existir
credit facilities will be reduced due to the usecath outside the United States and the use direxisredit facilities to fund tf
acquisition of Sauflon. We believe that our casti aash equivalents, cash flow from operating aitiswiand borrowing capac
under existing credit facilities, including the Awgg 4, 2014, $700.0 million term loan, will fundesptions both in the next
months and in the longer term as well as curredt langtierm cash requirements for capital expenditureguiaitions, shal
repurchases and cash dividends. However, deperulintpe size or timing of these business activities, may seek to rai
additional debt financing.
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2014 Compared with 2013
Highlights: 2014 vs. 2013

e Net sales up 8% to $1.72 billion from $1.59 billionfiscal year 201
» Gross margin 64% of net sales down from !

* Operating income up 0.2% to $306.5 million from $30million

» Interest expense down 13% to $8.0 million from $8iltion

» Diluted earnings per share down 8% to $5.51 fror8€

« Operating cash flow $454.8 million up 9% from $4LBillion

Fiscal 2014 preax results include $35.7 million for amortizatiohintangible assets and $62.8 million of acquisitiintegratio
and restructuring costs primarily related to thquasition of Sauflon. We expect amortization ofaimgible assets will recur
future periods; however, the amounts are affectedhb timing and size of our acquisitions. Expensesh as the acquisiti
related and integration expenses generally dimiaigdr time with respect to past acquisitions. Hogvewe generally will inct
similar expenses in connection with any future &itjons. We incurred significant expenses in cariog with our acquisitior
and also incurred certain other operating expeos@gome, which we generally would not have otlisewncurred in the perio
presented as a part of our continuing operatiorayMf these costs relate to our acquisition offi&aun our fiscal fourth quart
of 2014. Acquisition related and integration exmmneonsist of personnel related costs for tramsitiemployees, other acqui
employee related costs and integration relatedepsidnal services. Restructuring expenses corigshployee severance, prod
rationalization, facility and other exit costs.

The fiscal 2014 integration and restructuring cdstdude $16.5 million in charges to cost of sapgmarily for produc
rationalization arising from the acquisition of 8an. The charge for product rationalization is éd®n our review of produc
materials and manufacturing processes of Sauflariuded in our selling, general and administragx@ense (SGA) is $4<
million in costs for CooperVision's acquisition $&uflon and the related integration and restrungugictivities, severance cost:
our CooperSurgical fertility business along witheat acquisition costs. Research and developmemneepincludes $0.6 milli
of severance costs related to integration andugsiiing activities.

Fiscal 2013 preax results include $30.2 million for amortizatiohintangible assets, a $21.1 million loss on dite® of Aime

$14.1 million of insurance proceeds related to siriss interruption claim and $0.6 million of costeluded in SGA expen:
related to the acquisition of Origio.
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Selected Statistical Information — Percentage of N&ales

2014 vs. 2013 2013 vs. 2012
Years Ended October 31, 2014 % Change 2013 % Change 2012
Net sales 10C% 8% 10C% 1C% 10C%
Cost of sales 36% 12% 35% 8% 36%
Gross profit 64% 6% 65% 11% 64%
Selling, general and administrative expense 40% 12% 38% 8% 3%
Research and development expense 4% 13% 1% 14% 4%
Amortization of intangibles 2% 18% 2% 2€% 1%
Loss on divestiture of Aime — — 2% — —
Operating income 18% 0.2% 19% 8% 2C%

Net Sales
Our two business units, CooperVision and CoopeiiSaliggenerate all of our sales.

» CooperVision develops, manufactures and marketsoadbrange of soft contact lenses for the worldwiddon correctio
market.

» CooperSurgical develops, manufactures and markedtscal devices and procedure solutions to impraadthcare delivery
women.

Net Sales Growth by Business Unit

Our consolidated net sales grew by $130.0 milliofiscal 2014 and $142.6 million in 2013:

($ in millions) 2014 vs. 2013 % Change 2013 vs. 2012 % Change

CooperVision $ 124.: 10% $ 79.1 7%

CooperSurgical 5.7 2% 63.5 25%
$ 130.( 8% $ 142.¢ 10%

CooperVision Net Sales
The contact lens market has two major product caies;
» Spherical lenses including lenses that correat+and farsightedness uncomplicated by more compkxavidefect:

» Toric and multifocal lenses including lensestthia addition to correcting neaand farsightedness, address more con
visual defects such as astigmatism and presbyopiadding optical properties of cylinder and axishiah correct fc
irregularities in the shape of the cornea.

In order to achieve comfortable and healthy contert wear, products are sold with recommendedcepient schedules, of
defined as modalities, with the primary modalitiesing single-use, twareek and monthly. CooperVision offers spher
aspherical, toric, multifocal and toric multifodahs products in most modalities.

The contact lens market consists primarily of shagde and frequently replaced lenses. Singkeienses are designed for ¢
replacement and frequently replaced lenses argrdsssifor twoweek or monthly replacement. Significantly, the kedrfo
spherical lenses is growing with value-added sphélenses to
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alleviate dry eye symptoms as well as lenses vafinarical optical properties or higher oxygen pexinhe lenses such as silict
hydrogels.

CooperVisions Proclear brand aspheric, toric and multifocaltacinlenses, manufactured using PC Technology, éelanc
tissue/device compatibility and offer improved leosnfort.

CooperVisions Biofinity brand silicone hydrogel spherical, toand multifocal contact lenses, Avaira brand spheand tori
products and MyDay, our silicone hydrogel singge products, are manufactured using proprietaryafggm technology
increase oxygen transmissibility for longer weare Yé&lieve the clariti singlase silicone hydrogel lens products acquired
Sauflon are important to address increased prefsumemultifocal and singletse silicone hydrogel products offered by our n
competitors.

CooperVision fiscal 2014 net sales increased 1@ fiiscal 2013 to $1.4 billion including Sauflomet sales, subsequent to
acquisition, of $49.7 million CooperVision net sales growth included increasdstal sphere lenses up 9%, representing 5¢
net sales, the same as the prior year, and taiallemses up 11%, representing 31% of net sahessame as in the prior ye
Total multifocal lenses grew 21% to 11% of net salp from 10% in the prior year on increased saleBiofinity monthly anc
Proclear single-use multifocal products. Totalksitie hydrogel products, including MyDay, our singée silicone hydrogel let
and Sauflon's silicone hydrogel products, includitagiti, grew 27%, representing 49% of net salegram 43% in the prior ye:
Excluding Sauflon, silicone hydrogel products gr2®f6. Proclear product sales grew 6% and represeidéd of net sale
compared to 25% in the prior year. CooperVisiofteioconventional lens products, including cosmksitses, declined 12% ¢
now represent 2% of net sales compared to 3% ipribeyear. The year over year comparison of akgssalso reflects no sale:
fiscal 2014 of Aime products, divested on OctolkrZ)13, as compared to $25.8 million of net saldscal 2013.

CooperVision competes in the worldwide soft contlects market and services three primary regions: Americas, EME,
(Europe, Middle East and Africa) and Asia Pacific.

CooperVision Net Sales by Geography

($ in millions) 2014 2013 % Change
Americas $ 585.: $ 546.2 7%
EMEA 533.¢ 439.¢ 22%
Asia Pacific 273.t 282.% (3)%
$ 1,392.¢ % 1,268.: 10 %

CooperVision's worldwide net sales grew 10% in ykar-toyear comparison, including Sauflon as discussegebdmericas n
sales grew 7%, primarily due to market gains of ggo¥ision’s silicone hydrogel contact lenses alanth singleuse sphere al
multifocal products. EMEA net sales increased 224narily driven by increased sales of silicone logkl lenses includir
Sauflon's silicone hydrogel singlese products. Net sales to the Asia Pacific redexreased 3% due to the negative impact «
weakening of the Japanese yen compared to thedJ8ites dollar. Excluding the impact of currersales in the Asia Paci
region grew on market gains of silicone hydrogesks and single-use products, including Procledtifoual single-use lenses.

CooperVisions net sales growth was driven primarily by increasethe volume of lenses sold, including receimliyoducet
silicone hydrogel products and products from thquésition of Sauflon. While unit growth and produwix have influence
CooperVision's sales growth, average realized prineproduct have not materially influenced salesvth.
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CooperSurgical Net Sales

CooperSurgical participates in the market for woméealthcare with its diversified product linegdisn fertility procedures al
by gynecologists and obstetricians in surgical pdoces and in the medical office. With the July2@tquisition of Origio a/s,
global invitro fertilization (IVF) medical device company,o@perSurgical develops, manufactures and distrsbunghly
specialized products that target IVF treatment witfpal to make fertility treatment safer, moreceght and convenient.

Year Ended October 31, % Net % Net %

($ in millions) 2014 Sales 2013 Sales Change

Office and surgical procedures $ 211.¢ 65% $ 213.¢ 67% ()%

Fertility 113.2 35% 106.( 33% 7%
$ 325.1 10(% $ 319.¢ 10C% 204

CooperSurgical's net sales of fertility productsréased primarily due to market gains of disposabdelucts partially offset |
slower growth in sales of medical equipment. Thelide in net sales of medical office and surgicalgedures by ob/gyns w
primarily due to declines in sales of medical equept offset in part by growth in sales of disposghioducts.

CooperSurgical’'s sales primarily comprise wonsehkalthcare products used in fertility proceduard by gynecologists a
obstetricians in surgical procedures and in theica¢dffice. The balance consists of sales of nadievices outside of women’
healthcare which CooperSurgical does not activelyket. Unit growth and product mix, primarily satedertility products, alon
with increased average realized prices on dispegatolducts influenced sales growth.
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2013 Compared with 2012

Highlights: 2013 vs. 2012

* Net sales up 10% to $1.6 billion from $1.4 billiorfiscal year 201
* Gross margin 65% of net sales up from |

» Operating income up 8% to $305.9 million from $28aillion

* Interest expense down 22% to $9.2 million from 8Irillion

» Diluted earnings per share up 18% to $5.96 frord%

» Operating cash flow $415.9 million up 32% from $318illion

Fiscal 2013 préax results included $30.2 million for amortizatiohintangible assets, a $21.1 million loss on sliitere of Aime
$14.1 million of insurance proceeds related to sir®ss interruption claim and $0.6 million of costkated to the acquisition
Origio.

Fiscal 2012 preax results included $24.0 million for amortizatiohintangible assets, a $1.4 million loss relatedhe May 31
2012, amendment to our revolving Credit Agreemant] costs related to the acquisition of Origio ¢stitgy of $4.9 million i
direct acquisition costs and a $0.4 million nehgailated to the repayment of debt acquired recbimiéterest expense.

Selected Statistical Information — Percentage of N&ales

2013 vs. 2012 2012 vs. 2011
Years Ended October 31, 2013 % Change 2012 % Change 2011
Net sales 10C% 10% 10C% 9 % 10C%
Cost of sales 35% 8% 36% (1)% 40%
Gross profit 65% 11% 64% 15% 60%
Selling, general and administrative
expense 38% 8% 3% 10% 38%
Research and development expense 1% 14% 4% 19% 3%
Amortization of intangibles 2% 26% 1% 17% 2%
Loss on divestiture of Aime 2% — — — —
Operating income 19% 8% 20% 25 0 17%

Net Sales Growth by Business Unit

Our consolidated net sales grew by $142.6 milliofiscal 2013 and $114.3 million in 2012:

($ in millions) 2013 vs. 2012 % Change 2012 vs. 2011 % Change

CooperVision $ 79.1 7% $ 68.1 6%

CooperSurgical 63.5 25% 46.2 22%
$ 142.¢ 10% $ 114.2 9%
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CooperVision Net Sales

CooperVision fiscal 2013 net sales growth includemteases in total sphere lenses up 4%, repregeb@th of net sales and tc
toric lenses up 9%, representing 31% of net sdletl multifocal lenses grew 29% to 10% of net salp from 8% in the pri
year on increased sales of Biofinity monthly anddRrar singl-use multifocal products. Silicone hydrogel produateluding
MyDay, our singledse silicone hydrogel lens, grew 26% worldwiderespnting 43% of net sales up from 36% in the prear
Proclear product sales grew 6% as compared tortbeyear and represented 25% of net sales, the senthe prior year. Olc
conventional lens products, including cosmeticésnsleclined 12% and represented 3% of net shkesaime as the prior year.

CooperVision competes in the worldwide soft contects market and services three primary regions: Americas, EME,
(Europe, Middle East and Africa) and Asia Pacific.

CooperVision Net Sales by Geography

($ in millions) 2013 2012 % Change
Americas $ 546.2 $ 498.¢ 9%
EMEA 439.¢ 402.: 9%
Asia Pacific 282.5 288.( (2)%
$ 1,268.0 $ 1,189.: 7 %

CooperVision's fiscal 2013 worldwide net sales gréd in the year-tgrear comparison. Americas net sales grew 9%, pilin
due to market gains of CooperVision’s silicone logg contact lenses along with singlee sphere and multifocal produ
EMEA net sales increased 9% primarily driven byesaif silicone hydrogel lenses and singse sphere and multifocal produ
Net sales to the Asia Pacific region decreased @é4a the negative impact of the weakening of ppadese yen compared to
United States dollar. Excluding the impact of coog sales in the Asia Pacific region grew on miagans of silicone hydrog
lenses and single-use products.

CooperVisions net sales growth was driven primarily by increasethe volume of lenses sold and introductiomev product:
primarily silicone hydrogel lenses. While unit gibmand product mix have influenced CooperVisgsales growth, avere
realized prices by product have not materiallyuaficed sales growth.

CooperSurgical Net Sales

CooperSurgica fiscal 2013 net sales increased 25% from fis€dl22to $319.4 million with net sales growth exchg
acquisitions of 3%. Sales of products used inlfigriilinics now represent 33% of net sales comgaoe16% in the prior year d
to the acquisition of Origio in July 2012. Salespobducts used in medical office and surgical ptdoices by ob/gyns declined :
as compared to the prior year and now represent 67%ooperSurgical's net sales compared to 84%hén fdrior yea
CooperSurgical’s sales primarily comprise wonsehealthcare products used in fertility procedued by gynecologists a
obstetricians in surgical procedures and in theicaédffice. The balance consists of sales of madievices outside of women’
healthcare which CooperSurgical does not activelyket. Unit growth and product mix, primarily satedertility products, alon
with increased average realized prices on dispegablducts influenced organic sales growth.

Acquisition of Origio: On July 11, 2012, we completed a voluntary tend&er dor the outstanding shares of Origio a/s
purchase price of Norwegian krone (NOK) 28 per shiarcash, or $147.4 million, and acquired abo® 3 the outstandir
shares. During our fiscal fourth quarter of 2014 aaor fiscal first
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quarter of 2013, we completed a mandatory redempgticbtain the remaining shares in accordance thghDanish Compani
Act. We, through our subsidiaries, financed theugition with available offshore cash and credtiliies. Origio is a global in-
vitro fertilization (IVF) medical device companyathdevelops, manufactures and distributes hightgigfized products that tar
IVF treatment with a goal to make fertility treatmiesafer, more efficient and convenient. Based aldV, Denmark, Origio h:
approximately 320 employees. We assumed about $4iflidn of Origio's debt that we repaid concurrerith the acquisition. Ol
allocation of the purchase price at fair value udeld amortizable intangible assets of $107.7 milkmd goodwill of $103
million. We incurred $4.9 million of acquisition ts which were primarily reported as selling, gahand administrative exper
in our Consolidated Statement of Income. See Ndbe additional information.

2014 Compared to 2013 and 2013 Compared to 2012

Cost of Sales/Gross Profit

Gross Profit Percentage of Net Sales 2014 2013 2012

CooperVision 63% 65% 63%
CooperSurgical 64% 64% 66%
Consolidated 64% 65% 64%

The decrease in CooperVision's gross margin wasapily attributable to acquisition-related item&grsup costs of MyDay, ol
singleuse silicone hydrogel contact lens, and the effetfereign currency changes. Sales of lower groasgin products frol
the August 2014 acquisition of Sauflon represed#dof net sales in the year, and we expect Saugftoss margin to be abc
mid-fifty percent in the near term. Gross margin wagatieely impacted by inventory and equipment chsarte rationaliz
products, primarily our Avaira toric contact lenséssed on our review of Sauflon's products, malterand manufacturil
processes. Gross margin was also impacted bywgiardsts of MyDay as this new product has onlymdgechieved low double-
digit gross margin that includes the impact of énidy new manufacturing capacity. Foreign currenafavorably impacted gro
margin as we reported lower net sales on produdtsis Japan due to the weakening of the Japaneseay compared to |
United States dollar, particularly in our fiscaufth quarter of 2014. The decreases in gross mavgne partially offset by tt
increase in sales of higher margin Biofinity produand the favorable impact on gross margin dubeadivestiture of Aime |
October 2013.

CooperSurgical's gross margin remained flat farali2014 as compared to fiscal 2013 primarily dudatorable product mi
offset by restructuring costs in the fertility busss. A greater percentage of our sales were highagin disposable products i
the percentage of lower margin equipment salesmiétility products declined as well.

Selling, General and Administrative Expense (SGA)

% Net % Net % Net

($ in millions) 2014 Sales % Change 2013 Sales % Change 2012 Sales
CooperVision $ 518. 37% 16% $  448. 35% 3% $ 433t 36%
CooperSurgical 113.¢ 35% (4% 118.t 37% 27% 93.C 36%

Corporate 51t — 17 % 44.C — 15% 38.4 —
$ 683.1 40% 129% $ 610.7 38% 8% $ 564. 309%

Consolidated SGA increased to 40% of net salesaalf2014 from 38% of net sales in fiscal 2013 a8&b of net sales in fisc
2012.
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The increase in CooperVision's SGA in fiscal 20b#pared to fiscal 2013 in absolute dollars and psraentage of net sale:
primarily due to operating expenses of Sauflon approximately $42.3 million of acquisition, restiwéng and integration cos
largely made up of legal fees, professional fea$ severance costs expensed in fiscal 2014. Iniaddiv the acquisition al
integration activities related to Sauflon, Coopeibdin continues to invest in sales and marketingréanote our silicone hydrog
products, including MyDay, to reach new customeic support geographic expansion.

The 3% increase in CooperVision's SGA in fiscal 2@&bmpared to fiscal 2012 in absolute dollars isnarily due to oL
investment in sales and marketing, including inseglaheadcount, to reach new customers and supgographic expansic
Programs included the promotion of our siliconerbgel products, including MyDay, our singlse spherical silicone hydro
lens, and Proclear 1 Day multifocal in Japan.

The decrease in CooperSurgical's SGA in fiscal 2@ipared to fiscal 2013 in absolute dollars and psrcentage of net sale
primarily due to efficiencies as a result of casttrol measures in fiscal 2014 and costs includefiscal 2013 for acquisition a
integration activities related to Origio. Cooperdoal continues to invest in sales activities torpote our products, with emphe
on products used in surgical procedures, and threaw customers. The medical excise tax that becgfactive on January
2013, on sales of CooperSurgical's products irthieed States was $2.9 million in fiscal 2014 coneplato $2.4 million in fisci
2013.

The 27% increase in CooperSurgical's SGA in absalallars in fiscal 2013 as compared to fiscal 2ahd the increase a
percentage of net sales is primarily due to opsgagxpenses related to Origio, including approxatya$0.6 million of acquisitio
costs in fiscal 2013.

Corporate headquarters’ SGA increased 17% in atesdbllars in fiscal 2014 primarily due to incredstarebased compensati
costs and acquisitiorelated professional service costs. The 15% growtbsolute dollars in fiscal 2013 as comparedgoal
2012 was primarily due to increased share-basegbensation costs.

Research and Development Expense (R&D)

% Net % Net % Net

($ in millions) 2014 Sales % Change 2013 Sales % Change 2012 Sales
CooperVision $ 52.Z 4% 13% $ 46.£ 4% 1C% $ 42.: 4%
CooperSurgical 14.C 4% 12% 12.¢ 4% 32% 9.4 4%
$ 66.2 4% 12% 5 58.¢ 4% 14% 5 51.7 4%

The sequential increases in CooperVision's R&Dosotute dollars over the fiscal years presenteghanearily due to investmer
in new technologies, clinical trials and increadsehdcount. CooperVisios' R&D activities are primarily focused on
development of new contact lens designs and nowdecSauflon's R&D activities related to productdamanufacturin
improvements and new contact lens designs.

The sequential increases in CooperSurgical's R&RKsolute dollars over the fiscal years presemetlide the shift towa
investment in projects to develop new products @lanth the upgrade of existing products. Coopertgats research a
development activities include in-vitro fertilizati product development and the design and upgresiergical procedure devices.

Divested Operation

On October 31, 2013, we completed a transactiosetoAime, our rigid gagpermeable contact lens and solutions busine
Japan, to Nippon Contact Lens Inc. The business osigially obtained as part of the December 1, ®RCdcquisition whic
included obtaining the rights to market Biofinity Japan. The divestiture was consistent with Coéipem’s strategy to focus
its core soft contact lens business.
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Additionally, Aime revenue had declined in receetipds, and the products had lower than average@anynmargins.

We recorded a prax loss of approximately $21.1 million in our Cohdated Statement of Income for fiscal 2013. Rissiubrr
operations of Aime are included in our Consolida®&atements of Income for fiscal 2013 and 2012,wadave not segrega
the results of operations or net assets of Aimeuwrfinancial statements for any period presentéé. disposition of the assets .
liabilities of Aime did not qualify for classificen as discontinued operations as CooperVision tags continuing involveme
through a distribution arrangement with Aime fanaimum of three years post divestiture.

Amortization of Intangibles

Amortization of intangibles was $35.7 million irs€al 2014, $30.2 million in fiscal 2013 and $24.0iom in fiscal 2012. Th
18% increase in fiscal 2014 as compared to fisGdl32and the 26% increase in fiscal 2013 as compardiscal 2012 wel
primarily due to intangible assets from acquissigmimarily the acquisition of Sauflon in Augustl20and Origio in July 201
We expect amortization in fiscal 2015 to be apprately $13.7 million in the fiscal first quarterca$12.8 million in each of tl
fiscal second through fourth quarters primarily duéntangible assets acquired with Sauflon, offgeintangible assets relatec
acquired technology which will become fully amoetilz

Settlements

On December 2, 2011, CooperVision and RembrandoWisechnologies, L.P. entered into a settlemeneéergent under whi
CooperVision agreed to make a lump sum paymenf@f@million to Rembrandt, and Rembrandt executedvenant not to si
regarding patent infringement claims. We recordetiarge in selling, general and administrative egpdor the settlement in ¢
fiscal fourth quarter of 2011.

Operating Income

Operating income grew about $0.6 million in fis2@tl4 from fiscal 2013 and increased $22.5 millior8% in fiscal 2013 froi
fiscal 2012.

% Net 2014 vs. 2013 % Net 2013 vs. 2012 % Net
($.in millions) 2014 Sales % Change 2013 Sales % Change 2012 Sales
CooperVision $ 289.( 21% — $ 289: 23% 10% $ 262.¢ 22%
CooperSurgical 69.C 21% 14% 60.¢€ 19% 3% 59.C 23%
Corporate (51.5) — 17% (44.0 — (15)% (38.9) —

$ 306.f 18% 02% $ 305.¢ 19% 8% $ 283« 20%

The consolidated operating income in fiscal 20IMai@ed flat as compared to fiscal 2013 primarilg do the increase in grc
profit of 6%, offset by the increase in operatixgpenses of 9%. The decreases in consolidated aope@dision operating incor
as a percentage of sales in fiscal 2014 as compargsical 2013 was due to the acquisition, restniicg and integration cos
primarily related to Sauflon, discussed above, @@ in cost of sales and operating expenses. €8oggcal's operating incor
in fiscal 2014 increased in absolute dollars and psrcentage of net sales due to the increas®ss grofit of 2% and decrease
total operating expense of 3%.

The increase in consolidated operating incomesiefi2013 as compared to fiscal 2012 in absolutardavas primarily due to tl
increase in gross profit of 11%, partially offset the increase in operating expenses of 13%. Tleedse in consolidat
operating income as a percentage of sales in f&¥E8 as compared to fiscal 2012 was primarily tduthe $21.1 million loss «
divestiture of Aime, discussed above, recordedoierating expenses for CooperVision.
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Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased 13% to $8.0 milliorsgalf 2014 representing 0.5% of net sales in fi20d¥ as compared to 0.6%
net sales in fiscal 2013. The fiscal 2014 decreeBlects lower average debt and lower averagedsteates in the current fis
year. We expect to have higher interest expensieeimear term on higher average debt as a resdilafincurred in connecti
with the August 2014 acquisition of Sauflon. Thé@@D million term loan, entered into on August 812 and discussed abc
the $300.0 million term loan, entered into on Segiter 12, 2013, as well as about $279.7 million araw our existing revolvir
Credit Agreement were outstanding as of OctobeB814 compared to $300.2 million in debt outstagdia of October 31, 2013.

Interest expense decreased 22% to $9.2 milliorsaalf 2013 constituting 0.6% of net sales in fis2@13 as compared to 0.8%
net sales in fiscal 2012. The fiscal 2013 decreeffects lower average debt and lower averagedsteates.

Insurance Proceeds

On October 28, 2011, a manufacturing building i@ thited Kingdom experienced an incident in whicpifge broke in our fir
suppression system, causing water and fire retafdam damage to the facility. While this incidettl not substantially impe
our existing customers, the repairs to the facditgl resultant decrease in manufacturing capauipacted the timing of marketi
initiatives to generate additional sales. In Jan&13, we resolved our business interruption chaith our insurer for a total
$19.1 million. We received payments of $Balllion in our fiscal fourth quarter of 2012. In ofiscal first quarter of 2013, v
recorded the remaining $14.1 million in our Cordated Statement of Income of which we received gaynof $2.9million
during the fiscal first quarter of 2013 and paymefithe remaining $11.2 million in the fiscal sedajyuarter of 2013.

Losses on Extinguishment of Debt
In fiscal 2012, we recorded a $1.4 million lossted to the amendment to our revolving Credit Agreet on May 31, 2012.

Other Expense (Income), Net

Years Ended October 31,

(In millions) 2014 2013 2012

Foreign exchange loss (gain) $ 2¢ % 0.1) $ 1t

Other, net (0.9 (1.3 2.7
$ 2C $ (1.4 $ (0.2)

The fiscal 2014 foreign exchange loss includessa &d $1.1 million on forward contracts relatedre acquisition of Sauflon.
Provision for Income Taxes

We recorded income tax expense of $24.7 milliofiscal 2014 compared to $15.4 million in fiscal 30Dur effective tax ra
(ETR) (provision for income taxes divided by pretagome) for fiscal 2014 was 8.3% and 4.9% fordis®013. The increase
the ETR in fiscal 2014 reflects the inclusion ie fiscal 2013 ETR of several discrete items cauaingduction in that year. The
items related primarily to the statutory income tate reduction in the United Kingdom and the realesf the R&D tax credit i
the United States.

The ETR is below the United States statutory rata majority of our income is earned in foreigrigdictions with lower tax rat
reflecting the shift in the geographic mix of incemuring recent periods with income
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earned in foreign jurisdictions increasing as comagao income earned in the United States. As altrebe ratio of domesit
income to worldwide income has decreased over tdismal years effectively lowering the overall teate due to the fact that-
tax rates in the majority of foreign jurisdictiomfiere we operate are significantly lower than tagusory rate in the United Stat

The impact on our provision for income taxes ofoime earned in foreign jurisdictions being taxedaa¢s different than tl
United States federal statutory rate was a beo&fpproximately $85.5 million and a foreign efigettax rate of approximate
2.6% in our fiscal year 2014 compared to $97.0iomilland a foreign effective tax rate of approximhat®6% in our fiscal ye:
2013. The foreign jurisdictions with lower tax rmatas compared to the United States federal statute that had the mq
significant impact on our provision for foreign ormoe taxes in the fiscal years presented includeJtiited Kingdom, Barbad:
and Puerto Rico. See the notes to consolidateddiabstatements for additional information.

Share Repurchases

In December 2011, our Board of Directors authoriaeshare repurchase program and subsequently ach#reléotal repurcha
authorization to $500.0 million. The program hasempiration date and may be discontinued at ang.tiDuring fiscal 2014, v
repurchased 572 thousand shares of our common f&tio8k5.8 million at an average purchase pric81#2.49 per share. Duri
fiscal 2013, we repurchased 1.4 million sharesufammmon stock for $167.3 million at an averagecpase price of $117.78 |
share. At October 31, 2014, we had remaining aigion to repurchase about $185.7 million of cemenon stock. See the nc
to consolidated financial statements for additionsdrmation.

Share-Based Compensation Plans

We grant various shafgased compensation awards, including stock optipadprmance shares, restricted stock and resl
stock units. The shateased compensation and related income tax beeefignized in the consolidated financial statemex
fiscal 2014 was $38.7 million and $11.7 millionspectively, compared to $30.4 million and $8.8 imnil] respectively, in fisc
2013. As of October 31, 2014, there was $54.0 onilbf total unrecognized share-based compensatisinrelated to nomestet
awards: $4.9 million for stock options; $40.9 naifli for restricted stock units; and $8.2 million foerformance shares. 1
unrecognized compensation is expected to be repegnbver weighted average remaining vesting perafd8.0 years fc
nonvested stock options, 3.4 years for restrictedksunits and 1.6 years for performance sharesh Caceived from optio
exercised under all shabased compensation arrangements for fiscal 20143 a6d 2012 was $8.6 million, $19.3 million .
$55.1 million, respectively.

We estimate the fair value of each stock optionrdvea the date of grant using the Bla8kholes valuation model, which requ
management to make estimates regarding expectathdifé, stock price volatility and other assunapis. The use of differe
assumptions could lead to a different estimateaofvalue. The expected life of the stock optiorb&sed on the observed
expected time to postesting forfeiture and/or exercise. Groups of erygés that have similar historical exercise behaaie
considered separately for valuation purposes. tfassumption for the expected life increased by year, the fair value of .
individual option granted in fiscal 2014 would hawereased by approximately $3.50. To determinestioek price volatility
management considers implied volatility from pultitaded options on the Company's stock at the datgramt, historice
volatility and other factors. If our assumption f&tock price volatility increased by one percentpget, the fair value of ¢
individual option granted in fiscal 2014 would hamereased by less than $1.

We estimate stock option forfeitures based on tisbdata for each employee grouping and adjestdte of expected forfeitul

periodically. The adjustment of the forfeiture ratél result in a cumulative catchp adjustment in the period the forfeit
estimate is changed.
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We grant performance units that provide for theasge of common stock to certain executive offieerd other key employee:
the Company achieves specified long-term performayuals over a thregear period. We estimate the fair value of eachrdwe
the date of grant based on the current market pficeir common stock. The total amount of compeosatxpense recogniz
reflects our initial assumptions of the achievemeinthe performance goals and the estimated forieitates. We review c
assessment of the probability of the achievemetit@performance goals each fiscal quarter. Ifgibals are not achieved or i
determined that achievement of the goals is nabaiste, previously recognized compensation expensaljusted to reflect t
expected achievement. If we determine that achieme¢mwf the goals will exceed the original assess$naatditional compensati
expense is recognized.
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CAPITAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

2014 Highlights

» Operating cash flow $454.8 million up from $415.8lion in fiscal 201!

» Expenditures for purchases of property, plant apdpenent $238.1 million up from $178.1 million iisd¢al 201.
» Cash payments for acquisitions, primarily Sauftotaled $1.1 billion compared to $13.3 million iadal 201.

e Total debt increased to $1.4 billion at the enflsafal 2014 from $344.7 million at the end of fis2@12

Comparative Statistics

Years Ended October 31,
($ in millions) 2014 2013

Cash and cash equivalents $ 252z % 77.4
Total assets $ 4,458.. $ 3,137.
Working capital $ 349.. % 426.(
Total debt $ 1,382.c % 344.7
Stockholders’ equity $ 2,588.c $ 2,423
Ratio of debt to equity 0.53:] 0.14:1
Debt as a percentage of total capitalization 35% 12%

Working Capital

Working capital in fiscal 2014 includes $55.1 naitli of loan notes issued related to the acquismib8auflon. Excluding the
loan notes that are reported in shtertm debt, the decrease in working capital at titceaf fiscal 2014 from the end of fiscal 2!
was primarily due to the decrease in cash andasesein accounts payable and short term debt.dEsi®ase was partially off.
by increases in accounts receivable and inventories

The $42.6 million increase in inventory was prirharelated to $38.3 million of inventory at Sauflaacquired in August 201
and the increased production of single-use lensdading MyDay, our singlese silicone hydrogel contact lens. At Octobe
2014, our inventory months on hand (MOH) were @&f6er adjusting for product rationalization costfated to the acquisition
Sauflon, representing a decrease from 6.9 at OcRihe2013. Our unadjusted inventory MOH at Octdaker2014 were 6.1. T
$46.7 million increase in trade accounts receivalds primarily related to Sauflon's $38.4 milliaccaunts receivable balance
October 31, 2014, and timing of collections. Ouysiaales outstanding (DSO) remained at 53 daystab@r 31, 2013, the sa
as at October 31, 2013.

We have reviewed our needs in the United Stategpémsible repatriation of undistributed earningscash of our foreic
subsidiaries. We presently intend to continue tefimitely invest all earnings and cash outsid¢hef United States of all forei
subsidiaries to fund foreign investments or megdiém working capital and property, plant and eqept requirements.

Operating Cash Flow

Cash flow provided by operating activities in fisg@14 continued to be our major source of liqyidit $454.8 million compar:
to $415.9 million in fiscal 2013 and $315.1 milliam fiscal 2012. Fiscal 2014 results include $27mi8ion of net income ar
non-cash items primarily made up of $138.2 million tethto depreciation and amortization, $36.5 millairexpense and $1¢
million of excess tax benefits both
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related to sharbased compensation, $20.3 million related to gaicurrency translation and $8.0 million relatednbpairment o
property, plant and equipment. Results also inckidinges in operating assets and liabilities, wpiaarily reflect the increas
in accounts receivable, inventories and other asHe$8.7 million, the increases in accounts payaiold other liabilities of $41
million, and the increase of $2.1 million relatitmytaxes. The $38.9 million increase in cash flowvjled by operations in fisc
2014 as compared to fiscal 2013 is primarily dutatmrable changes in working capital.

For fiscal 2014, our primary source of cash flowsviled by operating activities was cash colledidom our customers f
purchase of our products. Our primary uses of 8asfs from operating activities were for personaetl material costs along w
cash payments of $4.1 million for interest.

For fiscal 2013, our primary source of cash flowsviled by operating activities was cash colledidom our customers f
purchase of our products and the $14.1 millionifieurance proceeds received. Our primary uses gf flaws from operatir
activities were for personnel and material costs@iwith cash payments of $5.4 million for interest

Investing Cash Flow

Cash used in investing activities of $1,346.4 willin fiscal 2014 was for payments of $1,109.7 iollrelated to acquisitior
primarily the acquisition of Sauflon, and capitadpenditures of $238.1 million, primarily to increasnanufacturing capaci
partially offset by the $1.4 million insurance rgeoy related to facility repairs. We forecast iragimg demand for our existing ¢
future singledse products. To meet this anticipated demandistalf 2015 we plan to continue the implementatibreapita
projects to invest in increased single-use manufag) capacity.

Cash used in investing activities of $189.9 millionfiscal 2013 was for capital expenditures of &L7million, primarily tc
increase manufacturing capacity, and payments &t3%hillion related to acquisitions, partially cgfsby the $1.3 millio
insurance recovery related to facility repairs.

Financing Cash Flow

The changes in cash flows from financing activit@smarily relate to borrowings and payments of tdeb well as sha
repurchases and sharsased compensation awards. Cash provided by fingrextivities of $842.2 million in fiscal 2014 v
driven by $887.9 million from net borrowings of de$19.3 million in excess tax benefits from shbased compensation awa
$12.2 million of proceeds from a construction allmee and $8.6 million of proceeds from exercisshafrebased compensati
awards. Cash provided by financing activities wasdiglly offset by $75.8 million in payments forasle repurchases under
share repurchase plan, a $3.8 million paymentdatiogent consideration, $2.9 million for dividen&2.4 million of distribution
to noncontrolling interests, and $0.9 million obtlacquisition costs associated with obtainingriée term loan.

In fiscal 2013, the changes in cash flows fromtiriag activities primarily related to borrowingsdapayments of debt as well
share repurchases and shbased compensation awards. Cash used in financingtias of $161.6 million in fiscal 2013 w
driven by $25.8 million for net repayments of dekit67.3 million in payments for share repurchaseteu our share repurchi
plan, $5.2 million to purchase Origio shares anideotdistributions to noncontrolling interests, a@&nillion payment fc
contingent consideration and $2.9 million for demidis. Cash used in financing activities was péytadfset by $37.4 million fror
the exercise of share-based compensation awardd5a@anillion from a construction allowance.

At October 31, 2014, we had $25.2 million in caghiarily outside the United States, and $720.3ionilavailable under o
existing revolving Credit Agreement. The $700.0linl term loan entered into on August 4, 2014, #rel$300.0 million ten
loan entered into on September 12, 2013, remaistanding as of October 31, 2014. We are in compdiamith our financit
covenants including the Interest Coverage
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Ratio at 70.49 to 1.00 and the Total Leverage Rati®.45 to 1.00. As defined, in both the Crediredment and term loans,
Interest Coverage Ratio is the ratio of Consolidd&eoforma EBITDA to Consolidated Interest Expewsté the requirement to |
at least 3.00 to 1.00 and the Total Leverage Ratithe ratio of Consolidated Funded IndebtednesSdnsolidated Proforn
EBITDA with the requirement to be no higher thars3to 1.00.

OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

None.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMERCIAL COMMITMENTS

As of October 31, 2014 , we had the following caotual obligations and commercial commitments:

Payments Due by Period 2016 2018 2020
(In'millions) Total 2015 & 2017 & 2019 & Beyond
Contractual obligations:

Long-term debt $ 1,280.¢ $ — % 980.1 $ 300.¢ $ 0.z
Interest payments 36.¢ 127 22.1 2.1 —
Operating leases 157.] 25.2 39.¢ 31.c 60.7
Contingent consideration 3.C 0.t 1.C 1.C 0.t
Total contractual obligations 1,477.¢ 38.F 1,043.( 334.¢ 61.t
Commercial commitments:

Stand-by letters of credit 2.6 2.6 — — —
Total $ 1,480 $ 412 $ 1,043.( $ 334.¢ % 61.t

The expected future benefit payments for pensiangthrough 2024 are disclosed in Note 10. Empl&geefits.

We are unable to reliably estimate the timing ¢fife payments related to uncertain tax positidmeetfore, about $35.5 million
our long-term income taxes payable have been egdlfrdm the table above. However, other loagn liabilities, included in o
consolidated balance sheet, include these unceataimositions. See Note 6 for additional inforroati

Inflation and Changing Prices

Inflation has had no appreciable effect on our apens in the last three fiscal years.

Accounting Pronouncements Issued and Not Yet Adopte

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-Iricome Taxes (Topic 740): Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit when a Net
Operating Loss Carryforward, a Smilar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists. ASU 201341 requires an unrecogni:
tax benefit to be presented in the financial stet&@ias a reduction to a deferred tax asset wheh@perating loss carryforwarc
similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward ¢éxisWhen a net operating loss carryforward, a siméx loss, or a tax cre
carryforward is not available, or the entity doed mtend to use the deferred tax asset for sucpose, the unrecognized
benefit should be presented in the financial statémas a liability and should not be combined wéferred tax assets. We do
anticipate the adoption of these amendments, wdreleffective for the
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Company for the fiscal year beginning on NovemhetiL4, will have a material impact on our consatédl results of operatiol
financial condition or cash flows.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-@®&venue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) . ASU 201409 require
revenue recognition to depict the transfer of gamdservices to customers in an amount that refidne consideration to which-
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for thpseds or services. ASU 2008 sets forth a new revenue recognition mode
requires identifying the contract, identifying theerformance obligations, determining the transactiwice, allocating tf
transaction price to performance obligations antbgeizing the revenue upon satisfaction of perfeorceaobligations. Tt
amendments in the ASU can be applied either redasgly to each prior reporting period presentedetrospectively with tt
cumulative effect of initially applying the updatecognized at the date of the initial applicatibong with additional disclosure
We are currently evaluating the impact of ASU 2@84-which is effective for the Company in our fisgaar beginning c
November 1, 2017
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Estimates and Critical Accounting Policies

Management estimates and judgments are an infegnadf financial statements prepared in accordanteaccounting principle
generally accepted in the United States of Ame(iBAAP). We believe that the critical accounting ip@ls described in tF
section address the more significant estimatesinetjwf management when preparing our consolidéitehcial statements
accordance with GAAP. We consider an accountingnase critical if changes in the estimate may haveaterial impact on o
financial condition or results of operations. Wdidea that the accounting estimates employed apFogpiate and resultit
balances are reasonable; however, actual resultd ddfer from the original estimates, requirindj@stment to these balance:
future periods.

Revenue recognition We recognize product net sales, net of discoustsyns and rebates in accordance with re
accounting standards and SEC Staff Accounting BafleAs required by these standards, we recogeizenue when it
realized or realizable and earned, based on tefrsal® with the customer, where persuasive evidef@n agreeme
exists, delivery has occurred, the seller's predixed and determinable and collectability is ceebly assured. F
contact lenses as well as CooperSurgical medicate® diagnostic products and surgical instrumenis$ accessorie
this primarily occurs when title and risk of owns transfers to our customers. We believe our magerecognitio
policies are appropriate in all circumstances, tadl our policies are reflective of our customeaagements. We reco
based on historical statistics, estimated redustimnrevenue for customer incentive programs offéreluding cas
discounts, promotional and advertising allowanceslume discounts, contractual pricing allowanceshates ar
specifically established customer product retumgpams. The Company records taxes collected frastomers on a n
basis, as these taxes are not included in net sales

Net realizable value of invento- In assessing the value of inventories, we makenastis and judgments regarding a
of inventories and other relevant issues potegtiaffecting the saleable condition of products astimated prices
which those products will sell. On an ongoing basis review the carrying value of our inventory,asering number
months on hand and other indications of salabilife reduce the value of inventory if there are ¢atlons that tr
carrying value is greater than market, resulting inew, lowercost basis for that inventory. Subsequent chanyésci:
and circumstances do not result in the restoradiomcrease in that newly established cost basisiléAéstimates a
involved, historically, obsolescence has not beeamgaificant factor due to long product dating dedgthy product lif
cycles. We target to keep, on average, five torsewanths of inventory on hand to maintain high custoservice leve
given the complexity of our contact lens and woméealthcare product portfolios.

Valuation of goodwill We account for goodwill and evaluate our goodwallamces and test them for impairment anni
during the fiscal third quarter and when an evertuos or circumstances change such that it is neddp possible th
impairment may exist in accordance with relatedoanting standards. We performed our annual impaitrtest in ou
fiscal third quarter of 2014, and our analysis datied that we had rimpairment of goodwill. We performed our anr
impairment test in our fiscal third quarter of 2Cr&1 concluded that we had no impairment of goddwihat year.

In fiscal 2014 and 2013, we performed qualitatiesegssments to test each reporting unit's goodwri
impairment. Qualitative factors considered in tsessment include industry and market considagtayerall financi:
performance and other relevant events and facftestiag each reporting unit. Based on our qualitaassessment, if \
determine that the fair value of a reporting usiimore likely than not to be less than its carryamgount, the twetef
impairment test will be performed.
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Initially, we compare the book value of net assetthe fair value of each reporting unit that hasdyvill assigne
to it. If the fair value is determined to be lelsart the book value, a second step is performedrtgpuate the amount of t
impairment. A reporting unit is the level of repog at which goodwill is tested for impairment. Gaporting units are tl
same as our business segments - CooperVision aspke€urgical - reflecting the way that we managebaisiness.

Goodwill impairment analysis and measurement isoagss that requires significant judgment. If comeon stock pric
trades below book value per share, there are ceBangaarket conditions or a future downturn in business, or a futu
annual goodwill impairment test indicates an impaint of our goodwill, the Company may have to reizg a norcast
impairment of its goodwill that could be materialhd could adversely affect our results of operationthe perio
recognized and also adversely affect our totaltasstockholders' equity and financial condition.

Business combinationsWe routinely consummate business combinations. IResfioperations for acquired compai
are included in our consolidated results of operatifrom the date of acquisition. We recognize seply from goodwill
the identifiable assets acquired, including acglireprocess research and development, the liabilisssraed, and a
noncontrolling interest in the acquiree at the &ijan date fair values as defined by accountitasdards related to fi
value measurements. As of the acquisition datedgiois measured as the excess of consideratiorngigenerall
measured at fair value, and the net of the aciuisitate fair values of the identifiable assetsuaegl and the liabilitie
assumed. Direct acquisition costs are expensattased.

Income taxes We account for income taxes under the asset ahilitifamethod. Deferred tax assets and liabilitare
recognized for the future tax consequences attiidatto differences between the financial stateroarnying amounts
existing assets and liabilities and their respectax bases, and for tax losses and tax credyfoamards. Deferred te
assets and liabilities are measured using enaatechtes expected to apply to taxable income iry#as in which tho:
temporary differences are expected to be recovaredttled. The effect on deferred tax assetsiabdities of a change
tax rates is recognized in income in the period ithdudes the enactment date. In assessing thieakeiity of deferred ta
assets, management considers whether it is magly likan not that some portion or all of the defdrtax assets will n
be realized.

As part of the process of preparing our consoldidieancial statements, we must estimate our inctareexpense fi
each of the jurisdictions in which we operate. Thiscess requires significant management judgmants involve
estimating our current tax exposures in each jigtieeh including the impact, if any, of additionalxes resulting from t:
examinations as well as judging the recoverabilftdeferred tax assets. To the extent recovenetdrded tax assets is |
likely based on our estimation of future taxableoime in each jurisdiction, a valuation allowanceestablished. Tz
exposures can involve complex issues and may e@unirextended period to resolve. Frequent changes laws in eac
jurisdiction complicate future estimates. To deti@erthe tax rate, we are required to estimateyiedlr income and tl
related income tax expense in each jurisdiction. Wdate the estimated effective tax rate for tHecefof significan
unusual items as they are identified. Changesdrgdographic mix or estimated level of annualtpreincome can affe
the overall effective tax rate, and such changeddoe material.

Regarding accounting for uncertainty in income saxee recognize the benefit from a tax positiory dhit is more likely
than not that the position would be sustained ugodit based solely on the technical merits of #pe gosition. W
measure the income tax benefits from the tax postithat are recognized, assess the timing of énecdgnition ¢
previously recognized tax benefits and classify disglose the liabilities within the consolidatedaincial statements f
any unrecognized
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tax benefits based on the guidance in the inteafioet of related accounting guidance for incomesaxX he interpretatic
also provides guidance on how the interest andlpenaelated to tax positions may be recorded @dassified within oL
Consolidated Statement of Income and presentetienConsolidated Balance Sheet. We classify interedt penaltie
related to uncertain tax positions as additionabme tax expense.

Share-Based Compensation - We grant various s¥emed compensation awards, including stock optipedprmanc
unit shares, restricted stock and restricted stogts. Under fair value recognition provisions, edaased compensati
expense is measured at the grant date based daithvalue of the award and is recognized as expener the vestir
period. Determining the fair value of shdrased awards at the grant date requires judgnmehiding estimating Coope
stock price volatility, employee exercise behavimmd related employee forfeiture rates.

The expected life of the share-based awards isdbasehe observed and expected time to pesting forfeiture and/
exercise. Groups of employees that have similatotcsl exercise behavior are considered separdt@lyaluatior
purposes. In determining the expected volatilitanagement considers implied volatility from pullitladed options ¢
the Company's stock at the date of grant, histoviekatility and other factors. The ridkee interest rate is based on
continuous rates provided by the United StatessImgawith a term equal to the expected life of &neard. The divider
yield is based on the projected annual dividendvgayt per share, divided by the stock price at tte df grant.

As sharebased compensation expense recognized in our Gdatsal Statement of Income is based on awards atkiy
expected to vest, the amount of expense has bdana for estimated forfeitures. Forfeitures atereded at the time
grant, based on historical experience, and reviegcessary, in subsequent periods if actuakftufes differ from thos
estimates.

If factors change and we employ different assunmmgtion the application of the fair value recognitiprovisions, th

compensation expense that it records in futureopgsrimay differ significantly from what it has reded in the curre
period.
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Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about MarkRisk.

We are exposed to market risks that relate prifigipa changes in interest rates and foreign cuydtuctuations. Our policy is
reduce, to the extent reasonable and practicaxfssure to the impact of changing interest ratesforeign currency fluctuatio
by entering into a limited number of interest rateaps and foreign currency forward exchange casiraespectively. We do r
emphasize such transactions to the same degreenas ather companies with international operatidife. do not enter in
derivative financial instrument transactions foecyative purposes.

We operate multiple foreign subsidiaries that maotufre and market our products worldwide. As altesur earnings, cash flc
and financial position are exposed to foreign awyerisk from foreign currency denominated receigaland payables, sa
transactions, capital expenditures and net investimecertain foreign operations. We are exposedsks caused by changes
foreign exchange, primarily to the British poundrbng, euro, Japanese yen, Danish krone, Swedistak Australian dollar ai
Canadian dollar. Our policy is to minimize, to thetent reasonable and practical, transaction, remnement and specifi
economic exposures with derivatives instrumentgshdlgh we may enter into foreign exchange agreesneiith financia
institutions to reduce our nonfunctional currencyp@sure, these hedging transactions do not elimitiaat risk entirely. .
hypothetical 5% increase or decrease in the foreigrency exchange rates in comparison to the drstates dollar would n
have a material adverse impact on our financiatitmm or results of operations. For additionaloimhation, see Item 1A. Ri
Factors and Note 1 to the consolidated financakestents.

We are also exposed to risks associated with clsangaterest rates, as the interest rate on mioseansecured syndicated cre
facilities, including the revolving Credit Agreemeand term loans, may vary with the London Intetb@ifered Rate (LIBOR
We have decreased this interest rate risk by hgdgiportion of variable rate debt effectively cortve it to fixed rate debt fi
varying periods through December 2014.

On August 4, 2014, we entered into a thyear, $700.0 million, senior unsecured term loare@gent that will mature on Aug
4, 2017. There is no amortization of the principalgd we may prepay the loan balances from timarte, in whole or in part, wii
premium or penalty. At October 31, 2014, $700.0ianlremained outstanding on this term loan.

On September 12, 2013, we entered into a yizar, $300.0 million, senior unsecured term loareagent that will mature
September 12, 2018, and will be subject to amditizaof principal of 5% per year payable quartdreginning October 31, 20:
with the balance payable at maturity. At OctoberZ114, $300.0 million remained outstanding on teisn loan.

On May 31, 2012, we entered into an amendment toGradit Agreement, originally entered into on Janyul2, 2011. Tt
aggregate revolving commitment was increased t0 Billion from $750.0 million. This facility offersadditional availability
lower interest rates and extends the maturity tat®lay 31, 2017, from January 12, 2016. In addjtime have the ability -
increase the facility by up to an additional $506illion. KeyBank led the refinancing with certaianks that participated in 1
Credit Agreement retaining or increasing their ipgration. At October 31, 2014, we had $720.3 williavailable under tl
revolving Credit Agreement.
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October 31,

(In millions) 2014 2013
Short-term debt $ 1015t $ 43.C
Long-term debt 1,280.¢ 301.7
Total $ 1,382.0 $ 344.

At October 31, 2014 , the scheduled maturities wf fixed and variable rate lortgrm debt obligations, their weighted avel
interest rates and their estimated fair values @srllows:

Expected Maturity Date Fiscal Year Fair
($ in millions) 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Thereafter Total Value
Long-term debt:
Fixed interest rate $ — $ 04 $ 02 $ 0 $ — % 03 $ 13 $ 1.3
Average interest rate 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 3.5%
Variable interest rate $ — $ — $ 979f $ 300 $ — S — $ 1,279F  $1,2795
Average interest rate 1.C% 1.C% 1.C% 1.C% — —

As the table incorporates only those exposures ekited as of October 31, 2014t does not consider those exposure
positions which could arise after that date. A®sult, our ultimate realized gain or loss with mpo interest rate fluctuatic
will depend on interest rates, the exposures thse a@uring the period and our hedging strategigbat time. As ofOctober 31
2014, we had one interest rate swap outstanding thagsgned to fix the variable borrowing costs edatio $40.0 million of tr
outstanding balance on our credit agreements.téirest rates were to increase or decrease by 1¥WMbasis points, anni
interest expense would increase or decrease byt 8d@8 million. For further information about odebt, see Item 1A. Ri
Factors and Note 1 and Note 5 to the consolidateah¢ial statements.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.
Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
The Cooper Companies, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineets of The Cooper Companies, Inc. and sahis&lithe Company)
of October 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related didilased statements of income, comprehensive incatoekholdersequity, an
cash flows for each of the years in the thyear period ended October 31, 2014. In connectitim @ur audits of the consolida
financial statements, we also have audited finhrste&iement schedule Il. We also have audited thaganys internal contre
over financial reporting as of October 31, 2014sduhon criteria established linternal Control - Integrated Framework (1992)
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatwithe Treadway Commission (COSO). The Companmganagement
responsible for these consolidated financial statémand financial statement schedule, for maiimgieffective internal contr
over financial reporting, and for its assessmenthef effectiveness of internal control over finahaieporting, included in tl
accompanying ManagemesitAnnual Report on Internal Control Over Finandiporting appearing under item 9A.
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesesobdated financial statements, financial statensehedule and an opinion
the Company’s internal control over financial répa based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstaits of the Public Company Accounting Oversighalo(United States
Those standards require that we plan and perfoenatidits to obtain reasonable assurance about et financial statemel
are free of material misstatement and whether ®&fednternal control over financial reporting wasintained in all materi
respects. Our audits of the consolidated finarstatements included examining, on a test basideage supporting the amot
and disclosures in the financial statements, asgeee accounting principles used and signifiestimates made by managem
and evaluating the overall financial statement gmegtion. Our audit of internal control over finalaeporting included obtainil
an understanding of internal control over financigborting, assessing the risk that a material wesk exists, and testing
evaluating the design and operating effectivenéggernal control based on the assessed risk.aQdits also included performi
such other procedures as we considered necesstrg circumstances. We believe that our auditsigeoa reasonable basis
our opinions.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @gess designed to provide reasonable assuranadiregthe reliabilit
of financial reporting and the preparation of finmh statements for external purposes in accordavitte generally accept
accounting principles. A comparsyinternal control over financial reporting inclgddose policies and procedures that (1) pe
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonadikildaccurately and fairly reflect the transatsi@nd dispositions of the asset
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurancetthasactions are recorded as necessary to perspagation of financi
statements in accordance with generally accepteduating principles, and that receipts and expenest of the company ¢
being made only in accordance with authorizatiohsnanagement and directors of the company; angr(8)ide reasonak
assurance regarding prevention or timely deteabbnnauthorized acquisition, use, or dispositionth companys assets th
could have a material effect on the financial stegets.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtover financial reporting may not prevent or @etenisstatements. Als
projections of any evaluation of effectivenesstitufe periods are subject to the risk that contmdy become inadequate bec:
of changes in conditions, or that the degree ofgimmnce with the policies or procedures may detaté
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The Company acquired Sauflon Pharmaceuticals Lihdte August 6, 2014, and management excluded fteassessment of 1
effectiveness of the Company’s internal controlrdirancial reporting as of October 31, 2014, SawfPharmaceuticals Limited!’
internal control over financial reporting which repented 3% and 30%, respectively, of total net¢ssahd total assets of
related consolidated financial statement amounthh@fCompany as of and for the year ended OctaheP@14. Our audit
internal control over financial reporting of ther@pany also excluded an evaluation of the interoatrol over financial reportir
of Sauflon Pharmaceuticals Limited.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetageferred to above present fairly, in all matleréspects, the financial positi
of the Company and subsidiaries as of October 314 2nd 2013, and the results of its operationstarwhsh flows for each of t
years in the threyear period ended October 31, 2014, in conformity W.S. generally accepted accounting principhdso in
our opinion, the related financial statement scheedwhen considered in relation to the basic cadat#d financial statemel
taken as a whole, present fairly, in all materigdpects, the information set forth therein. Alsooirr opinion, the Compa
maintained, in all material respects, effectiveetinal control over financial reporting as of OctoB#, 2014, based on crite
established innternal Control - Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatioighe
Treadway Commission (COSO).

/sl KPMG LLP

San Francisco, California
December 19, 2014
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Consolidated Statements of Income

Years Ended October 31,

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2014 2013 2012

Net sales $ 1,717,777 $ 1,587,720 $ 1,445,13
Cost of sales 626,20t 560,91 521,12¢
Gross profit 1,091,57! 1,026,80: 924,01(
Selling, general and administrative expense 683,11! 610,73! 564,90:
Research and development expense 66,25¢ 58,82’ 51,73(
Amortization of intangibles 35,71( 30,23¢ 23,97¢
Loss on divestiture of Aime — 21,06: —
Operating income 306,48t 305,94! 283,39¢
Interest expense 7,96t 9,16¢ 11,77
Gain on insurance proceeds — 14,08« 5,00(
Loss on extinguishment of debt — — 1,40¢
Other expense (income), net 1,98 (1,410 (229)
Income before income taxes 296,53: 312,27: 275,45
Provision for income taxes 24,70¢ 15,36¢ 26,80¢
Net income 271,82¢ 296,90t 248,64«
Income attributable to noncontrolling interests 1,97: 75k 30E
Net income attributable to Cooper stockholders $ 269,85( $ 296,15. $ 248,33¢
Earnings per share attributable to Cooper stocldnslebasic $ 561 $ 6.0¢ $ 5.1¢€
Earnings per share attributable to Cooper stocldnslediluted $ 551 $ 59¢ $ 5.0t

Number of shares used to compute earnings per attalritable to Cooper
stockholders:

Basic 48,06 48,61t 47,91
Diluted 48,96( 49,68¢ 49,15

See accompanying notes to consolidated financissients.

65




THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Years Ended October 31,

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012
Net income $ 271,82¢ $ 296,90t $ 248,64
Other comprehensive (loss) income:

Foreign currency translation adjustment (87,767 2,607 (4,65%)

Change in value of derivative instruments, netafgrovision of $630, $857 and

$289, respectively 98¢ 1,341 452

Change in minimum pension liability, net of tax fleét) provision of $(2,348),

$7,399 and $(5,764), respectively (3,649 11,60 (8,98¢)

Unrealized gain on marketable securities, netxoptavision of $20 in fiscal 2012 — — 41

Reclassification of realized gain on marketablaigées to net income, net of tax

$27 in fiscal 2013 — (50 —
Other comprehensive (loss) income (90,420 15,49¢ (13,15)
Comprehensive income 181,40¢ 312,40! 235,49:
Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to norrodlittg interests (739 717 (28%)
Comprehensive income attributable to Cooper stddens $ 180,67¢ $ 313,12: $ 235,20(

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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October 31,
(In thousands) 2014 2013
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 25,22: $ 77,39:
Trade accounts receivable, net of allowance fobtfabaccounts of $6,025 at
October 31, 2014 and $5,261 at October 31, 2013 276,28 229,53
Inventories 381,47- 338,91°
Deferred tax assets 40,22« 41,17¢
Prepaid expense and other current assets 68,41° 60,21°¢
Total current assets 791,61 747,24.
Property, plant and equipment, at cost 1,525,91 1,240,571
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization 588,59 500,70
937,32 739,86
Goodwill 2,220,92 1,387,61
Other intangibles, net 453,60:! 198,76
Deferred tax assets 15,73: 16,27¢
Other assets 39,14( 47,49
$ 4,458,341 $ 3,137,26.
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Short-term debt $ 101,51¢ $ 42,98
Accounts payable 116,35: 108,17:
Employee compensation and benefits 67,90¢ 63,41«
Accrued income taxes 4,03« 2,51¢
Other current liabilities 152,37. 104,16:
Total current liabilities 442.18. 321,25:
Long-term debt 1,280,83 301,67(
Deferred tax liabilities 69,52t 24,88
Accrued pension liability and other 77,36( 65,96
Total liabilities 1,869,901 713,76
Commitments and contingencies (see Note 12)
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, 10 cents par value, shares am#tbri,000; zero shares issued o1
outstanding — —
Common stock, 10 cents par value, shares authod284000; issued 50,983 at
October 31, 2014 and 50,335 at October 31, 2013 5,09¢ 5,03¢
Additional paid-in capital 1,386,80! 1,329,32!
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (106,18) (15,767)
Retained earnings 1,578,82: 1,311,85
Treasury stock at cost: 2,840 shares at Octobe2@H and 2,340 shares at October
31, 2013 (294,667) (225,91)
Total Cooper stockholders' equity 2,569,87: 2,404,53!
Noncontrolling interests 18,56: 18,95¢
Stockholders’ equity 2,588,441 2,423,49.
$ 4,458,341 $ 3,137,26.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.
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Accumulated

Common Shares  Treasury Stock Other Total
Additional ~ Comprehensive Stockholders'
Paid-In Retained Treasury  Noncontrolling

(In thousands) Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Earnings Stock Interests Equity

Balance at October 31,

2011 47,84t $4,78¢ 16¢ $ 17 $1,180,25¢ $ (18,110 $ 773,23t $ (2,590 $ —  $1,937,48

Net income attributable to

Cooper stockholders — — — — — — 248,33 — — 248,33

Other comprehensive loss,

net of tax — — — — — (13,15) — — — (13,15)

Issuance of common stoc

for stock plans 1,57¢ 157 (146  (14) 45,92: — — 8,981 — 55,05!

Treasury stock repurchase (984) (98 984 98 — — — (71,150 — (71,150

Tax benefit from exercise

of stock options — — — — 17,56¢ — — — — 17,56¢

Dividends on common

stock — — — — — — (2,857) — — (2,857)

Share-based compensatic

expense — — — — 21,54( — — — — 21,54(

Noncontrolling interests — — — — 77 — — — 20,40° 20,33(

Balance at October 31,

2012 48,44( $4,84¢ 1,007 $ 101 $1,265,20. $ (31,26:) $1,018,61 $ (64,75) $ 20,407 $2,213,15

Net income attributable to

Cooper stockholders — — — — — — 296,15: — — 296,15!

Other comprehensive

income, net of tax — — — — — 15,49¢ — — — 15,49¢

Issuance of common stock

for stock plans 97¢ 98 (89 9 13,02¢ — — 6,17( — 19,28

Treasury stock repurchas (1,421)  (142) 1,421 142 — — —  (167,33) — (167,339

Tax benefit from exercise

of stock options — — — — 21,79¢ — — — — 21,79¢

Dividends on common

stock — — — — — — (2,91¢) — — (2,919

Share-based compensation

expense — — — — 28,53¢ — — — — 28,53¢

Purchase of shares from

noncontrolling interests — — — — 762 — — — (1,06%) (300

Distributions to

noncontrolling interests — — — — — — — — (1,149 (1,147

Noncontrolling interests — — — — — — — — 55 55

Balance at October 31,

2013 47,99F $4,80C 2,34 $ 234 $1,329,320 $ (15,762 $1,311,85 $(225,91) $ 18,95¢ $2,423,49

Net income attributable to

Cooper stockholders — — — — — — 269,85t — — 269,85!

Other comprehensive loss,

net of tax — — — — — (90,420 — — — (90,420

Issuance of common stoc

for stock plans 72C 72 (72) (7 1,48 — — 7,03% — 8,58t

Treasury stock repurchase (572) (57 57z 57 — — — (75,779 — (75,779

Tax benefit from exercise

of stock options — — — — 19,46¢ — — — — 19,46¢

Dividends on common

stock — — — — — — (2,889 — — (2,884

Share-based compensati

expense — — — — 36,51¢ — — — — 36,51¢

Distributions to

noncontrollina interest — — — — — — — — (2.370) (2.370



Noncontrolling interests — — — — — — — — 1,97¢ 1,97:

Balance at October 31,
2014 48,147 $4,81f 2,84( $ 284 $1,386,800 $ (106,18) $1,578,820 $(294,66) $ 18,56: $2,588,44

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@atsients.
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Years Ended October 31,

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 271,82¢ $ 296,90t $ 248,64
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigeal by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense 138,20: 125,34¢ 111,21«
Accrued litigation settlements — — 1,72¢
Share-based compensation expense 36,51¢ 28,53¢ 21,54(
Loss on divestiture of Aime — 21,06: —
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 9,81¢ 6,711 4,26
Loss on extinguishment of debt and other — — 867
Deferred income taxes (16,005 (17,18¢) (6,80¢)
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensatiardaw (29,300 (18,08:) (10,760
Provision for doubtful accounts 764 89C (45€)
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (5,167) 55 (4,95¢)
Inventories (7,5872) (22,579 (58,099
Other assets (13,469 (22,870) (7,929
Accounts payable 1,28¢ (6,299 13,57¢
Accrued liabilities 34,017 (983%) (12,259
Accrued income taxes 18,09¢ 27,717 9,50¢
Other long-term liabilities 5,81¢ (3,319 5,04(
Cash provided by operating activities 454,82; 415,92! 315,12:
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (238,06%) (178,12) (99,779
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquined caher (1,109,70) (13,045 (145,319
Insurance proceeds received 1,35¢ 1,25¢ 6,624
Cash used in investing activities (1,346,40) (189,919 (238,479
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt 2,561,70! 1,767,001 1,262,46'
Repayments of long-term debt (1,666,44) (1,813,66)) (1,254,26)
Net (repayments of) proceeds from short-term debt (7,33) 21,03¢ (63,63))
Repurchase of common stock (75,779 (167,339 (71,150
Proceeds from issuance of common stock for emplstgek plans 8,58¢ 19,287 55,05:¢
Excess tax benefit from share-based compensatiardaw 19,30( 18,08: 10,76(
Purchase of Origio shares from noncontrolling iesés — (4,199 (2,15¢)
Dividends on common stock (2,88¢) (2,919 (2,857)
Debt issuance costs (925) (210 (1,329
Distributions to noncontrolling interests (2,439 (1,007 —
Payment of contingent consideration (3,819 (3,600) (1,339
Proceeds from construction allowance 12,19¢ 5,93( —
Cash provided by (used) in financing activities 842,16! (161,59 (68,449
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casfaénts (2,75)) 14z (539)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalent (52,17) 64,55 7,66t
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 77,39 12,84( 517¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 2522: $ 77,39 $ 12,84(
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid for:
Interest, net of amounts capitalized $ 4,14¢ % 5,42¢ $ 10,55¢

Income taxes $ 15,91¢ $ 13,97 $ 15,78:




Litigation settlement charges $ — 3 — 3 10,00(

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanatsients.
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Year Ended October 31,
(In thousands)

On August 6, 2014, The Cooper Companies, Inc. aeduill of the issued share capital of Sauflon Plaaeuticals
Limited for total consideration of approximately.$2 billion. Liabilities were assumed as follows:

Supplemental disclosures of non-cash investing actiies:
Fair value of assets acquired

Less:

Cash paid, net of cash acquired

Loan notes issued

Liabilities assumed

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.
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THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
General

The Cooper Companies, Inc. (Cooper, we or the Cog)ps a global medical device company publiclyded on the NYS
Euronext (NYSE:COO). Cooper is dedicated to beinQuality of Life Company" with a focus on delivering shareholder va
Cooper operates through our business units, CoaperVand CooperSurgical.

. CooperVision develops, manufactures and marketsadlrange of soft contact lenses for the worldwiden correctio
market.
. CooperSurgical develops, manufactures and markedical devices and procedure solutions to improgelthcar

delivery to women.
Estimates and Critical Accounting Policies

Management estimates and judgments are an infegnabf financial statements prepared in accordaiteaccounting principle
generally accepted in the United States of Ame(iBAAP). We believe that the critical accounting ip@ls described in tF
section address the more significant estimatesinetjwf management when preparing our consolidéitethcial statements
accordance with GAAP. We consider an accountingnesé critical if changes in the estimate may haveaterial impact on o
financial condition or results of operations. Wdide& that the accounting estimates employed apFogpiate and resultit
balances are reasonable; however, actual resultd ddfer from the original estimates, requirindj@stment to these balance:
future periods.

. Revenue recognition We recognize product net sales, net of discouetsynms and rebates in accordance with re
accounting standards and SEC Staff Accounting BafieAs required by these standards, we recogeizenue when it
realized or realizable and earned, based on tefrsal® with the customer, where persuasive evidefan agreeme
exists, delivery has occurred, the seller's predixed and determinable and collectability is ceebly assured. F
contact lenses as well as CooperSurgical medicate® diagnostic products and surgical instrumenis$ accessorie
this primarily occurs when title and risk of ownas transfers to our customers. We believe our magerecognitio
policies are appropriate in all circumstances, tadl our policies are reflective of our customeaagements. We reco
based on historical statistics, estimated redustimnrevenue for customer incentive programs offéreluding cas
discounts, promotional and advertising allowanceslume discounts, contractual pricing allowanceshates ar
specifically established customer product retumgpams. The Company records taxes collected frastomers on a n
basis, as these taxes are not included in net sales

. Net realizable value of invento- In assessing the value of inventories, we makenastis and judgments regarding a
of inventories and other relevant issues potegtiaffecting the saleable condition of products astimated prices
which those products will sell. On an ongoing basis review the carrying value of our inventory,asering number
months on hand and other indications of salabilie reduce the value of inventory if there are ¢atlons that tr
carrying value is greater than market, resulting inew, lowercost basis for that inventory. Subsequent chanyésci:
and circumstances do not result in the restoradiomcrease in that newly established cost basisiléAéstimates a
involved, historically, obsolescence has not beegaificant factor due to long product dating dedgthy product lif
cycles.

. Valuation of goodwill We account for goodwill and evaluate our goodwélamces and test them for impairment anni
during the fiscal third quarter and when an evertuos or circumstances change such that it is neddp possible th
impairment may exist in accordance with relatedoanting standards. We performed our annual impaitrtest in ou
fiscal third quarter of 2014, and our analysis

71




THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

indicated that we had rimpairment of goodwill. We performed our annual arment test in our fiscal third quarter
2013 and concluded that we had no impairment oflgilbin that year.

In fiscal 2014 and 2013, we performed gqualitatigsessments to test each reporting unit's gooduaiilliripairment
Qualitative factors considered in this assessmmettide industry and market considerations, ovdiradincial performanc
and other relevant events and factors affectindy eaporting unit. Based on our qualitative assesgniewe determin
that the fair value of a reporting unit is moreelik than not to be less than its carrying amourd, ttvostep impairmer
test will be performed.

Initially, we compare the book value of net assetthe fair value of each reporting unit that hasdwill assigned to it.
the fair value is determined to be less than thekbemlue, a second step is performed to computeatheunt of th
impairment. A reporting unit is the level of repog at which goodwill is tested for impairment. Gaporting units are tl
same as our business segments - CooperVision amge€urgical - reflecting the way that we managebmsiness.

Goodwill impairment analysis and measurement isoagss that requires significant judgment. If comeon stock pric
trades below book value per share, there are ceangaarket conditions or a future downturn in business, or a futu
annual goodwill impairment test indicates an impa&nt of our goodwill, the Company may have to reizg a noncast
impairment of its goodwill that could be materialhd could adversely affect our results of operationthe perio
recognized and also adversely affect our totaltasswckholders' equity and financial condition.

Business combinationsWe routinely consummate business combinations. [B8estioperations for acquired compail
are included in our consolidated results of operatifrom the date of acquisition. We recognize seply from goodwill
the identifiable assets acquired, including acguireprocess research and development, the liabilisssiraed, and a
noncontrolling interest in the acquiree at the &itjon date fair values as defined by accountitagnd@ards related to f
value measurements. As of the acquisition datedgiois measured as the excess of consideratiorngigenerall
measured at fair value, and the net of the actpnsdate fair values of the identifiable assetsuaegl and the liabilitie
assumed. Direct acquisition costs are expensawtaged.

Income taxes We account for income taxes under the asset abiitfamethod. Deferred tax assets and liabilitaee
recognized for the future tax consequences ataidetto differences between the financial stateroanting amounts
existing assets and liabilities and their respectax bases, and for tax losses and tax credyfoamards. Deferred t:
assets and liabilities are measured using enaakerhtes expected to apply to taxable income irydas in which thot
temporary differences are expected to be recovaredttled. The effect on deferred tax assetsiabdities of a change
tax rates is recognized in income in the period ithdudes the enactment date. In assessing thieakeiity of deferred ta
assets, management considers whether it is maly likan not that some portion or all of the deddrtax assets will n
be realized.

As part of the process of preparing our consolifldileancial statements, we must estimate our inctameexpense fi
each of the jurisdictions in which we operate. Thiscess requires significant management judgments involve
estimating our current tax exposures in each jigtiseh including the impact, if any, of additionalxes resulting from t:
examinations as well as judging the recoverabilftgdeferred tax assets. To the extent recovenetdrded tax assets is |
likely based on our estimation of future taxableomme in each jurisdiction, a valuation allowanceess$ablished. Té
exposures can involve complex issues and may eq@uniextended period to resolve. Frequent changes laws in eac
jurisdiction complicate future estimates. To deti@enthe tax rate, we are required to estimateyiedlr income and tl
related income tax expense in each jurisdiction. Wdate the estimated effective tax rate for tHecefof significan
unusual items as they are identified. Changesdrgdographic mix or estimated level of annualtpreincome can affe
the overall effective tax rate, and such changetddoe material.
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Regarding accounting for uncertainty in income $axee recognize the benefit from a tax positiory ahit is more likely
than not that the position would be sustained upodit based solely on the technical merits of #ne gosition. W
measure the income tax benefits from the tax mostithat are recognized, assess the timing of ¢necdgnition ¢
previously recognized tax benefits and classify disglose the liabilities within the consolidatédaincial statements f
any unrecognized tax benefits based on the guidiantte interpretation of related accounting guikafor income taxe
The interpretation also provides guidance on hosvitiberest and penalties related to tax positioay be recorded a
classified within our Consolidated Statement ofoime and presented in the Consolidated Balance SWéetclassif
interest and penalties related to uncertain taXipos as additional income tax expense.

. Share-Based Compensation - We grant variouse$fzesed compensation awards, including stock optipesprmanc
unit shares, restricted stock and restricted stogts. Under fair value recognition provisions, daased compensati
expense is measured at the grant date based daithvalue of the award and is recognized as expener the vestir
period. Determining the fair value of shdrased awards at the grant date requires judgnmethiiding estimating Coope
stock price volatility, employee exercise behavimmd related employee forfeiture rates.

The expected life of the share-based awards isdbaiseéhe observed and expected time to pesting forfeiture and/
exercise. Groups of employees that have similatotiésl exercise behavior are considered separdtelyaluatior
purposes. In determining the expected volatilitgnagement considers implied volatility from pulylitdladed options ¢
the Company's stock at the date of grant, histbvigkatility and other factors. The ridkee interest rate is based on
continuous rates provided by the United Statessiigawith a term equal to the expected life of @aeard. The divider
yield is based on the projected annual dividendrgay per share, divided by the stock price at #te df grant.

As sharebased compensation expense recognized in our Gdaitsnl Statement of Income is based on awards atkiy
expected to vest, the amount of expense has bdanae for estimated forfeitures. Forfeitures ateéreded at the time
grant, based on historical experience, and reviegcessary, in subsequent periods if actuakftunfes differ from thos
estimates.

If factors change and we employ different assummgtion the application of the fair value recognitiprovisions, th
compensation expense that it records in futureogsrmay differ significantly from what it has reded in the curre
period.

Accounting Pronouncements Issued and Not Yet Adopte

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-Iricome Taxes (Topic 740): Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit when a Net
Operating Loss Carryforward, a Smilar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Exists. ASU 201341 requires an unrecogni:
tax benefit to be presented in the financial stet@ias a reduction to a deferred tax asset wheh@perating loss carryforwarc
similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward ¢éxisWhen a net operating loss carryforward, a simtéx loss, or a tax cre
carryforward is not available, or the entity doed imtend to use the deferred tax asset for sucpose, the unrecognized

benefit should be presented in the financial statémas a liability and should not be combined wéferred tax assets. We do
anticipate the adoption of these amendments, wéieheffective for the Company for the fiscal yeagibning on November
2014, will have a material impact on our consokdatesults of operations, financial condition cstclows.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-0®venue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) . ASU 201409 require
revenue recognition to depict the transfer of gamdservices to customers in an amount that reflénet consideration to which-
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for thgpseds or services. ASU 2008 sets forth a new revenue recognition mode
requires identifying the contract, identifying theerformance obligations, determining the transactmwice, allocating tf
transaction price to performance obligations antbgeizing the revenue upon satisfaction of perferceaobligations. Tt
amendments in the ASU can be applied either redaisly to each prior reporting period presentedetrospectively with tt
cumulative effect of
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initially applying the update recognized at theedaf the initial application along with additiondisclosures. We are currer
evaluating the impact of ASU 2014-09, which is efifee for the Company in our fiscal year beginnomgNovember 1, 2017.

Consolidation

The financial statements in this report include @lseounts of all of Cooper's consolidated entitids significant intercompar
transactions and balances are eliminated in catsai.

Foreign Currency Translation

Most of our operations outside the United Statesthsir local currency as their functional currendie translate these assets
liabilities into United States dollars at yeamd exchange rates. We translate income and expeasents at weighted aver:
rates for each year. We record gains and lossestfie translation of financial statements in fonedgirrencies into United Sta
dollars in other comprehensive income. We recordsgand losses from changes in exchange ratesosairtions denominatec
currencies other than each reporting location'stfanal currency in net income for each period. Morded in other expense
income a net foreign exchange loss of $2.9 milfmrfiscal 2014, a net foreign exchange gain ofL$aillion for fiscal 2013 and
net foreign exchange loss of $1.5 million for fis2@12.

Divested Operation

Aime Divedtiture - In our prior fiscal year, on October 31, 2013, wenpleted a transaction to sell Aime, our rigid gasmeabl
contact lens and solutions business in Japan, ppaddi Contact Lens Inc. The business was originaliitained as part of t
December 1, 2010 acquisition which included obtajrthe rights to market Biofinity in Japan. Theadititure was consistent w
CooperVision's strategy to focus on its core sofitact lens business.

The Aime divestiture was originally announced onyN8d, 2013 and met the criteria for classificatamnheld for sale during t
fiscal fourth quarter of 2013. During the fourthagier of 2013, we completed several conditionslésieg and facilitated tt
transfer of manufacturing technology. We recordguleatax loss of approximately $21.1 millionour Consolidated Statemen
Income for fiscal 2013. Results from operation&whe are included in our Consolidated Statementa@ime for fiscal 2013 a
2012 and we have not segregated the results obtipes or net assets of Aime on our financial states for any peric
presented. The disposition of the assets and itiabilof Aime did not qualify for classification aliscontinued operations
CooperVision shall maintain continuing involvemdéimtough a distribution arrangement with Aime fomaimum of three year
The financial statement impact of the Aime prodime was not material for any of the fiscal yearssgnted.

Financial Instruments

We may use derivatives to reduce market risks #sacwith changes in foreign exchange and intamsts. We do not u
derivatives for trading or speculative purposes. bMééeve that the counterparties with which we eimé forward exchang
contracts and interest rate swap agreements anecfadly sound and that the credit risk of thesstraets is not significant.

We operate multiple foreign subsidiaries that maaotufre and/or sell our products worldwide. As alltegur earnings, cash flc
and financial position are exposed to foreign awyerisk from foreign currency denominated receigaland payables, sa
transactions, capital expenditures and net investrire certain foreign operations. Our policy is nanimize, to the exte
reasonable and practical, transaction, remeasutearah specified economic exposures with derivativesruments such
foreign exchange forward contracts and cross cayren
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swaps. The gains and losses on these derivatigaatanded to at least partially offset the tratisacgains and losses recogni
in earnings.

Exposures are reduced whenever possible by takimgnéage of offsetting payable and receivable le@srand netting net sa
against expenses, also referred to as natural Bedgemay employ the use of foreign currency dériganstruments to manag
portion of the remaining foreign exchange risk. @sk management objectives and the strategieadbieving those objectiv
depend on the type of exposure being hedged.

We are also exposed to risks associated with clsangeterest rates, as the interest rate on @ditcagreements vary. To mitig
this risk, we may hedge portions of our variable @debt by swapping those portions to fixed rafés.only enter into derivati
financial instruments with institutions with whiete have an International Swap Dealers Associat®DA) agreement in plac
When applicable, we record interest rate derivatige net on our Consolidated Balance Sheet, inrdacoe with derivativ
accounting. When we net or gsat-our interest rate derivative obligations, ohe net asset or liability position will be cre
affected. For the years ending October 31, 2014 2048, all of our interest rate derivatives wereaitiability position anc
therefore, were not seff in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Since ISQre@ments are signed between the Company ani
respective financial institution, netting is per®it on a per institution basis only. On an ongdiagis, we monitor counterpa
credit ratings. We consider our credit nopeformance risk to be minimal because we awarddisperse derivatives busin
between multiple commercial institutions that hatvéeast an investment grade credit rating.

On March 10, 2011, we entered into five floatingfik@d interest rate swaps to fix the floating rdébt under our revolving Cre
Agreement or any future credit facility whose vhleadebt is tied to the London Interbank OfferedeR&IBOR). These intere
rate swaps with notional values totaling $200.0iaril, served to fix the floating rate debt for r@ming terms between 2 arid
months with fixed rates between 1.27% and 1.78%e qualified and designated these swaps as kagthédges and recorded
offset of the cumulative fair market value (nettak effect) to accumulated other comprehensivenredn our Consolidats
Balance Sheet.

Effectiveness testing of the hedge relationshipraedsurement to quantify ineffectiveness is peréatrat a minimum each fis
quarter using the hypothetical derivative methdake ©ne outstanding swap has been and is expectethn highly effective fc
the life of the swap. Effective amounts are redfeskto interest expense as the related hedgeénmepis incurred. Th§0.1
million fair value of the outstanding swap is rededl in our Consolidated Balance Sheet and additl@islities of $0.1 millior
and $0.3 millionas of October 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, weterded and attributable to accrued interest.eWfeect t
reclassify the remaining $0.1 millioinom other comprehensive income to interest expémssur Consolidated Statements
Income over the next 12 months.

Litigation

We are subject to various legal proceedings, cldlitigsation, investigations and contingencies iagsout of the ordinary course
business. If we believe the likelihood of an adedegal outcome is probable and the amount is abt@nwe accrue a liability
accordance with accounting guidance for contingemciWe consult with legal counsel on matters rdladelitigation and see
input both within and outside the Company.

Insurance Proceeds

On October 28, 2011, a manufacturing building i@ thnited Kingdom experienced an incident in whicpie broke in our fir
suppression system, causing water and fire retafdam damage to the facility. While this incidettl not substantially impe
our existing customers, the repairs to the facditgl resultant decrease in manufacturing capauipacted the timing of marketi
initiatives to generate additional sales. In Jan@&13, we resolved our business interruption chaith our insurer for a total
$19.1 million. We received payments
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of $5.0 million in our fiscal fourth quarter of 2B1In our fiscal first quarter of 2013, we recordbd remaining $14.fnillion in
our Consolidated Statement of Income of which veeireed payment of $2@illion during the fiscal first quarter of 2013 atit
remaining $11.2 million in the fiscal second quaaE2013.

Long-lived Assets

We review longlived assets held and used, intangible assets fimitte useful lives and assets held for sale fopammen
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the carrying amount of an asset may noebeverable. If an evaluati
of recoverability is required, the estimated undistted future cash flows associated with the amsettompared to the ass
carrying amount to determine if a writiewn is required. If the undiscounted cash flows lass than the carrying amount
impairment loss is recorded to the extent thatHreying amount exceeds the fair value. If manageras committed to a plan
dispose of londived assets, the assets to be disposed of aretedpat the lower of carrying amount or fair valass estimate
costs to sell.

CooperVision provides optometric practices wittoifice lenses used in marketing programs to fadditefficient and convenie
fitting of contact lenses by practitioners. Suahsléitting sets generally consist of a physicaldeinor rack to store contact len
and an array of lenses. We record the costs assdaidth the original fitting set to other lotigrm assets on our Consolide
Balance Sheet. We amortize such costs over thdéimaed useful lives to selling, general and adstiative expense on ¢
Consolidated Statements of Income. We also expbeseost for lenses provided to practitioners perashment for fitting sets
the period shipped to selling, general and admatise expense on our Consolidated Statementscofie.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include skenra income producing investments with maturityedadf three months or less. Tr
investments are readily convertible to cash anadaneed at cost, which approximates market value.
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Inventories

October 31,
(In thousands) 2014 2013

Raw materials $ 76,87C $ 79,33:
Work-in-process 14,34« 10,51¢
Finished goods 290,26( 249,07:

$ 381,47 $ 338,91

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or eaiRost is computed using standard cost that appades actual cost, on a first-
in, first-out basis. See Note 2 for additional informationtlo& increase in finished goods inventory relatethe acquisition «
Sauflon.

Property, Plant and Equipment

October 31,

(In thousands) 2014 2013

Land and improvements $ 20,55 $ 16,28:
Buildings and improvements 205,49( 184,61t
Machinery and equipment 980, 75! 831,35t
Construction in progress 319,12( 208,32:
Less: Accumulated depreciation 588,59: 500,70¢

$ 937,32! $ 739,86

Property, plant and equipment are stated at costcivhpute depreciation using the straigid-method in amounts sufficient
write off depreciable assets over their estimataful lives. We amortize leasehold improvements twveir estimated useful liv
or the period of the related lease, whichever esteh. We depreciate buildings over 35 toy#@rs and machinery and equipn
over 3 to 15 years.

We expense costs for maintenance and repairs gitdlcze major replacements, renewals and bettetsn&vie eliminate the cc
and accumulated depreciation of depreciable assgted or otherwise disposed of from the assetamlimulated depreciati
accounts and reflect any gains or losses in opasfor the period. We had capitalized intereduished in construction in progre
of $5.6 million and $3.1 million for the years edd@ctober 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Earnings Per Share
We determine basic earnings per share (EPS) by tissnweighted average number of shares outstandiegdetermine dilute

EPS by increasing the weighted average numberafeshoutstanding in the denominator by the numbeutstanding dilutiv
equity awards using the treasury stock method.
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Treasury Stock

We record treasury stock purchases under the ceftomh whereby the entire cost of the acquired stedlecorded as treasi
stock. At October 31, 2014 and 2013 , the numbeshafres in treasury was 2,840,279 and 2,339, #é8pectively. A total «
571,939 shares were purchased during the year eébdedber 31, 2014 , and 1,420,728ares were purchased during the
ended October 31, 2013 . See Note 8 for additiofiatmation on the share repurchase program.

Note 2. Acquisitions

Sauflon Acquisition

On August 6, 2014the acquisition date, we completed the acquisibibthe entire issued share capital of Sauflorridhaeutical
Limited (Sauflon), a privatelpwned European manufacturer and distributor of softtact lenses and solutions, base
Twickenham, United Kingdom. The fair value of thensideration transferred for Sauflon was approxaya$1,073.2 millionin
cash, $1,063.1 million net of cash acquired, amt@pmately $58.0 milliorin the form of loan notes issued by Cooper. The
notes are denominated in British pounds and assifiled as short-term debt.

The Sauflon acquisition is intended to acceleragegrowth in sales of our single-use products @abkng a multi-tier, singlerse
strategy with a full suite of hydrogel and silicomgdrogel product offerings in the major productegaries of sphere, toric
multifocal lenses. This acquisition is also intethd® provide for enhanced relationships with keyrdpean retailers al
opportunities for operational synergies.

The acquisition was accounted for under the adipisimethod of accounting, and the related asseqsiied and liabilitie
assumed were recorded at fair value. While theiaitmumn was completed on August 6, 2014, we accediibr the acquisition
of August 1, 2014, and have included the operatasglts of Sauflon in our CooperVision businessveag from that date. T
impact of Sauflon's results of operations for tleeigrl August 1, 2014 through August 5, 2014 on GapperVision busine
segment results of operations was de minimis. &ilgilwe have determined that any difference inf#irevalue of assets acquil
and liabilities assumed with respect to Sauflomien August 1, 2014 and August 6, 2014 was de nsnim

The following table summarizes our considerationd dar Sauflon and the preliminary allocation ofrghiase price to ass
acquired and liabilities assumed recognized on Audu2014. We repaid substantially all of the asglidebt concurrently wi
the acquisition with our available funds.
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Useful Lives of Intangible

(In millions) Assets Fair Value

Goodwill $ 857.1
Trademarks 10 years $ 7.2
Technology 10 years 138.2
Customer relationships 15 years 39.2
License and distribution rights and other 2 to 5 years 51.€
In-process research and development N/A 43.1
Purchased intangible assets $ 279.
Cash and cash equivalents $ 10.1
Property, plant and equipment 83.¢
Inventories 36.2
Trade accounts receivable 42.:
Other current assets 6.S
Debt (85.0)
Accounts payable (23.€)
Long term deferred tax liabilities (56.5)
Other creditors and current liabilities (19.¢)
Net tangible liabilities $ (5.9
Total purchase consideration $ 1,131.:

The amounts of revenue and net loss of Sauflomdeel in our Consolidated Statement of Income framgust 1, 2014 to Octok
31, 2014, were $49.7 million and $2.0 million ,pestively. We incurred $20.0 millioof acquisition costs that were expense
operating expenses in fiscal 2014.

Goodwill is calculated as the excess of the comatim transferred over the net assets recognineddrepresents the futt
economic benefits arising from the other assetsiiead) that could not be individually identified asdparately recognized. 1
goodwill recorded as part of the acquisition of fBauis ascribed to our CooperVision business sedraad is not amortized. Tl
goodwill includes the following:

= The expected synergies and other benefits that elievie will result from combining the operations $auflon with th
operations of CooperVision;

= Any intangible assets that did not qualify for sgpa recognition, as well as future, yet unideatifprojects and products; ¢

= The value of the goingencern element of Sauflon's existing businessesHigher rate of return on the assembled colla
of net assets versus if CooperVision had acquilledf the net assets separately).

Management determined fair values of the identiéahtangible assets through a combination of ineapproaches includi
relief from royalty, with-and-without, mulfperiod excess earnings and disaggregated methbdsvaluation models were ba
on estimates of future operating projections ofabguired business and rights to sell productsedlsas judgments on the disco
rates used and other variables. We determinedotieedsts based on a number of factors, includimgest estimate of negerrr
net sales expectations and laegm projections, which include review of interaad independent market analyses. The dis
rate used was representative of the weighted awexast of capital.
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The fair value of assets acquired and liabilitissumed was based upon preliminary valuations, andsiimates and assumpti
are subject to change as the valuations are fadliwithin the measurement period not to exceethd@ths from the acquisiti
date. We are currently in the process of verifyiiaga and finalizing information related to the 3awufvaluation and recording
inventory, liabilities, commitments and contingeas;iincluding potential legal matters, income taxed the corresponding eff
on goodwiill.

The unaudited pro forma financial results presebtddw for the fiscal years ended October 31, 281d 2013, include the effe
of pro forma adjustments as if the acquisition ol on November 1, 2012. The pro forma resultsewsepared using t
acquisition method of accounting and combine tls¢ohical results of Cooper and Sauflon for thedisears ended October
2014 and 2013, including the effects of the busnesmbination, primarily amortization expense edato the fair value
identifiable intangible assets acquired, interegie@se associated with the financing obtained bgp€bin connection with tl
acquisition, and the elimination of incurred acdigs-related costs.

The fiscal 2014 unaudited pro forma financial imfation is not adjusted to exclude $36.1 millmfrrestructuring costs and cc
incurred to integrate the operations of Cooper @#uflon. The pro forma financial information isepented for information
purposes only and is not necessarily indicativéhefresults of operations that would have beeneaell if the acquisition h
taken place at the beginning of the earliest pepir@dented, nor is it intended to be a projecticiutore results.

Years Ended October 31,

(In millions, except per share amounts, pro formaunaudited) 2014 2013

Revenue $ 1,858.:0 $ 1,746.
Net income attributable to Cooper stockholders $ 276.C $ 284.¢
Diluted earnings per share $ 56/ $ 5.7¢

The pro forma results for fiscal 2014 were adjustethclude pre-tax amortization of intangible dasdetaling $22.2 million anc
an additional $6.4 million of interest expense. e forma results were adjusted to exclude preatequisitionrelated cos
totaling $20.4 million .

The pro forma results for fiscal 2013 were adjustehclude pre-tax amortization of intangible dsgetaling $29.7 milliorand a
additional $9.3 million of interest expense.

Origio Acquisition

On July 11, 2012, the acquisition date, we comglat@oluntary tender offer for the outstanding ekasf Origio a/s at a purchi
price of NOK 28 per share in cash and acquired @7%he outstanding shares. As a result, the fdwesaf the consideratis
transferred for Origio was approximately $147.4lionl in cash, $143.6 milliomet of cash acquired. During our fiscal foi
quarter of 2012 and our fiscal first quarter of 20lve completed a mandatory redemption to obtagnrémaining shares
accordance with the Danish Companies Act.

Origio, based in Malov, Denmark, is a leading globavitro fertilization (IVF) medical device company ath develop:
manufactures and distributes highly specializeddpects that target IVF treatment with a goal to médwlity treatment safe
more efficient and convenient.

The acquisition was accounted for under the adimisimethod of accounting, and the related asseqsiied and liabilitie
assumed were recorded at fair value. During treaffisecond quarter of 2013, we received the remgimformation necessary
complete the fair value measurements of assetsradgand liabilities assumed for fixed assets, medaxes and commitme
and contingencies resulting in a net increase to
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goodwill of $12.4 million. While we closed the acquisition of shares on ldly2012, we accounted for the acquisition asutyl
1, 2012, and included the operating results of iQiig our CooperSurgical business segment fromdhagg. The impact of Origic
results of operations for the period July 1, 20hgowgh July 10, 2012 on our CooperSurgical busiresgment results
operations was de minimis. Similarly, we have dateed that any difference in the fair value of éssecquired and liabilitie
assumed with respect to Origio between July 1, 201RJuly 11, 2012 was de minimis.

We allocated the fair value of the purchase prcéoliows: $8.5 million for working capital, inclin $3.8 million of cash$22.
million for property, plant and equipment, $1.9 lroit for net other liabilities, $25.6 million foreh deferred tax liabilities$22.1
million for noncontrolling interests and $45.4 naill of debt. We repaid substantially all of the acogiideebt concurrent with tl
acquisition with available funds. Additionally, tladlocation of the purchase price includes amdoteantangible assets &1L07."
million and goodwill of $103.7 million . The intaifiye assets include $82.1 millidor customer relationships with an estimi
useful life of 15 years ; $17.4 million for techagy with an estimated useful life of 10 years ; &8 millionfor trade name
with estimated useful lives of 17 years . We inedr64.9 millionof acquisition costs that were expensed in operatin fisca
2012.

Goodwill is calculated as the excess of the comatden transferred over the net assets recognineldrepresents the futt
economic benefits arising from the other assetsiiead) that could not be individually identified asdparately recognized. 1
goodwill recorded as part of the acquisition ofdj of which $13.1 millionis deductible for tax purposes, is ascribed tc
CooperSurgical business segment and is not amarilzes goodwill includes the following:

= The expected synergies and other benefits that elievied will result from combining the operationk @rigio with the
operations of CooperSurgical,

= Any intangible assets that did not qualify for sgpa recognition, as well as future, yet unideatifprojects and products; ¢

= The value of the goingencern element of Origio's existing businesses lftgher rate of return on the assembled colleatf
net assets versus if CooperSurgical had acquited tiie net assets separately).

Management assigned fair values to the identifiatii@ngible assets through a combination of thealdiated cash flow, multi-
period excess earnings and relief from royalty mésh The valuation models were based on estimdtdatwre operatin
projections of the acquired business and rightetbproducts as well as judgments on the discoates used and other variab
We determined the forecasts based on a numbectof$ancluding our best estimate of near-termsaéts expectations and long
term projections, which include review of intermald independent market analyses. The discounusatg was representative
the weighted average cost of capital.

In fiscal 2012, the year we acquired Origio, the forma results of operations were not presenterhuse the effects of t
business combination described above was not rabterbur consolidated results of operations.
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Note 3. Restructuring and Integration Costs

2014 Sauflon Integration Plan

During the fiscal fourth quarter of 2014, in conti@e with the Sauflon acquisition, our CooperVisibosiness unit initiate
restructuring and integration activities to optiminperational synergies of the combined compariieese activities incluc
workforce reductions, consolidation of duplicatfeeilities and product rationalization. We expdwge activities to be comple
by our fiscal first quarter of 2016.

In fiscal 2014, we recorded restructuring chargk$29.3 million for employee termination costs; $5%nillion for produc
rationalization, including inventory write-offs artoductionrelated asset impairments, primarily related to Auaira Toric
contact lenses, based on our review of productsemas and manufacturing processes of Sauflon; $h8 million of leas
termination costs for facility closures. In additjogCooperVision incurred $2.8 millioaf integration costs recorded in selli
general and administrative expense.

Of the employee termination costs, $19.7 millioa ezcorded in selling, general and administratixeease and $0.6 milliom
research and development expense. The produchaéfiation costs are recorded in cost of sales.|&age termination costs ¢
other related costs are recorded in selling, géaedadministrative expense.

The following table summarizes the restructurintivities by major component for the year ended ®etd31, 2014:

(In millions) Employee-related Facilities-related Ratiolr:;cl)icz'g?ign () Total

Additions during fiscal 2014 $ 202 % 0t $ 152 % 36.1
Payments during the year (0.9 — — (0.4
Non-cash adjustments — — (15.9) (15.9)
Balance as of October 31, 2014 $ 19¢ § 0E § — $ 20.

(a) Non-cash adjustments for product rationalization were recorded as asset impairments and inventory write-offs.
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Note 4. Intangible Assets

Goodwill

(In thousands) CooperVision CooperSurgical Total
Balance as of October 31, 2012 $ 1,044,05 $ 326,19 $ 1,370,24
Net additions during the year ended October 313201 3,36: 11,01° 14,38(
Translation 1,061 1,92 2,98¢
Balance as of October 31, 2013 $ 1,048,47 $ 339,13 % 1,387,61.
Net additions during the year ended October 314201 857,14t 25,54 882,68
Translation (44,067 (5,31¢) (49,379
Balance as of October 31, 2014 $ 1,861,56 $ 359,36( $ 2,220,92

Of the October 31, 2014 goodwill balance, $76.1iamlfor CooperSurgical and $17.8 millidar CooperVision is expected to
deductible for tax purposes.

Other Intangible Assets

As of October 31, 2014 As of October 31, 2013
Weighted
Average
Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated Amortization
Carrying Amortization Carrying Amortization Period
(In thousands) Amount & Translation Amount & Translation
(In years)
Trademarks $ 21,28. $ 2937 $ 1248, % 2,331 14
Technology 326,62( 93,78( 133,84 84,37: 11
Customer relationships 233,24t 90,70« 199,37¢ 75,70( 14
License and distribution rights and other 73,47¢ 13,60( 24,94° 9,472 8
654,62t $ 201,02: 370,64¢ $ 171,88 12
Less accumulated amortization and translation 201,02: 171,88(
Other intangible assets, net $ 453,60! $ 198,76

Included in Technology for fiscal 2014 is $43.1lmi of acquired inprocess research and development from Saufloristhrat
amortized. See Note 2 for additional informationaaquired intangible assets from Sauflon.

We estimate that amortization expense for our iejsither intangible assets will be $52.2 millionfiscal 2015, $49.8 milliom
fiscal 2016, $46.4 million in fiscal 2017, $44.4llion in fiscal 2018 and $41.6 million in fiscal 29.
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Note 5. Debt

October 31,

(In thousands) 2014 2013

Short-term:

Loan notes issued for Sauflon acquisition $ 55,07¢ $ —

Overdraft and other credit facilities 46,44 42,987

101,51¢ 42,98

Long-term:

Credit Agreement 279,50( —

Term loans 1,000,001 300,00

Other 1,33: 1,67C
1,280,83: 301,67(

Annual maturities of long-term debt as of Octobkr 2014 , are as follows:

Year

(In millions)

2015 $ —

2016 $ 0.2

2017 $ 979.¢

2018 $ 300.4

2019 $ —

Thereafter $ 0.2

Credit Agreement

On May 31, 2012, Cooper entered into an amendnaeotit Credit Agreement, dated as of January 121 2@ and among tl
Company, CooperVision International Holding Compah#?, the lenders party thereto and KeyBank Natidxesociation, &
administrative agent. The Credit Agreement, as a@enprovides for a multicurrency revolving crefditility in an aggrega
commitment amount of $1.0 billioand the aggregate commitment amount under theviegofacility may be increased, ug
written request by Cooper, by $500.0 million . Emeended Credit Agreement has a termination datagf31, 2017 .

In connection with the Sauflon acquisition, on J80e2014, we entered into an amendment (Credie&gent Amendment) to 1
Credit Agreement, dated as of January 12, 2044 amended, by and among (i) the Company, (igp€vVision Internation.
Holding Company, LP, an indirect subsidiary of @@mpany, (iii)) the lenders from time to time patityereto and (iv) Keybal
National Association, as administrative agent. Tredit Agreement Amendment modifies certain prawrisi of the Crec
Agreement to, among other things, amend certaitnicttge covenants and related definitions to allfaw certain indebtedne:
investments, guaranty obligations, acquisitiontertcompany loans, capital distributions and digpwss of assets made or to
made in connection with the acquisition.

The commitment fee rate ranges between 0.100% 27&%of the unused portion of the revolving facility bdson a pricing gri
tied to our Total Leverage Ratio (as defined bedmd in the Credit Agreement). The applicable margias on loans outstand
under the Credit Agreement will bear interest bastdur option, on either the base rate or thasaelfl Eurodollar rate (currer
referred to as LIBOR) or adjusted foreign currenate (each as defined in the amended Credit Agnegmaus an applicak
margin of
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between 0.00% and 0.75% in respect of base rates laad between 1.00% and 1.75%respect of adjusted Eurodollar rats
adjusted foreign currency rate loans, in each sasecordance with a pricing grid tied to our Tdtalverage Ratio, as definec
the Credit Agreement. In addition to the annual eutment fee, we are also required to pay certditerdef credit and relat
fronting fees and other administrative fees purst@the terms of the Credit Agreement.

The Credit Agreement is not secured by any of them@any's, or any of its subsidiariea§sets. All obligations under the Cr
Agreement will be guaranteed by each of our exgstind future direct and indirect material domestilbsidiaries.

Pursuant to the terms of the Credit Agreement &edtérm loans discussed below, we are also reqtiredaintain specifie
financial ratios:

. The ratio of Consolidated Proforma EBITDA to Comndaled Interest Expense (as defined, Interest @gecRatio) be
least 3.00 to 1.00 at all times.

. The ratio of Consolidated Funded Indebtedness ts@mated Proforma EBITDA (as defined, Total Leage Ratio) be r
higher than 3.75 to 1.00.

At October 31, 2014 , we were in compliance with iterest Coverage Ratio at 70.49 to 1.00 and ¢l Leverage Ratio & 4=
to 1.00.

At October 31, 2014 , we had $720.3 million avdaalnder the Credit Agreement.

In fiscal 2012, we recorded a $1.4 millimss for debt issuance costs as a result of amgnkeCredit Agreement. The remair
$6.0 million of existing debt issuance costs amdapproximately $1.3 millioof costs incurred to amend the Credit Agreemer
carried in other assets and amortized to intesgstrese over the life of the Credit Agreement.

$300.0 million Term Loan on September 12, 2013

On September 12, 2013 , we entered into a five;y&200.0 million, senior unsecured term loan agreement by and anha
Company; the lenders party thereto and KeyBankddatiAssociation, as administrative agent. Thisdgated credit facility wi
mature on September 12, 2018 , and will be sultfeaimortization of principal of 5.09%er annum payable quarterly beginr
October 31, 2016 , with the balance payable at rtwatu

Amounts outstanding under this term loan agreemd@hbear interest, at the Company's option, dteithe base rate, which i
rate per annum equal to the greatest of (a) KeyBairkme rate , (b) 0.5% in excess of the fedamatl§ effective rate and (&)«
in excess of the adjusted Eurodollar rate (curyerdgferred to as LIBOR) for a omaenth interest period on such day, or
adjusted Eurodollar rate, plus, in each case, phicajple margin. The applicable margins will beestetined quarterly by referer
to a grid based upon the Company's Total Leveragm®m Ras defined in the term loan agreement, andistent with the revolvir
Credit Agreement discussed above.

This term loan agreement contains customary résgicovenants, as well as financial covenants tegtiire the Company
maintain a certain Total Leverage Ratio and Intefésverage Ratio, each as defined in the agreencensistent with tt
revolving Credit Agreement discussed above. Theegent also contains customary events of deféngdtptcurrence of whi
would permit the Administrative Agent to declare tprincipal, accrued interest and other obligatiohthe Company under t
agreement to be immediately due and payable.
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In connection with the Sauflon acquisition, on J@0e 2014, we entered into an amendment to this tean agreement, datec
of September 12, 201,30y and among (i) the Company, (ii) the lendeosrfitime to time party thereto and (iii) KeyBank Nagl
Association, as administrative agent. This ternmlammendment modifies certain provisions of the tkram agreement to, amc
other things, amend certain restrictive covenants related definitions to allow for certain indetritess, investments, guare
obligations, acquisitions, intercompany loans, piistributions and dispositions of assets made be made in connection w
the acquisition.

On August 4, 2014, we entered into Amendment Ni. this term loan agreement, dated as of Septetrthe2013, as amende
by Amendment No. 1 dated as of June 30, 2014, byammong the Company, the lenders party theretoKayiBank Natione
Association, as administrative agent. The term laaendment modifies certain provisions of the tkram agreement to remc
the call premium related to prepayments and/onaeiting of the term loan agreement, effective Augu2014.

At October 31, 2014 , we had $300.0 million outdiag under this term loan.
$700.0 million Term Loan on August 4, 2014

On August 4, 2014 , we entered into a three -y$@00.0 million, senior unsecured term loan agreement by and anie
Company, the lenders party thereto and KeyBankoNatiAssociation as administrative agent. This syatdd credit facility wil
mature and the balance is payable on August 4, 20h&re is no amortization of principal and we rpagpay loan balances fr
time to time, in whole or in part, without premiwgnpenalty.

Amounts outstanding under this term loan agreemvithbear interest, at the Compasyoption, at either the base rate, which
rate per annum equal to the greatest of (a) KeyBarkme rate, (b) 0.5% in excess of the fedewalf effective rate and ()%
in excess of the adjusted Eurodollar rate (curyerdgferred to as LIBOR) for a omaenth interest period on such day, or
adjusted Eurodollar rate, plus, in each case, phcaple margin. The applicable margins will beettetined quarterly by referer
to a grid based upon the Companyotal Leverage Ratio, as defined in the term lmgreement and consistent with the revol
Credit Agreement discussed above.

This term loan agreement contains customary résgicovenants, as well as financial covenants teqtire the Company
maintain a certain Total Leverage Ratio and Inte@s/erage Ratio, each as defined in the agreeraedtconsistent with tl
revolving Credit Agreement as discussed above. Té&im loan agreement also contains customary ewveintdefault, th
occurrence of which would permit the Administratikgent to declare the principal, accrued interest ather obligations of tl
Company under the agreement to be immediately ddgayable.

In August 2014, we utilized this facility to funte acquisition of Sauflon, as well as to providekimg capital and for genel
corporate purposes.

At October 31, 2014 , we had $700.0 million outdiag under this term loan.
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European Credit Facilities

We maintain European credit facilities in the foaincontinuing and unconditional guarantees. Theregae facility limit wa
$37.6 million and $37.3 million at October 31, 20ddd 2013 respectively. The Company will pay all forms nfiebtedness
the currency in which it is denominated for thosetain subsidiaries. Interest expense is calculatedll outstanding balanc
based on an applicable base rate for each coulusyafixed spread common across most subsidieoesred under the guarar
At October 31, 2014 , $8nillion of the facility was utilized. The weightealerage interest rate on the outstanding balanae
1.62% .

In addition to these European credit facilities, al& have available certain non-guaranteed Bermminated overdraft facilitie
The aggregate facility limit was $0.8 million an@.$ million at October 31, 2014 and 2013, respebti At October 31, 2014
$0.5 million of this facility was utilized.

Asian Pacific Credit Facilities

We maintain Yerdenominated credit facilities in Japan supportedcogtinuing and unconditional guarantees. The agde
facility limit was $53.5 million and $73.9 millioat October 31, 2014 and 201B8:spectively. The Company will pay all form:
indebtedness in Yen upon demand. Interest expertsddulated on the outstanding balance basededpaite rate or TIBOR plu
fixed spread. At October 31, 2014 , $2endlion of the combined facilities was utilized. &hveighted average interest rate or
outstanding balances was 0.52% .

We maintain credit facilities for certain of our iAsPacific subsidiaries. Each facility is supportey a continuing ar
unconditional guaranty. The aggregate facility timias $11.9 million and $12.2 million at Octobér 2014 and 2013
respectively. The Company will pay all forms of @idedness, for each facility, in the currency inolht is denominated for tho
certain subsidiaries. Interest expense is calalilateall outstanding balances based on an appdidade rate for each country |
a fixed spread common across all subsidiaries eovender each guaranty. At October 31, 2014 , gdllibn of the facility wa:
utilized. The weighted average interest rate orotitetanding balances was 5.52% .

Letters of Credit

We maintain letters of credit throughout the wanlih various financial institutions that primarigerve as guarantee notes
certain debt obligations. The aggregate outstanaingunt of letters of credit at October 31, 2014 $2.9 million.

Note 6. Income Taxes

Cooper's effective tax rate (ETR) (provision focame taxes divided by pretax income) for fiscalry2@l4 was 8.3%nd fiscs
year2013 was 4.9% The increase in the ETR in fiscal 2014 reflebesinclusion in the fiscal 2013 ETR of several dise item
causing a reduction in that year. These itemseaelptimarily to the statutory income tax rate reaburcin the United Kingdom ai
the renewal of the R&D tax credit in the Unitedt8sa The ETR is below the United States statutaty as a majority of o
income is earned in foreign jurisdictions with lowtax rates reflecting the shift in the geographmix of income during rece
periods with income earned in foreign jurisdictionsreasing as compared to income earned in theetli§itates. As a result,

ratio of domestic income to worldwide income hasrdased over recent fiscal periods effectively kimgethe overall tax rate d
to the fact that the tax rates in the majority afefgn jurisdictions where the Company operatessayeificantly lower than tt
statutory rate in the United States.

87




THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The components of income from continuing operatiogfore income taxes and extraordinary items aadribome tax provisic

related to income from all operations in our Coitlied Statements of Income consist of:

Years Ended October 31,

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Income before income taxes:

United States $ 3255 % 38,91 $ 40,65(

Foreign 263,98( 273,36( 234,80:
$ 296,53 $ 312,27 % 275,45

Income tax provision $ 24,708 % 15,36t $ 26,80¢

The income tax provision (benefit) related to ineoftom continuing operations in our Consolidateat&nents of Income consi

of:

Years Ended October 31,

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012
Current:
Federal $ 22,98¢ $ 21,60F $ 17,86:
State 1,127 1,05: 1,40(C
Foreign 16,59¢ 9,89t 14,35!
40,71( 32,55: 33,61«
Deferred:
Federal (5,27%) (8,05% (3,579
State (877) (81%) (857)
Foreign (9,85¢) (8,31 (2,382)
(16,009 (17,189 (6,80¢)
Income tax provision $ 24,70F % 15,36 $ 26,80¢

88




THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

We reconcile the provision for income taxes attidlle to income from operations and the amount caetphby applying tt
statutory federal income tax rate of 35% to incdrefore income taxes as follows:

Years Ended October 31,

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012
Computed expected provision for taxes $ 103,78 $ 109,29 $ 96,40¢
(Decrease) increase in taxes resulting from:
Income earned outside the United States subjalifferent tax rates (85,509 (97,009 (71,287
State taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 52t 52t 294
Foreign source income subject to United States tax 79¢ 294 —
Research and development credit (12€) (2,06¢) (131)
Incentive stock option compensation and non-debigcémployee
compensation 441 371 347
Tax accrual adjustment 3,78¢ 2,85¢ 66E&
Other, net 99¢ 1,09¢ 507
Actual provision for income taxes $ 24,70t $ 15,36! $ 26,80t

The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to the deferred tax assets and liabilities are

October 31,

(In thousands) 2014 2013
Deferred tax assets:
Accounts receivable, principally due to allowanfarsdoubtful accounts $ 1,358 % 1,14t
Inventories 4,44; 4,812
Litigation settlements 11€ 184
Accrued liabilities, reserves and compensationusdsr 38,10¢ 36,37
Restricted stock 24,67 19,92¢
Net operating loss carryforwards 6,24~ 3,55¢
Plant and equipment 5,701 5,51«
Research and experimental expenses - Section 59(e) 3,82 5,31¢
Tax credit carryforwards 11,62 11,09:
Total gross deferred tax assets 96,08¢ 87,92:
Less valuation allowance (14,50¢) (96%)
Deferred tax assets 81,58: 86,95
Deferred tax liabilities:
Tax deductible goodwill (24,207 (21,579
Transaction cost (1,149 (1,149
Foreign deferred tax liabilities (41,94 (20,179
Other intangible assets (27,880 (20,199
Bonus adjustments under new accounting method — (2,300
Total gross deferred tax liabilities (95,179 (54,399
Net deferred tax (liabilities) assets $ (1359) ¢ 32,56(

Current deferred tax liabilities of $20 thousandatober 31, 2014 , and $20 thousand at Octobe2@®13, are included in oth
accrued liabilities on the balance sheet.
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In assessing the realizability of deferred tax tsssee consider whether it is more likely than tiat some portion or all of t
deferred tax assets will not be realized. The @tarealization of deferred tax assets is depengsm the generation of futt
taxable income during the periods in which thoseperary differences become deductible. We condliescheduled reversal
deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxalvleome and tax planning strategies in making tegeasment. Based upon the |
of historical taxable income and projections fotufe taxable income over the periods in which teéeded tax assets
deductible, we believe it is more likely than nuattthe Company will realize the benefits of thesductible differences, net of-
existing valuation allowances at October 31, 20The amount of the deferred tax assets considegdizable, however, could
reduced in the near term if estimates of futuralée income during the carryforward period are cedu During the year enc
October 31, 2012, we recorded in purchase accayukiferred tax assets in connection with our adtpnsof Origio a/s an
subsidiaries. A valuation allowance of $1.1 millivas recorded in the process for Origio's capitas larising from a buildir
write-down expense related to the former headquarteegidocin Jyllig, Denmark. During the fiscal thirdigrter of 2013, w
revalued the deferred tax assets and liabilitieglireg in Denmark, along with the related valuatidiowance, to reflect the nev
enacted tax rate change that incrementally dealesecorporate tax rate. As a result, the valnaitowance was reduced $a.(
million .

For the year ended October 31, 2014, we record@drichase accounting deferred tax assets in cdonegith its acquisition ¢
Sauflon Pharmaceuticals, Ltd., and subsidiarievalvation allowance of $13.5 milliowas set up against Sauflon Hunge
development tax credits.

We have not provided for federal income tax on apipnately $1.7 billionof undistributed earnings of our foreign subsidie
since we intend to reinvest this amount outsiddthiged States indefinitely.

At October 31, 2014 , we had federal net operdtisg carryforwards of $9.8 millioand state net operating loss carryforwart
$40.4 million . We also had federal net operatingsl| carryforwards of $4.3 milliorelated to share option exercises a
October 31, 2014 . A tax benefit and a credit tditawhal paidin capital for the excess deduction would not lmgaized unt
such deduction reduces taxes payable. Additionakyhad $6.6 million of federal alternative minimtax credits, $4.2 millioof
federal research credits and $0.8 millmCalifornia research credits. The federal netrafpeg loss and federal research cre
carryforwards expire on various dates between 20&6igh 2034 and the federal alternative minimum tax credasc forwarc
indefinitely . The state net operating loss camyfirds expire on various dates between 2019 thr@0§4, and the Californi
research credits carry forward indefinitelfhe net operating loss and other tax credits begubject to certain limitations ug
utilization under Section 382 of the Internal RaveiCode.
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The aggregated changes in the balance of grossagniged tax benefits were as follows:

(In millions)

Balance at October 31, 2012 $ 28.1
(Decrease) from prior year's UTB's .3
Increase from current year's UTB's 6.4
UTB (decrease) from expiration of statute of lirtidas (6.8
Balance at October 31, 2013 26.£
Increase from prior year's UTB's 2.t
Increase from current year's UTB's 6.C
UTB (decrease) from expiration of statute of lirtidas (3.5
Balance at October 31, 2014 $ 31.4

As of October 31, 2014 , we had unrecognized tarefits of $32.0 million , including $4.1 millioof related accrued interest

penalties that, if recognized, would affect oueefive tax rate. It is our policy to recognize net&t and penalties directly relate
incomes taxes as additional income tax expense.

Included in the balance of unrecognized tax besefitOctober 31, 2014 , is $10.2 millicglated to tax positions for which it
reasonably possible that the total amounts cogdifsGantly change during the next twelve monthkisTamount represent:

decrease in unrecognized tax benefits related pirieg statutes in various jurisdictions worldwidad is comprised of trans
pricing and other items.

We are required to file income tax returns in thetéd States federal jurisdiction, various statd Extal jurisdictions, and ma
foreign jurisdictions.

As of October 31, 2014 the tax years for which we remain subject to &bhiStates federal income tax assessment
examination are 2011 through 2013, as well as otfggor tax jurisdictions including the United Kingd, Japan and France.
remain subject to income tax examinations in Alistfar the tax years 2010 through 2013.
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Note 7. Earnings Per Share

Years Ended October 31,

(In thousands, except per share amounts) 2014 2013 2012

Net income attributable to Cooper stockholders $ 269,85t $ 296,15, $ 248,33¢
Basic:

Weighted average common shares 48,06 48,61t 47,91
Basic earnings per share attributable to Coopekbtiders $ 561 $ 6.0¢ $ 5.1¢
Diluted:

Weighted average common shares 48,06: 48,61* 47,91
Effect of dilutive stock options 89¢ 1,07(¢ 1,23¢
Diluted weighted average common shares 48,96( 49,68¢ 49,15:
Diluted earnings per share attributable to Coopmkbiolders $ 551 $ 59¢ $ 5.0t

The following table sets forth stock options toghase Coopes’common stock and restricted stock units that wetencluded i
the diluted earnings per share calculation bectheeeffect would have been antidilutive for thexipds presented:

Years Ended October 31,

(In thousands, except exercise prices) 2014 2013 2012

Stock option shares excluded 13¢ — 24
Range of exercise prices $ 119.8¢ $ — $80.51-87.2-
Restricted stock units excluded 1 — —
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Note 8. Stockholders’ Equity

Analysis of changes in accumulated other compreheins income (loss):

Foreign Unrealized

Currency Gain (Loss) on Change in Value

Translation Marketable of Derivative Minimum
(In thousands) Adjustment Securities Instruments Pension Liability Total
Balance at October 31, 2011 $ (2,54)) $ 9 3 (2,82¢0 $ (12,75) (18,110
Gross change in value for the period (4,65%) 61 (1,420 (14,750 (20,767
Reclassification adjustments for loss realized i
income — — 2,161 — 2,161
Tax effect for the period — (20 (289) 5,76¢ 5,45k
Balance at October 31, 2012 $ (7,199 $ 50 $ (2,379 $ (21,739 (31,26))
Gross change in value for the period $ 2,607 $ —  $ (72€) $  19,00( 20,88:
Reclassification adjustments for (gain) loss
realized in income — (77) 2,92¢ — 2,84
Tax effect for the period — 27 (857) (7,399 (8,229)
Balance at October 31, 2013 $ (4,597 $ — 3 (2,039 $ (10,13) (15,767)
Gross change in value for the period $ (87,769 $ — 9 (60) $ (5,999 (93,81
Reclassification adjustments for loss realized i
income — — 1,67¢ — 1,67¢
Tax effect for the period — — (630) 2,34¢ 1,71¢
Balance at October 31, 2014 $ (92,359) $ — 3 47 $ (13,780 (106,187

Share Repurchases

In December 2011, our Board of Directors authorite®l 2012 Share Repurchase Program and subseqaemgiyded the tof
repurchase authorization to $500.0 millioiithe Company's common stock. With the amendntbist,program has no expirati
date and may be discontinued at any time. Purchasdsr the 2012 Share Repurchase Program are stbjacreview of th
circumstances in place at the time and may be rimadetime to time as permitted by securities lawd ather legal requirements.

During the twelve months ended October 31, 2014 repurchased 572 thousand shares of our commok fetio$75.8 millior
and approximately $185.7 millionemained authorized for repurchase under the pmegfuring the three months ent
October 31, 2014 , we repurchased 176 thousandsbathe Company's common stock for $25.8 milaban average purch:
price of $146.64 per share. For the three montdgadanuary 31, 2014, we repurchased 396 thousgards of the Compan

common stock for $50.0 million at an average puseharice of $126.21 per share. We did not repueckhares during the three

month periods ended July 31, 2014 and April 304201

During the twelve months ended October 31, 2018 repurchased 1.42 million shares of our commocksir $167.3 million.
During the twelve months ended October 31, 2018 repurchased 984 thousand shares of our commakfsto$71.2 million .

Cash Dividends

In fiscal 2014 and 2013, we paid semiannual divitdeof 3 cents per share: an aggregate of approsiyn®t.4 million or3 cent
per share on February 7, 2014, to stockholdersaird on January 24, 2014 ; $1.5 million or 3 ceetsshare on August 6, 20

to stockholders of record on July 24, 2014 ; $1iian or
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3 cents per share on February 7, 2013, to stockm®ldf record on January 25, 2013 ; $1.5 million3ocentsper share ¢
August 6, 2013, to stockholders of record on JdlyZD13 .

Stockholders' Rights Plan

Under our stockholders' rights plan, each outstapdhare of our common stock carries one-bhtine preferred share purch
right (Right). The Rights will become exercisabldyounder certain circumstances involving acquisitdf beneficial ownership
20% or more of our common stock by a person or groupq(#ing Person) without the prior consent of Catp®&oard c
Directors. If a person or group becomes an Acqgifferson, each Right would then entitle the ho{dérer than an Acquirir
Person) to purchase, for the then purchase pritieeoRight (currently $450subject to adjustment), shares of Cooper's cor
stock, or shares of common stock of any personwitith we are thereafter merged or to which 5®%more of our assets
earning power is sold, with a market value of twibe purchase price. The Rights will expire in ®eto2017 unless earl
exercised or redeemed. The Board of Directors radgem the Rights for $0.Qr Right prior to any person or group becor
an Acquiring Person.

Note 9. Stock Plans
At October 31, 2014 , Cooper had the following sHaased compensation plans:
2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan for Non-Employee Diretors (2006 Directors Plan)

In March 2006, the Company received stockholder@am of the 2006 Directors Plan, and it was aménblg the Board ¢
Directors in March 2007, October 2007, October 2868 December 2008. The Company received stockhalggroval of a
amendment and restatement of the 2006 Directors iRldMarch 2009 and the Board of Directors amentthed Amended ar
Restated 2006 Directors Plan in October 2009 antbi@®@c 2010. The Company received stockholder agpro¥ a furthe
amendment and restatement of the 2006 DirectorsiRIMarch 2011 and the Board of Directors amentiedSecond Amend
and Restated 2006 Directors Plan in October 20tfiglfer 2012 and October 2013.

The Second Amended and Restated 2006 Directors #aamended, authorizes either Cooper's Boardrettiors or a designat
committee thereof composed of two or more Non-EngsoDirectors to grant to Ndémployee Directors during the per
ending March 21, 2019 , equity awards for up to,080shares of common stock, subject to adjustmentuturé stock split
stock dividends, expirations, forfeitures and samévents.

As amended, the Second Amended and Restated 2086t@s Plan provides for annual grants of stockoap and restricte
stock to Non-Employee Directors on November 1 amdednber 15 , respectively, of each fiscal year.c8ipally, each Non-
Employee Director may be awarded on each Noventbénelright to purchase for $0.p@r share, a number of shares of restr
stock with a total value of $135,000 or $148,00¢hi& case of the NoBExecutive Chairman of the Board on the date of tyrEime
restrictions on the restricted stock will lapsetioa first anniversary of the date of grant . Eacmfmployee Director may also
awarded on each November 1, a grant of optionsitchase common stock with an approximate accountihge of $135,000 0t
in the case of the Lead Director and/or any norcetee Chairman of the Board, as the case may ftf&] 48,500 . Theseption:
vest on the first anniversary of the date of grabptions expire no more than 10 yeafter the grant date. In December 2008
2006 Directors' Plan was also amended to allowrelignary granting of stock options and/or restdcstock with similar terms
the annual grant other than the specific shareinmments. As of October 31, 2014, 211,5%fres remained available undetr
2006 Directors' Plan for future grants.
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2007 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2007 LTIP)

In March 2007, the Company received stockholder@a@p of the 2007 LTIP and in October 2007, the fdoaf Director:
amended the 2007 LTIP. In March 2009, the Compaagived stockholder approval of an amendment astdtesment of the 20
LTIP and in March 2011, the Company received stotddr approval of a further amendment and restatenfehe 2007 LTIP.

The Second Amended and Restated 2007 LTIP is dasbigm increase Cooper's stockholder value by d@ttracretaining an
motivating key employees and consultants who diréefluence our profitability. The Second Amendaitd Restated 2007 LT
authorizes either Cooper's Board of Directors, adegignhated committee thereof composed of two orentdonEmploye:
Directors, to grant to eligible individuals durinige period ending December 31, 2017, up to 5,280db@res in the form
specified equity awards including stock optiontnieted stock unit and performance share awardgestito adjustment for futu
stock splits, stock dividends, expirations, fordedts and similar events.

During fiscal 2014, the Company granted stock a@tjoestricted stock units (RSUs) and performaheeesawards to employe
under the Second Amended and Restated 2007 LTiHtyEzvards are granted at 10@ofair market value on the date of gi
and expire no more than 10 yeafter the grant date. Stock options may becomecesedrle based on our common stock achie
certain price targets, specified time periods etap®r other criteria designated by the Board ofebtiors or its authoriz
committee at their discretion. RSUs are nontraaslerawards entitling the recipient to receive eharf common stock, withc
any payment in cash or property, in one or morilments at a future date or dates as determigdgddéoBoard of Directors or
authorized committee. For RSUs, legal ownershiphef shares is not transferred to the employee thwilunit vests, which
generally over a specified time period. Performasicare awards are nontransferable awards entiti@gecipient to receive
variable number of shares of common stock, witlemyt payment in cash or property, in one or mortlimsents at a future de
or dates as determined by the Board of Directoiss@uthorized committee. Legal ownership of tharss is not transferred to
recipient until the award vests, and the numbeshafres distributed is dependent upon the achieveafierertain performan
targets over a specified period of time. As of @eto31, 2014 , 1,484,5&hares remained available under the Second Am
and Restated 2007 LTIP for future grants. The armadfinavailable shares includes shares which maydib&ibuted unde
performance share awards.

Share-Based Compensation

The compensation cost and related tax benefit rézed in our consolidated financial statementssfuarebased awards were
follows:

October 31,

(In millions) 2014 2013 2012
Selling, general and administrative expense $ 324 % 252 % 19.2
Cost of sales 2.2 1.¢ 1.2
Research and development expense 1.¢ 1.2 1.C
Capitalized in inventory 2.2 1.¢ 1.3
Total compensation expense $ 387 % 30.£ % 22.¢
Related income tax benefit $ 117 % 8.8 $ 7.C

Cash received from exercises under all stased payment arrangements for the fiscal yearsde@dtober 31, 2014, 2013 :
2012 was approximately $8.6 million , $19.3 milliand $55.1 million , respectively.
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Details regarding the valuation and accountingsfare-based awards follow.
Stock Options

The fair value of each stock option award grangeelstimated on the date of grant using the Bahkeles option valuation moi
and assumptions noted in the following table. Tkgeeted life of the awards is based on the obseanedexpected time to post:
vesting forfeiture and/or exercise. Groups of emppds that have similar historical exercise behaaterconsidered separately
valuation purposes. In determining the expectedtility, management considers implied volatilitprin publiclytraded options ¢
the Company's stock at the date of grant, histovigiatility and other factors. The ridkee interest rate is based on the contin
rates provided by the United States Treasury wittria equal to the expected life of the option. @ihedend yield is based on
projected annual dividend payment per share, divimlethe stock price at the date of grant.

Years Ended October 31, 2014 2013 2012
Expected life 4.8 -5.5 year 4.7 -5.5 year 4.3 -5.7 year
Expected volatility 31.5% -35.3% 34.8% -35.9% 39.5% -43.8%
Risk-free interest rate 1.36% -1.61% 0.63% -0.78% 0.69% -1.08%
Dividend yield 0.05% 0.0€% 0.0%

The activity and status of the Company's stockoopplans for the fiscal year ended and at OctobePB814, are summarize
below:

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining
Average Contractual
Number of Exercise Price Term Aggregate
Shares Per Share (in years) Intrinsic Value
Outstanding at October 31, 2013 1,708,671 $ 54.5¢
Granted 164,16t $ 121.2¢
Exercised 522,16! $ 52.0(
Forfeited or expired 26,747 % 81.7¢
Outstanding at October 31, 2014 1,323,931 $ 63.32 5.53
Vested and exercisable at October 31, 2014 900,03: g 48.0: 437 $  104,293,95

The weighted-average fair value of each option tgcuring fiscal 2014, estimated as of the grame dising the Blackchole
option pricing model, for the 2007 LTIP was $41.7Bhe weightedaverage fair value of each option granted duriegafi 2012
estimated as of the grant date using the Black{8shaption pricing model, for the 2007 LTIP was &1 For the 2006 Directo
Plan, the weighted-average fair values of optioratgd for fiscal 2014 and 2013 were $44.20 and2fB2respectively. Tr
expected requisite service period for options gmrtb employees in fiscal 2014 was 60 montA$e total intrinsic value
options exercised during the year ended Octobe2®14 was $46.7 million .

Stock awards outstanding under the Company's duptans have been granted at prices which areredtipeal to or above t
market value of the common stock on the date aftg@ptions granted under the 2007 LTIP generadist wver four to fiveyear:
based on market and service conditions and exgirkater than teryears after the grant date. Options granted urterR200
Directors Plan generally vest in one year or upcmexvement of a market condition and expire norlttan tenyears after tr
grant date. We generally recognize compensatioeresgratably over the vesting period. Directorsioog and restricted sto
grants

96




THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

are expensed on the date of grant as the 2006tDiseelan does not contain a substantive futuraiséq service period. As
October 31, 2014, there was $4.9 milliointotal unrecognized compensation cost relatebtovested options, which is expec
to be recognized over a remaining weighted-avevagéng period of 3 years.

Restricted Stock Units

RSUs granted under the 2007 LTIP have been grattpdces which are either equal to or above theketaralue of the stock «
the date of grant and generally vest over fouive years. The fair value of restricted stock unitesimated on the date of gr
based on the market price of our common stock. @®gnize compensation expense ratably over thengeperiod. As
October 31, 2014, there was $40.9 million of totalecognized compensation cost related tovested RSUs, which is expec
to be recognized over a remaining weighted-avevagéng period of 3.4 years.

The status of the Company's non-vested RSUs ab@rc81, 2013, is summarized below:

Weighted-
Average
Number of Grant Date Fair
Shares Value Per Share
Non-vested RSUs at October 31, 2013 647,18' $ 73.3%
Granted 217,45 $ 120.k
Vested and issued 232,13¢ $ 65.4
Forfeited or expired 33,83( % 81.1:
Non-vested RSUs at October 31, 2014 598,66 ¢ 93.0¢

Performance Units

Performance units are granted to selected exesudive other key employees with vesting contingponuneeting future report
earnings per share goals over a defined performayade, usually three year®erformance units, if earned, may be paid in cg
shares of common stock. The performance sharesllctarned will range from zero to 15086 the target number
performance shares for performance periods endifigaal 2014 through fiscal 2016. Subject to leditexceptions set forth in
performance share plan, any shares earned willidsigbdited in the immediate subsequent fiscal peafter the performan
period. The fair value of performance unit awarsiestimated on the date of grant based on thentumarket price of ol
common stock and the estimate of probability of @achievement. This estimate is reviewed eaclalfigeriod and adjustme:
are recorded if it is determined that the estinadifgrobability of award achievement has changed.

We recognize compensation expense ratably ovewdbgng period. As of October 31, 2014 , there $&<2 million of tota
unrecognized compensation cost related to vested performance units, which is expected togsegnized over a remaini
weighted-average vesting period of 1.6 years.

Performance units granted on December 14, 201kdeast October 31, 2014 and met 150%the target and, subject to
provisions of the plan, we expect to grant a simgarformance award in our fiscal first quarter 26f15. We also grant
performance unit awards on December 12, 2012 awdmeer 11, 2013 with specific performance goalsfarh period ending
October 31, 2015 and October 31, 2016, respectively
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Note 10. Employee Benefits
Cooper's Retirement Income Plan

Cooper's Retirement Income Plan (Plan), a definedefit plan, covers substantially all ftilne United States employe
Cooper's contributions are designed to fund nowoat on a current basis and to fund the estimated gervice cost of bene
improvements. The unit credit actuarial cost metisodsed to determine the annual cost. Cooper thegyentire cost of the Pl
and funds such costs as they accrue. Virtuallpfalhe assets of the Plan are comprised of equatigsparticipation in equity a
fixed income funds.

The following table sets forth the Plan's benefiigations and fair value of the Plan assets ab@mt31, 2014 and the funde
status of the Plan and net periodic pension costséch of the years in the three-year period ettdber 31, 2014 .

Retirement Income Plan

Years Ended October 31,

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012
Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 8416( $ 88,600 $ 64,98¢
Service cost 7,074 7,38¢ 4,937
Interest cost 3,95( 3,281 3,05¢
Benefits paid (1,768 (3,50¢) (1,308
Actuarial loss (gain) 7,69¢ (11,609 16,93¢
Benefit obligation, end of year $ 101,11 $ 84,16( $ 88,60
Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year $ 59,26¢ $ 47,427 $  39,09¢
Actual return on plan assets 5,95¢ 9,11: 4,411
Employer contributions 8,78¢ 6,23¢ 5,22¢
Benefits paid (1,76¢) (3,50¢) (1,30¢%)
Fair value of plan assets, end of year $ 7224 $ 59,266 $ 47,42
Funded status at end of year $ (28870 $§ (24899 $ (41,180

Years Ended October 31,
(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Amounts recognized in the statement of financial psition consist of:

Noncurrent asset $ — 3 — $ —
Current liability — — —
Noncurrent liabilities (28,87() (24,899 (41,180

Net amount recognized at year end $ (28870) $ (24,899 $ (41,180
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Years Ended October 31,
(In thousands)

2014

2013

2012

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehengt income consist of:
Net transition obligation

Prior service cost

Net loss

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Years Ended October 31,
(In thousands)

Information for pension plans with accumulated benét obligations in excess of
plan assets

Projected benefit obligation
Accumulated benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

Years Ended October 31,
(In thousands)

Reconciliation of prepaid (accrued) pension cost
Accrued pension cost at prior fiscal year end
Net periodic benefit cost

Contributions made during the year

Accrued pension cost at fiscal year end

Years Ended October 31,
(In thousands)

Components of net periodic benefit cost and othemaounts recognized in other
comprehensive income

Net periodic benefit cost:
Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Amortization of transitional (asset) or obligati
Amortization of prior service cost
Recognized actuarial loss

Net periodic pension cost

$ — % — 3 —

4 28 53

22,05¢ 15,98: 34,95

$ 22060 $ 16,01 $ 35,01
2014 2013 2012

$ 101,11 $ 84,16( $ 88,60

$ 8856! $ 7364 $ 77,59

$ 7224. $ 5926( $ 47,42
2014 2013 2012

$ (888) $ (6170 $ (5,660

6,71¢ 8,94¢ 5,73¢

8,78¢ 6,23¢ 5,22¢

$ (6810 $ (888) $ (6,170
2014 2013 2012

$ 707« $ 7,38 $ 4,93

3,95( 3,281 3,05:

(4,950) (3,937) (3,424)

— — 20

24 24 24

61€ 2,18¢ 1,12€

$ 671« $ 894 $  573¢

99




THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Years Ended October 31,
(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012

Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligatisnrecognized in othe
comprehensive income

Net transition obligation $ — 3 — 3 —
Prior service cost — — —
Net loss (gain) 6,69( (16,790 15,95(
Amortizations of net transition obligation — — (22)
Amortizations of prior service cost (24) (24) (24)
Amortizations of net gain (61€) (2,18¢) (1,12¢)
Total recognized in other comprehensive income $ 6,05( $ (19,000 $ 14,77¢

Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost atiieocomprehensive income  $ 12,76 $ (10,05) § 20,51t

The estimated net loss, net transition obligatios arior service cost for the plan that will be atized from accumulated other
comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost the next fiscal year are $987 thousand n#i0$d thousandrespectively

Years Ended October 31, 2014 2013 2012

Weighted-average assumptions used in computing timet periodic pension
cost and projected benefit obligation at year end:

Discount rate for determining net periodic pengioat 4.7%% 3.75% 4.7%%
Discount rate for determining benefit obligationyear end 4.25% 4.7%% 3.7%%
Rate of compensation increase for determining esg@en 4.0(% 4.0(% 4.0%
Rate of compensation increase for determining lieoigligations at year end 4.0(% 4.0(% 4.0(%
Expected rate of return on plan assets for detemgpimet periodic pension cost 8.0(% 8.0(% 8.5(%
Expected rate of return on plan assets at year end 8.0(% 8.0(% 8.0(%

Measurement date for determining assets and bedififations at year end 10/31/201. 10/31/201. 10/31/201.

The discount rate enables us to state expectecefoaish flows at a present value on the measurethaéat The discount rate u:
for the plan is based primarily on the yields afraverse of high quality corporate bonds or thet spte of high quality AAratec
corporate bonds, with durations corresponding éekpected durations of the benefit obligationchange in the discount r.
will cause the present value of benefit obligatimshange in the opposite direction. If a discaaité of 4.75% which is simila
to prior fiscal year, had been used, the projebukfit obligation would have been $93.0 millipand the accumulated ben

obligation would have been $81.9 million .

The expected rate of return on plan assets wasntietx based on a review of historical returnshbfotr this plan and fi
medium- to largesized defined benefit pension funds with similasetsallocations. This review generated separateacbq
returns for each asset class listed below. Thepeotxd future returns were then blended based isnPlan's target as:

allocation.
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Plan Assets

Weighted-average asset allocations at year ends$st category are as follows:

Years Ended October 31, 2014 2013 2012
Asset category

Cash and cash equivalents 3.% 5.2% 3.(%
Corporate common stock 9.C% 14.€% 16.5%
Equity mutual funds 52.1% 47.5% 43.2%
Real estate funds 4.1% 3.&% 5.2%
Bond mutual funds 31.8% 28.8% 32.1%
Total 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%

The Plan invests in a diversified portfolio of @éssatended to minimize risk of poor returns whit@ximizing expected portfol
returns. To achieve the lorigrm rate of return, plan assets will be invested mixture of instruments, including but not liet
to, corporate common stock (may include the Comigasipck), investment grade bond funds, cash, bethfunds, real est:
funds, small or large cap equity funds and intéonal equity funds. The allocation of assets wdldetermined by the investm
manager, and will typically include 50% to 808quities with the remainder invested in fixed ineoand cash. Presently, f
diversified portfolio is expected to return rouglly%in the long run. Effective November 1, 2012, thpented rate of return

assets was reduced from 8.5% to 8.0% .

Fair Value Measurement of Plan Assets

Quoted Prices

in Active Significant Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs

(In thousands) Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Asset category
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,191 % 2,191 $ — 3 —
Corporate common stock 6,51¢ 6,51¢ — =
Equity mutual funds 37,63¢ 37,63¢ — —
Real estate funds 2,95¢ 2,95¢ — —
Bond mutual funds 22,94¢ 22,94¢ — —
Total $ 72,24: $ 72,24: $ — 9 =

The Plan has an established process for determihenair value of plan assets. Fair value is bagezh quoted market prices,
Level 1 inputs, where available. For our investraéntequity and bond mutual funds, and real edtatds, fair value is based
observable, Level 1 inputs, as price quotes ardélada and the fair values of these funds were ingtacted by liquidit
restrictions or the fund status. Level 2 assetstlamee where price quotes are not readily availabkk the fair value would

determined based on other observable inputs. L3askets are those where price quotes are nolyreadilable and the fair val

would be determined based on unobservable inputs.

While we believe our valuation methods are appetpriand consistent with other market participatiie, use of differel
methodologies or assumptions to determine thevédire of certain financial instruments could regula different estimate of f

value at the reporting date.
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Plan Cash Flows

Contributions

The Company contributions to the pension plan v#&& million , $6.2 million and $5.2 milliofor fiscal 2014, 2013 and 20:
respectively. We closely monitor the funded statiuighe Plan with respect to legislative and accimgntules. We expect to me

contributions of about $10.0 million during fis@015.

Estimated Future Benefit Payments

Years

(In thousands)

2015 $ 2,25¢
2016 $ 2,64¢
2017 $ 3,04¢
2018 $ 3,41¢
2019 $ 3,87¢
2020 - 2024 $ 26,79’

Cooper's 401(k) Savings Plan

Cooper's 401(k) savings plan provides for the dafef compensation as described in the InternakeRee Code and is availa
to substantially all United States employees. Eygds who participate in the 401(k) plan may eledbdve up to 75%f theil
pretax salary or wages deferred and contributed totiih&t established under the plan. Cooper's caritoibs on account

participating employees, net of forfeiture creditgre $4.0 million , $3.4 million and $2.9 millidar the years ended October
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

International Pension Plans

For our employees outside the United States, we @dsticipate in country-specific defined contribat plans and government-
sponsored retirement plans. The defined contribuptans are administered by thpdsty trustees and we are not dire
responsible for providing benefits to participaotggovernment-sponsored plans. The Compamgntributions to such plans
not significant individually or in the aggregate.

Note 11. Fair Value Measurements

As of October 31, 2014 and October 31, 201Be carrying value of cash and cash equivaleadspunts receivable, prep
expenses and other current assets, lines of cemibunts payable and other current liabilitiesragmate fair value due to t
short-term nature of such instruments and thetglbdiobtain financing on similar terms.

Assets and liabilities are measured and reportéairatalue per related accounting standards thfibe fair value as the price tl
would be received to sell an asset or paid to tears liability in an orderly transaction betweeranket participants at t
measurement date. The fair value hierarchy praastithe inputs to valuation techniques used to mnedair value. An asset’ol
liability’ s level is based on the lowest level of input thatignificant to the fair value measurement. Assetd liabilities carried
fair value are valued and disclosed in one of thiewing three levels of the valuation hierarchy:
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Level 1: Quoted market prices in active marketsdentical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Observable market-based inputs or unobsésvinputs that are corroborated by market data.
Level 3: Unobservable inputs reflecting the repaytentity’s own assumptions.

We believe that the balances of our revolving Qrédireement and term loans approximated theirvialues as of October :
2014 and October 31, 2013 and are categorized\as Pef the fair value hierarchy.

We have derivative assets and liabilities thatudel interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps @edyi currency forwal
contracts. The impact of the counterpastgreditworthiness when in an asset position anop€cs creditworthiness when i
liability position has also been factored into the value measurement of the derivative instrureeBbth the counterparty &
Cooper are expected to continue to perform undecdmtractual terms of the instruments.

We may use interest rate swaps to maintain ouretesnix of fixed-rate and variablate debt. The swaps exchange fixed
variable rate payments without exchanging the naliprincipal amount of the debt. We have electedse the income appro:
to value the derivatives using observable Levela2ket expectations at the measurement date andbsthwmaluation techniques
convert future amounts to a single present amassuraing that participants are motivated but notpeihad to transact. Leve
inputs are limited to quoted prices for similaredssor liabilities in active markets, specificaliyrodollar futures contracts up
three years, and inputs other than quoted pricsaite observable for the asset or liabilitypecifically LIBOR cash and sw
rates and credit risk at commonly quoted intervdisl-market pricing is used as a practical expedientdioivalue measuremen

We may use foreign exchange forward contracts tomize, to the extent reasonable and practical egposure to the impact
foreign currency fluctuations. We have electedde the income approach to value the derivativegusioservable Level 2 marl
expectations at the measurement date and standardtion techniques to convert future amounts ®ngle present amot
assuming that participants are motivated but notpmlled to transact. Level 2 inputs for the valmagi are limited to quoted pric
for similar assets or liabilities in active marketsd inputs other than quoted prices that are whbky for the asset or liability -
specifically LIBOR cash rates, credit risk at conmiyoquoted intervals, foreign exchange spot rated farward points. Mid-
market pricing is used as a practical expedientdioivalue measurements.

The following table sets forth Coopsrfinancial assets and liabilities that were meadat fair value on a recurring basis u
Level 2 inputs during the fiscal years 2014 and®0&ithin the fair value hierarchy at October 31 :

(In millions) 2014 2013

Assets:

Foreign exchange contracts $ 0.€ $ 0.2

Liabilities:

Credit Agreement $ 279 % —

Term loans 1,000.( 300.(

Interest rate swaps 0.1 1.7

Foreign exchange contracts 8. 0.€
$ 1,282.¢ $ 302.:
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Note 12. Commitments and Contingencies
Lease Commitments

Total minimum annual rental obligations under nawedable operating leases (substantially all reap@rty or equipment)
force at October 31, 2014 , were payable as follows

(In thousands)

2015 $ 25,28¢
2016 21,81¢
2017 17,95¢
2018 16,34¢
2019 14,96"
2020 and thereafter 60,70’

Aggregate rental expense for both cancelable amdamzelable contracts amounted to $25.6 millio22.8& million and$33.z
million in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Legal Proceedings

On or about November 11, 2014, Johnson & Johnsa@oiViCare (JJVC) filed an action in the districuoof Dusseldor
Germany, against CooperVision GmbH and CooperVijslan. (collectively “CooperVision”for patent infringement. In tl
action, JJVC alleges that certain CooperVision potsl infringe JJVG European Patent No. EP 1 754 728 B1, and isrwg
damages and to enjoin these products from seltingarmany. CooperVision is challenging the validifythe patent before t
European Patent Office. CooperVision denies J3\Allegations of infringement and intends to defévedaction vigorously and
continue its challenge to the patent before theopesn Patent Office. We are not in a position &ess whether any loss
adverse effect on our financial condition is prdbaly remote or to estimate the range of potefass, if any.
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Note 13. Business Segment Information

Cooper uses operating income, as presented inirmamdial reports, as the primary measure of segmefitability. We do nc
allocate costs from corporate functions to segnogrgrating income. ltems below operating income rase considered whi
measuring the profitability of a segment. We use same accounting policies to generate segmenlisessi we do for ol
consolidated results.

Total net sales include sales to customers astezpor our Consolidated Statements of Income aled $tween geographic ar
that are priced at terms that allow for a reasangbbfit for the seller. Operating income (loss)atal net sales less cost of se
selling, general and administrative expenses, resemd development expenses, amortization of gibéen assets and the loss
divestiture of Aime. Corporate operating loss isi@pally corporate headquarters expense. Intexggénse, gain on insural
proceeds, loss on extinguishment of debt and otiteme and expenses are not allocated to individeginents. Neither of ¢
business segments relies on any one major customer.

Identifiable assets are those used in continuireggaifwns except cash and cash equivalents, whicinelede as corporate ass
Long-lived assets are property, plant and equipment

The following table presents a summary of our bessrsegment net sales:

(In thousands) 2014 2013 2012
CooperVision net sales by category:
Toric lens $ 429,19: $ 388,06t $ 357,21
Multifocal lens 147,68 121,73 94,44
Single-use sphere lens 307,95t 271,00( 267,09(
Non single-use sphere and other eye care produndtstaer 507,81( 487,51 470,50(
Total CooperVision net sales 1,392,64 1,268,31! 1,189,24.
CooperSurgical net sales 325,12¢ 319,40¢ 255,89:
Total net sales $ 1,717,777 $ 1,587,72! % 1,445,13
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Information by business segment for each of thesymethe three-year period ended October 31, 2Z@lldws:

(In thousands) CooperVision CooperSurgical Corporate Consolidated
2014

Net sales $ 139264 $ 325,12¢ $ — $ 1,717,777
Operating income (loss) $ 288,99¢ $ 69,03: $ (51549 $ 306,48t
Other expense, net (1,987)
Interest expense (7,96%)
Income before income taxes $ 296,53«
Identifiable assets $ 3,699,61 $ 646,20 $ 112,52¢ $  4,458,34
Depreciation expense $ 9553t $ 6,48¢ $ 47C % 102,49:
Amortization expense $ 22,70:  $ 13,00¢ $ — $ 35,71(
Capital expenditures $ 233,63 $ 4,17 % 26C $ 238,06!
2013

Net sales $ 1,268,331 $ 319,40t $ — $ 1,587,722
Operating income (loss) $ 289,27. $ 60,68 $ (44,019 $ 305,94!
Other income, net 1,41(C
Interest expense (9,16%)
Gain on insurance proceeds 14,08
Income before income taxes $ 312,27:
Identifiable assets $ 2,376,022 $ 632,84 $ 128,39! $ 3,137,26.
Depreciation expense $ 88,35( $ 6,31€ $ 444 % 95,11(
Amortization expense $ 16,71C % 13,52¢ % — ¢ 30,23¢
Capital expenditures $ 170,73¢ $ 6,88¢ $ 50C $ 178,12
2012

Net sales $ 1,189,24 % 255,89: $ — $ 1,44513
Operating income (loss) $ 262,80t $ 58,95t $ (38,369 $% 283,39¢
Other income, net 22¢
Interest expense (22,777
Gain on insurance proceeds 5,00(
Loss on extinguishment of debt (1,404
Income before income taxes $ 275,45
Identifiable assets $ 225147 % 607,67. $ 82,23t $ 2,941,38
Depreciation expense $ 82,82¢ $ 4,10¢ $ 30C % 87,23t
Amortization expense $ 15,57¢ $ 8,401 $ — $ 23,97¢
Capital expenditures $ 92,45¢ % 6,647 $ 67 9 99,77¢
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Information by geographical area by country of dahaifor each of the years in the three-year pednded October 31, 2014
follows:

Rest of

World, Other
United Eliminations

(In thousands) States Europe & Corporate Consolidated
2014

Sales to unaffiliated customers $ 773,73¢ % 582,44 $ 361,59. $ 1,717,77
Sales between geographic areas 230,64 345,98t (576,63 —
Net sales $ 1,00438 $ 928,43 $ (215,04) $ 1,717,771
Operating income (loss) $ 47,800 % (10,330 $% 269,01 $ 306,48t
Long-lived assets $ 499,19 $ 406,43 $ 31,690 $ 937,32!
2013

Sales to unaffiliated customers $ 742,21¢ 3 479,14 % 366,36 $ 1,587,72
Sales between geographic areas 230,38: 326,33t (556,72() —
Net sales $ 972,59¢ $ 805,48. $ (190,35 $ 1,587,72!
Operating income (loss) $ 49,71: % (5,38 $ 261,62 $ 305,94!
Long-lived assets $ 42756( $ 297,15 $ 15,15 $ 739,86
2012

Sales to unaffiliated customers $ 680,75 $ 408,81: $ 355,56t $ 1,445,13
Sales between geographic areas 198,59: 318,19¢ (516,789 —
Net sales $ 879,35( $ 727,00¢ % (161,22) $  1,445,13
Operating income $ 4497 % 5361 $ 233,05c $ 283,39¢
Long-lived assets $ 371,31: $ 261,26¢ $ 767: % 640,25!
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Note 14. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unauditd)

First Second Third Fourth
(In thousands) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter*
2014
Net sales $ 404,98( $ 412,31 $ 432,48. $ 467,99
Gross profit $ 262,92¢ $ 268,49¢ $ 280,59 $ 279,55:
Income before income taxes $ 79,45¢ $ 87,82 $ 94,38: $ 34,87"
Net income attributable to Cooper stockholders $ 71,84: % 79,16( $ 88,060 $ 30,78
Earnings per share attributable to Cooper stocldnsld
basic $ 15C $ 165 $ 18: % 0.64
Earnings per share attributable to Cooper stocldnsld
diluted $ 147 $ 162 $ 1.8 $ 0.6:
2013
Net sales $ 379,83¢ % 384,04. $ 411,99: $ 411,85.
Gross profit $ 240,49t $ 254,17¢ $ 268,27: $ 263,85
Income before income taxes** $ 80,97¢ $ 78,94( $ 91,26« $ 61,09:
Net income attributable to Cooper stockholders $ 74667 $ 75,13t $ 88,95. $ 57,39'
Earnings per share attributable to Cooper stocldnsléd
basic $ 154 % 158 % 1.8z % 1.1¢
Earnings per share attributable to Cooper stocldnsld
diluted $ 15C $ 152 % 1.7¢ % 1.1¢

*Fiscal fourth quarter 2014 results include theragiag results of Sauflon Pharmaceuticals Ltd. u&egl in August 2014, and t
related acquisition, integration and restructurcwgts. Please refer to Management's Discussion Aaradysis of Financic
Condition and Results of Operations in Iltem 7 andeN? and Note 3 for additional information.

**Fiscal fourth quarter 2013 results include thet @2million loss on divestiture of Aime. See Notéof additional information.
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Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants orcéignting and Financial Disclosure.
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company has established and currently main@isdosure controls and procedures designed tarerthat informatio
required to be disclosed in its reports filed untder Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recordedcessed, summarized :
reported within the time periods specified by treeBities and Exchange Commission and that sudmnation is accumulat:
and communicated to management, including the CExetutive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, atlow timely decision
regarding required disclosures. In designing araluating the disclosure controls and proceduresiagement recognizes t
controls and procedures, no matter how well desigaral operated, can provide only reasonable assu@nachieving desir
control objectives. In reaching a reasonable l@fehssurance, management necessarily was requragpy its judgment
evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of pogstuntrols and procedures.

In conjunction with the close of each fiscal quartee Company conducts a review and evaluatiodeuthe supervision and w
the participation of the Company's managementudiol the Chief Executive Officer and Chief FinaahcOfficer, of the
effectiveness of the design and operation of then@my's disclosure controls and procedures. Thep@ogs Chief Executiy
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, based uponitiewaluation as of October 31, 201the end of the fiscal period covered in
report, concluded that the Company's disclosuréralsnand procedures were effective at the readersesurance level.

Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and tai@ing adequate internal control over financighaing, as such term
defined in Rule 13d5(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 193terimal control over financial reporting is a pracegsigne
to provide reasonable assurance regarding thebilgliaof financial reporting and the preparatiofh flnancial statements f
external purposes in accordance with generallymedeaccounting principles. Because of its inheliemtations, internal contr:
over financial reporting may not prevent or detdcimisstatements, errors or fraud.

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Cgtmjpaternal control over financial reporting as@ftober 31, 2014based o
the criteria set forth by the Committee of SponapiOrganizations of the Treadway Commissiotniernal Control - Integrated
Framework (1992) . Based on this assessment, management, undeugbkevision and with the participation of the Comye
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officeoncluded that the Company's internal controlr direncial reporting we
effective as of October 31, 2014 .

Management has excluded Sauflon Pharmaceuticalgedrfrom its assessment of internal control owearicial reporting as
October 31, 2014, as permitted by the guidancesetbdly the Office of the Chief Accountant of the @#es and Exchan
Commission. Sauflon was acquired by the Compary jjurchase business combination during the fisnath quarter of 201
and represented 3% and 30%, respectively, of hetiasales and total assets of the related consatidmancial statement amou
as of and for the year ended October 31, 2014.
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The Company's independent registered public acoauriirm, KPMG LLP, has audited the effectivenedstite Company
internal control over financial reporting as of Gmer 31, 2014 as stated in their report in Part I, Iltem 8istAnnual Report ¢
Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There has been no change in the Company's inteamatol over financial reporting during the Companfyscal quarter end

October 31, 2014 that has materially affected, or is reasonalkglyi to materially affect, the Company's internahtrol ove
financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governe.

The information required by this item is incorpetby reference to the subheadings, “Proposal lectiin of Directors,”
“Executive Officers of the Company,” “Ownershiptbe Company - Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownershipdréeng Compliance,”
“Corporate Governance - The Board of Directors,’bff@brate Governance - Ethics and Business Condulatyf® “ Corporat:
Governance - Board Committees - The Audit Commiitaeel “Report of the Audit Committeeasf the Company's Proxy Statem
for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders scheduletig¢dield in March 2015 (the “2015 Proxy Statement”)

Iltem 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this item is incorpeditby reference to the subheading®eport of the Organization a
Compensation Committee,” “Compensation Discussion ahnalysis,” “Executive Compensation Tables” anBirectol
Compensation” of the 2015 Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aibinagement and Related Stockholder Matters.

See Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equitgt Related Stockholder Matter€Equity Compensation Plan Informati
Additional information required by this item is mporated by reference to the subheadings “Seesirideld by Insidersanc
“Principal Securityholders” of the “Ownership oktlCompany” section of the 2015 Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, dbutector Independence.

The information required by this item is incorpetby reference to the subheadings “Corporate Gavee -Related Pari
Transactions,” “Proposal 1 - Election of Directorsid “Corporate Governance - The Board of Direttafsthe 2015 Prox
Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services.

The information required by this item is incorpediy reference to “Report of the Audit Committsettion of the 2015 Pro
Statement.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
(&) 1. Financial Statements
The following financial statements are filed asaat jpf this report:

Report of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Publicdunting Firm

Consolidated Financial Statements:
Statements of Income for the years ended Octohe2®BH, 2013 and 2012
Statements of Comprehensive Income for the yeatse@ctober 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
Balance Sheets as of October 31, 2014 and 2013
Statements of Stockholders' Equity for the yeadedrOctober 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended Oc8ih014, 2013 and 2012
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Schedules of the Company.

Schedule Number Description
Schedule Il Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

(b) Exhibits.
The exhibits listed on the accompanying Exhibitexére filed as part of this report.

All other schedules which are included in the aggllle accounting regulations of the Securities &mxthang
Commission are not required here because theyatigpplicable.
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THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Three Years Ended October 31, 2014

Additions

Balance Charged to (Deductions) Balance

Beginning Costs and Recoveries/ at End
(In thousands) of Year Expenses Other (1) of Year
Allowance for doubtful accounts:
Year Ended October 31, 2014 $ 5261 $ 1,65¢ $ (890) $ 6,02¢
Year Ended October 31, 2013 $ 437 % 152 % (637) $ 5,261
Year Ended October 31, 2012 $ 4,82¢ $ (257 $ (195) $ 4,374

@ Consists of additions representing allowances andveries, less deductions representing receivablgen off as uncollectibli

Balance Balance

Beginning Reductions/ Charges at End
(In thousands) of Year Additions (2) (©)] of Year
Income tax valuation allowance:
Year Ended October 31, 2014 $ 96¢ $ 13,53¢ $ — % 14,50¢
Year Ended October 31, 2013 $ 1,107 $ — % (139 ¢ 96¢
Year Ended October 31, 2012 $ — % 1,107 $ — $ 1,107

@During the fiscal fourth quarter of 2014, we reaatdn purchase accounting deferred tax assetsnimection with its acquisitic
of Sauflon Pharmaceuticals, Ltd., and subsidiarfesvaluation allowance of $13.5 milliowas set up against Sauf
Hungary's development tax credits.

® During the fiscal third quarter of 2013, we revalukeferred tax assets and liabilities residing @mnfark, along with the relat
valuation allowance to reflect the newly enactedrgde change that incrementally decreased theocatgtax rate.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 18{dhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused t
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigtieereunto duly authorized, on December 19, 2014.

THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC.
By: /s/ ROBERT S. WEISS

Robert S. Weiss
Chief Executive Officer and Director

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed belpthe following persons
behalf of the registrant and in the capacitiesdattid on the dates set forth opposite their resjgecames.

Signature Capacity Date
/sl ROBERT S. WEISS President, Chief Executive Officer and Director December 19, 201
(Robert S. Weiss)
/sl A. THOMAS BENDER Chairman of the Board December 19, 201
(A. Thomas Bender)
/s/ ALLAN E. RUBENSTEIN, M.D. Vice Chairman of the Board and Lead Director December 19, 201

(Allan E. Rubenstein)
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Chielsk

/sl GREG W. MATZ Officer December 19, 201
(Greg W. Matz) (Principal Financial Officer)
/s/ TINA MALONEY Vice President and Corporate Controller December 19, 201
(Tina Maloney) (Principal Accounting Officer)
/s/ MICHAEL H. KALKSTEIN Director December 19, 201
(Michael H. Kalkstein)
/s/ JODY S. LINDELL Director December 19, 201
(Jody S. Lindell)
/sl GARY S. PETERSMEYER Director December 19, 201
(Gary S. Petersmeyer)
/sl STEVEN ROSENBERG Director December 19, 201
(Steven Rosenberg)
/s STANLEY ZINBERG, M.D. Director December 19, 201
(Stanley Zinberg)
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EXHIBIT INDEX

L ocation of
Exhibit in

Exhibit Sequential
Number  Description of Document Number System
2.1

2.2

3.1

3.2

4.1

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

Sale and Purchase Agreement, dated as of June032@, 2mong The Cooper Companies, Inc., CooperVigit)
Holdings Limited, and the sellers party theretag;omporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Conypa Currer
Report on Form 8-K filed July 1, 2014

Sale and Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 4, 20thong The Cooper Companies, Inc., CooperVisloK)
Holdings Limited, and the sellers party theretg;omporated by reference to Exhibit 2.2 of the Conypa Currer
Report on Form 8-K filed July 1, 2014

Second Restated Certificate of Incorporation fileith the Delaware Secretary of State, incorpordigdeference |
Exhibit 3.1 of the Company's Current Report on F8ri dated January 13, 2006

Amended and Restated Baws, The Cooper Companies, Inc., dated Decembe2@H), incorporated by reference
Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's Current Report on F8rkidated December 15, 2010

Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, dateaf &ctober 29, 2007, between the Company and AwaerStoc
Transfer & Trust Company, as Rights Agent, incogped by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Companyiséht Repo
on Form 8-K dated October 30, 2007

Change in Control Agreement entered into aduajust 21, 1989, by and between Robert S. Weisstlamdompan'
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to Anmardt No. 1 to the Company's Annual Report on FobrKilfor the
fiscal year ended October 31, 1992

Change in Control Agreement entered into akofiary 3, 2007, and amended September 9, 20@Bdolyetween Albe
G. White Ill and the Company, incorporated by refee to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company's Annual ReporForm 10K
for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2013

The Cooper Companies, Inc. Change in Contreéface Plan, dated May 21, 2007, incorporatecfgrence to Exhik
10.1 to the Company's Quarterly Report on FormQ@or the fiscal quarter ended July 31, 2007

Change in Control Agreement dated as of Jun2087, by and between The Cooper Companies, Irit.Camiel G
McBride, Esq.

Change in Control Agreement dated as of Jun2087, by and between The Cooper Companies, Iret.Garol R
Kaufman, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 11@.2he Company's Annual Report on FormKL®er the fiscal yee
ended October 31, 2009

Change in Control Agreement dated as of Jurz010, by and between The Cooper Companies, It Gaagory W
Matz , incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@b7the Company's Annual Report on FormKlL@er the fiscal yee
ended October 31, 2011

1996 Long-term Incentive Plan for Nemployee Directors of The Cooper Companies, Imcgiiporated by reference
Appendix A to the Company's Proxy Statement fol @36 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
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10.8 - Amendment No. 1 to 1996 Long-term IncentivarPior Nor-Employee Directors of The Cooper Companies, Iratec
October 10, 1996, incorporated by reference to IixHi0.14 to the Company's Annual Report on ForrK1f@r the
fiscal year ended October 31, 1996

10.9 - Amendment No. 2 to 1996 Long-term IncentivarPor Nor-Employee Directors of The Cooper Companies, Iretec
October 29, 1997, incorporated by reference to IixHi0.15 to the Company's Annual Report on ForrK1for the
fiscal year ended October 31, 1997

10.10- Amendment No. 3 to 1996 Long-term IncentivarPior Nor-Employee Directors of The Cooper Companies, Iratec
October 29, 1999, incorporated by reference to likHhi0.15 to the Company's Annual Report on ForrK1for the
fiscal year ended October 31, 2001

10.11- Amendment No. 4 to 1996 Long-term IncentivarPior Nor-Employee Directors of The Cooper Companies, Iratec
October 24, 2000, incorporated by reference to IixHi0.16 to the Company's Annual Report on ForrK1for the
fiscal year ended October 31, 2001

10.12- Amendment No. 5 to the 1996 Long-term Incent®lan for Noremployee Directors of The Cooper Companies,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to thmmPany's Annual Report on Form KOfor the fiscal year end:
October 31, 2001

10.13- Amendment No. 6 to the 1996 Long-term IncentiRlan for Noremployee Directors of The Cooper Companies,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.15 to thenPany's Registration Statement on Forr8 8ated November 2z
2002

10.14- Amendment No. 7 to the 1996 Long-term IncentRlan for Noremployee Directors of The Cooper Companies,
dated November 4, 2002, incorporated by referemdexhibit 10.16 to the Company's Annual Report omi-10K for
the fiscal year ended October 31, 2002

10.15- Amendment No. 8 to 1996 Long-term IncentivarPlor Nor-Employee Directors of The Cooper Companies, Intec
October 29, 2003, incorporated by reference to likHi0.16 to the Company's Annual Report on ForrK1for the
fiscal year ended October 31, 2003

10.16- Amendment No. 9 to 1996 Long-term IncentivarPlor Nor-Employee Directors of The Cooper Companies, Intec
November 9, 2005, incorporated by reference to Iixii0.17 to the Company's Annual Report on ForrKifor the
fiscal year ended October 31, 2006

10.17- Form of NonQualified Stock Option Agreement Pursuant to Theges Companies, Inc. 1996 Long Term Incer
Plan for Non-Employee Directors, incorporated bfemence to the Company's Current Report on Forkh datec
December 13, 2004

10.18- Form of Restricted Stock Agreement Pursuarfite Cooper Companies, Inc. 1996 Long Term Incenflan for Non-
Employee Directors, incorporated by reference ® @ompany's Current Report on FornK&ated December 1
2004

10.19- The Second Amended and Restated 2006 Long Tecentive Plan for Nof=mployee Directors of The Cooj
Companies, Inc., incorporated by reference to the@any's Proxy Statement filed February 2, 2011

10.20- Amendment No. 1 to the Second Amended andalResP006 Long-term Incentive Plan for NEmployee Directors
The Cooper Companies, Inc., incorporated by refarén Exhibit 10.21 to the Company's Annual ReparfForm 10K
for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2011
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10.21- Amendment No. 2 to the Second Amended andaRekR006 Long-term Incentive Plan for NEemployee Directors
The Cooper Companies, Inc., incorporated by reteréa Exhibit 10.22 to the Company's Annual Reparform 10K
for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2012

10.22 - Amendment No. 3 to the Second AmendedRestated 2006 Long-term Incentive Plan for Nionployee Directors
The Cooper Companies, Inc., incorporated by refarén Exhibit 10.23 to the Company's Annual ReparfForm 10K
for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2013

10.23- Form of NonQualified Stock Option Agreement Pursuant to The@gs Companies, Inc. 2006 Long Term Incer
Plan for NonEmployee Directors, incorporated by reference tbilgik 10.25 of the Company's Annual Report on F
10-K for the fiscal year ended October 31, 2007

10.24- Form of Restricted Stock Agreement Pursuarithie Cooper Companies, Inc. 2006 Long Term Incerfilan for Non-
Employee Directors, incorporated by reference thiiik 10.26 of the Company's Annual Report on FAIOK for the
fiscal year ended October 31, 2007

10.25- Second Amended and Restated 2001 Lbaign Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference fmpekdix 10.2 to tf
Company's Quarterly Report on Form-Tdfor the fiscal quarter ended April 30, 2006

10.26- Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement Punsua The Cooper Companies, Inc. 2001 Long Ternentice Plar
incorporated by reference to the Company's CuRRepiort on Form 8-K dated December 13, 2004

10.27- The Second Amended and Restated 2007 Oamg: Incentive Plan of The Cooper Companies, limcorporated b
reference to the Company's Proxy Statement filduntusey 2, 2011

10.28- Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreementr§uant to the 2007 LonBerm Incentive Plan of The Coo
Companies, Inc., incorporated by reference to Exhilh32 of the Company's Annual Report on FornKliar the fisca
year ended October 31, 2007

10.29- Form of UK Tax Approved Stock Option Agreeméhirsuant to the 2007 Lonigerm Incentive Plan of The Coo
Companies, Inc., incorporated by reference to Bxhih33 of the Company's Annual Report on FornKlior the fisca
year ended October 31, 2007

10.30- Form of Deferred Stock Agreement Pursuanth 2007 LongFerm Incentive Plan of The Cooper Companies,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.34 of thempany's Annual Report on Form KOfor the fiscal year end:
October 31, 2007

10.31 License Agreement dated as of November 19, 2007ariy among CIBA Vision AG, CIBA Vision Corporated

@. CooperVision, Inc., incorporated by reference tdibit 10.41 to the Company's Annual Report on FAO for the
fiscal year ended October 31, 2008

10.32®- Amendment No. 1 to the License Agreement datedf &owember 19, 2007, by and among CIBA Vision AGB&
Vision Corporate and CooperVision, Inc., incorpedaby reference to Exhibit 99.1 of the Compan@urrent Report (
Form 8-K filed on December 21, 2012

10.33- Lease Contract dated as of November 6, 2003, bybatwleen The Puerto Rico Industrial Development Gamg an

Ocular Sciences Puerto Rico, Inc., incorporatedeligrence to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company's CurRepiort on Form 8-
K dated January 11, 2005
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10.34-

10.35-

10.36-

10.37-

10.38-

10.39-

10.40-

First Supplement and Amendment to Lease Contraetddas of December 30, 2003, by and between ThadPRe&c
Industrial Development Company and Ocular Sciefte=to Rico, Inc., incorporated by reference toikikii0.2 to th
Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated Janiar2005
Assignment of Lease Agreement dated as of Jun@@®}, by and among Ocular Sciences Puerto Rico, @xula
Sciences Cayman Islands Corporation and The PRé&toindustrial Development Company, incorporatgddferenc
to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company's Current ReporForm 8-K dated January 11, 2005

Credit Agreement Amendment, dated as of June 3@4,2@mong The Cooper Companies, Inc., Cooperv
International Holding Company, LP, the lenders ydhereto, and Keybank National Association, as iadtnative
agent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.thefCompany’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed/Jul 2014

Term Loan Agreement, dated as of June 30, 2014ngribe Cooper Companies, Inc., the lenders padseth, an
Keybank National Association, as administrative rdgéncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of Bompanyg
Current Report on Form-& filed July 1, 2014

Term Loan Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2014nanThe Cooper Companies, Inc., the lenders phestd, an
Keybank National Association, as administrative rdgéncorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of Wiompanyg
Current Report on Form-& filed August 6, 2014

Term Loan Amendment No. 2, dated as of August 442@mong The Cooper Companies, Inc. the lendetg teeretc
and Keybank National Association, as administratigent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 13.the Companye
Current Report on Form-& filed August 6, 2014
Credit Agreement, dated as of January 12, 2011,ngnihe Cooper Companies, Inc., CooperVision Int#wnal
Holding Company LP, the lenders from time to tinaaty thereto, KeyBank National Association, as akoonner,
lead arranger, and sole administrative agent, sWitgglender and LC issuer, J.P. Morgan Securitie€, as a lea
arranger, bookrunner and syndication agent, Citigré&slobal Markets Inc., as a lead arranger, boaleuran
syndication agent, Bank of America, N.A., as a lagdnger and documentation agent, and Wells Faamd, Natione
Association, as lead arranger and documentationtageorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 te thompany
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed March 4, 2011

10.41Amendment No. 1 to Credit Agreement, dated as of i@, 2012, among The Cooper Companies, Inc., Gdtigien

10.42 -

10.43-

International Holding Company, LP, the lenders ydhereto and KeyBank National Association, as aistriative
agent, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.theoCompany's Current Report on Form 8-K dated Blgy2012
Amendment No. 2 to Credit Agreement, dated as qit®eber 12, 2013, among The Cooper Companies,
CooperVision International Holding Company, LP, fleaders party thereto and KeyBank National Asgmria a
administrative agent, incorporated by referenc&xhibit 10.2 to the Company's Current Report onnF&K datec
September 17, 2013

The Cooper Companies, Inc. 2013 Incentive PayrR&n, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16%.the Company
Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 4, 2013
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10.44 The Cooper Companies, Inc. 2014 Incentive Payméart, Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 fvé Company

10.45-

10.46 -

110 -

21
23
31.1
31.2
32.1
32.2
101

Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 16, 2013

Form of Long Term Performance Share Award Agrent Pursuant to the 2007 Longrm Incentive Plan of The Cooj

Companies, Inc., incorporated by reference to Hikfihl of the Company's Current Report on ForrK 8atec

February 13, 2009

Term loan agreement, dated as of September 12, a@idhg The Cooper Companies, Inc., the lendetyg thareto, an

KeyBank National Association, as Administrative Ageincorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 te thompany

Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 17, 2013

Calculation of earnings per shar

Subsidiaries

Consent and Report on Schedule of Independegistered Public Accounting Firm

Certification of the Chief Executive ©@#r, pursuant to Rule 1384(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 19:¢

Certification of the Chief Financial @#r pursuant to Rule 13b4(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 19:

Certification of the Chief Executive Officemigguant to 18 U.S.C. Section 135

Certification of the Chief Financial Officerygsuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 135

The following materials from the Company's AahReport on Form 1B- for the year ended October 31, 2(
formatted in Extensible Business Reporting Langua@®RL); (i) Consolidated Statements of Income tioe year
ended October 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, (ii) Codatdd Statements of Comprehensive Income for thesyande
October 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, (iii) Consolid&athnce Sheets at October 31, 2014 and 2013C@wasolidate
Statements of Stockholders' Equity for the yeardednOctober 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, (v) Conselt
Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended Oc®&he2014, 2013 and 2012, (vi) related notes twsobidate:
financial statements and (vii) Schedule Il Valuatamd Qualifying Accounts.

(@) The agreement received confidential treatment fitoenSecurities and Exchange Commission with respeotrtain portior

of this exhibit. Omitted portions have been filegharately with the Commission.

(b) The information required in this exhibit is proviim Note 7, Earnings Per Share, in this re
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Exhibit 10.4

CHANGE IN CONTROL AGREEMENT
THIS CHANGE IN CONTROL AGREEMENT (this "Agreement'flated as of June 8, 2007, is made by and betieeiCooper
Companies, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the "Comidaand Daniel G. McBride ("Executive").
WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Executive is a senior executive of the @any or its subsidiaries and has made and is esghéctcontinue to make major
contributions to the short- and long-term profitii growth and financial strength of the Company;

WHEREAS, the Company recognizes that, as is the fmasmost publicly held companies, the possibititya Change in Control exists;

WHEREAS, the Company desires to assure itself difi ppesent and future continuity of management desires to establish cert
severance benefits for Executive, applicable inetfent of a Change in Control;

WHEREAS, the Company wishes to ensure that Exegusinot practically disabled from discharging disher duties in respect o
proposed or actual transaction involving a Changeéadntrol;

WHEREAS, the Company desires to provide additiomdlicement for the Executive to continue to reniaithe employ of the
Company or its subsidiaries; and

WHEREAS, on May 21, 2007 the Organization and Campgon Committee of the Board authorized the Campa enter into this
Agreement pursuant to the Company's Change in Gldd&verance Plan.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Company and Executive agrdelkmsvs:

I. Certain Defined Terms. In addition to terms defi elsewhere herein, the following terms havddhewing meanings when used in
this Agreement with initial capital letters:

(a) "Base Pay" means Executive's annual base sal@wasdh effect from time to tinr
(b) "Board" means the Board of Directors of the Com[.
(c) "Cause" means (i) Executive's conviction of, orapdé nolo contendre to, a felony

(i) gross misconduct injurious to the Company andhy of its subsidiaries, as determined in g@iit by the Board, and which has not b
remedied by the Executive within ten days aftettemi notice thereof to Executive by the Board.




Notwithstanding the foregoing, Executive shall hetdeemed to have been terminated for "Cause"” (idabove unless and until there shall
have been delivered to the Executive a copy otalugion duly adopted by the affirmative vote ot fess than a majority of the Board thet
office at a meeting of the Board called and heldstach purpose, after reasonable notice to theEixecand an opportunity for the Executi
together with the Executive's counsel (if the Eximeuchooses to have counsel present at such rmggetiinbe heard before the Board, finding
that, in the good faith opinion of the Board, thesEutive had committed an act constituting "Cawse! specifying the particulars thereof in
detail. Nothing herein will limit the right of thExecutive or his beneficiaries to contest the wlidr propriety of any such determination.

(d) "Change in Control" means the occurrence of artheffollowing event:

(i) The acquisition by any individual, entity oragip (within the meaning of section 13(d)(3) or )42yl of the Exchange Act) (a
"Person") of beneficial ownership (within the maanof Rule 13d-3 promulgated under the Exchangé éfc50% or more of the combined
voting power of the then outstanding Voting Sto€khe Company;

(i) consummation of a reorganization, merger or codatitin, a sale or other disposition of all or sahsally all of the assets |
the Company, or other transaction (each, a "Busi@@snbination™), unless, in each case, immedidtdligwing such Business Combination,
(A) all or substantially all of the individuals aedtities who were the beneficial owners of VotBigck of the Company immediately prior to
such Business Combination beneficially own, diseotl indirectly, more than 50% of the combined mgtpower of the then outstanding
shares of Voting Stock of the entity resulting freath Business Combination (including, without tation, an entity which as a result of
such transaction owns the Company or all or subiathrall of the Company's assets either directifhrough one or more subsidiaries) in
substantially the same proportions relative to egtblr as their ownership, immediately prior totsBusiness Combination, of the Voting
Stock of the Company and (B) no Person benefic@alys, directly or indirectly, 50% or more of thenebined voting power of the then
outstanding shares of Voting Stock of the entiguieng from such Business Combination; or

(iii) The Company stockholders approve a plan ahpkete liquidation or dissolution of the Company.
(e) "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 198&mesdec
® "Employee Benefits" means any group health éewttal benefit plans; provided, however, that EmpgéoBenefits shall not
include contributions made by the Company or itssgliaries to any retirement plan, pension plaprofit sharing plan for the benefit of the

Executive in connection with amounts earned byBkecutive.

(g) "Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange A&B8#, as amende




(h)"Good Reason" means that the Executive (withouEtkecutive's written conser

@ Has, except in connection with termination ofdoyment for Cause or due to death or disabiditiffered a material and
substantial diminution in Executive’s job respoiigibs as in effect immediately prior to the pubfinnouncement of the Change in Control,
excluding for this purpose an isolated and inadveraction by the Company or its subsidiaries sm@essor entity not taken in bad faith and
which is remedied by the Company or its subsidsapiesuccessor entity within ten days after recgfiptotice thereof given by the Executive
and further provided that neither mere changesléand/or reporting relationship nor reassignnfelibwing a Change in Control to a

position that is similar to the position held imradly prior to the Change in Control shall congsta material and substantial diminution in
job responsibilities.

(i) Has incurred one or more material reductions irohiser Base Pay;

(iii) Has been notified that his or her principége of work will be relocated to a new locatioattls 35 miles or more from
Executive's principal work location as of immedinteefore the Change in Control; or

(iv) Has experienced a material breach by the Campa by its successor entity of its obligation€tecutive under this
Agreement.

Before "Good Reason" has been deemed to have edglirrkecutive must give the Company written natiewiling why the
Executive believes a Good Reason event has occangduch notice must be provided to the Compattyimsixty days of the initial
occurrence of such alleged Good Reason event(e)Cbmpany shall then have thirty days after itgiggmf written notice to cure the items
cited in the written notice so that "Good Reasoill'lvave not formally occurred with respect to #aeent(s) in question.

(i) "Voting Stock" means securities entitledvtute generally in the election of Board members.

2. Termination Following (or in connection with)Cdhange in Control. In the event that in the 12 rsribllowing the consummation of
a Change in Control, the employment of Executiveitiser terminated by the Company or it subsidfafoe any reason other than Cause,
death or disability or is terminated by Executive Good Reason then the following subsectionsi;m3lection 2 shall occur:

(a) Subject to the effectiveness of the releasdaifns and covenant not to sue referenced in Se2{ig) below, the Company shall
pay to Executive cash in 24 monthly installmentghwiach installment equal to one-twelfth (1/12thBase Pay (at the rate in effect at the
time of employment termination), commencing on efolbe the tenth business day following the effemtiss of such release. However, in
event that payment of such installments would ekfgast the last day of the second year followirggyhar Executive "separates from ser




within the meaning of Section 409A of the InterRalvenue Code (the "409A Period"), the total amadfisuch installments shall instead be
reamortized and payable in equal monthly instalimerer the 409A Period. Notwithstanding the foiagpif Executive is deemed at the
time of separation from service to be a "specifiedfiployee under Section 409A of the Internal Reeagbade (the "Code"), to the extent that
the total amount of Executive's installment payraamtd any other "separation pay" hereunder (witiérmeaning of Treasury Regulation
section 1.409A-I(b)(9)(iii)) exceeds the dollardishold set forth in such regulation section, thenamount over such threshold shall not be
paid until the (i) expiration of the six (8)onth period measured from the date of Executisgparation from service" or (ii) such earlier ti
permitted under Section 409A of the Code. Suchrdafshall only be effected to the extent requit@dvoid adverse tax treatment to
Executive, including (without limitation) the adidibhal twenty percent (20%) tax for which Executweuld otherwise be liable under Section
409A of the Code in the absence of such defergabrthe expiration of the applicable deferral pgriany compensation or benefits which
would have otherwise been paid during that penigaether in a single sum or in installments) in dabsence of such deferral shall be paid in
one lump sum.

(b)  For the 24 month period following such termioaf the Company shall continue to provide to Exieeuall Employee Benefits
which were received by, or with respect to, Exaeutis of the date of such termination, at the saxpense to Executive as before the Ch
in Control subject to immediate cessation (othanths to any pre-existing condition not coverethisynew benefits coverage) if Executive is
offered employee benefits coverage in connectiagh méw employment. Through the 24 months followingcutive's termination of
employment, Executive shall provide advance writietice to the Company informing the Company whenExecutive is offered or
becomes eligible for other employee benefits imeation with new employment. In addition, if perically requested by the Company
during the 24 months after termination of Execusivemployment, the Executive will provide the Compaith written confirmation that
he/she has not been offered other employee benefits

(c) The Company or its subsidiaries shall pay Etieelwa pro-rata share (based on the number of rsdixtlecutive served as an
executive of the Company or its subsidiaries dutiregfiscal year of Executive's termination of eayphent) of annual incentive award
payments, if any, due to Executive under the tesfriie Company's or its subsidiaries' annual ingergayment plan. Any amounts payable
to Executive under this Section 2(c) will be paidEixecutive at the same time payments are madihéo participants under the Company"
its subsidiaries' annual incentive payment plan.

(d)  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in aagtricted stock, stock option or other equity pemsation plan or agreement or
deferred compensation or retirement plan or agregmeon the date of his/her termination the Exieeuthall become immediately fully
vested (and all vesting restrictions removed) imfhis/her then outstanding stock options, stapgreciation rights, warrants, restricted
stock, phantom stock, deferred compensation, reéirg agreement or similar plans or agreementstié#fCompany or its subsidiaries.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, any award 1hat isjsct to a performance condition will vest onlythe extent the performance condition has
been satisfied on or prior to the date of termorati




(e) As of his/her termination date, Executive shib be paid for his/her accrued but unpaid salad/vacation, unreimbursed
valid business expenses that were submitted inrdanoe with the policies of the Company or its #libsies; and is eligible for other vested
benefits pursuant to the terms of any employeefligrian.

) In the event that it is determined that anympawnt or distribution of any type to or for the bféhef the Executive made by the
Company, by any of its subsidiaries, by any pexgba acquires ownership or effective control of @@mpany or ownership of a substantial
portion of the Company's assets (within the meanifrgection 280G of the Code, and the regulatibesetunder or by any affiliate of such
person, whether paid or payable or distributedistridutable pursuant to the terms of this Agreenwerotherwise (the "Total Payments"),
would be subject to the excise tax imposed by seetbD99 of the Code or any interest or penaltiéls veéispect to such excise tax (such excise
tax, together with any such interest or penalties,collectively referred to as the "Excise Taiign such payments or distributions shall be
payable either in (x) full or (y) as to such lesaerount which would result in no portion of suclyp&nts or distributions being subject to the
Excise Tax and Executive shall receive the greategn after-tax basis, of (x) or (y) above. Allthrematical determinations and all
determinations of whether any of the Total Paymargs'parachute payments" (within the meaning ofise 280G of the Code) that are
required to be made under this Section 2(f), di@linade by a nationally recognized independent &urdi not currently retained by the
Company most recently prior to the Change in Caifthe "Accountants"), who shall provide their deténation, together with detailed
supporting calculations regarding the amount of i@hgvant matters, both to the Company and to deeiive within seven (7) business days
of the Executive's termination date, if applicaloiesuch earlier time as is requested by the Cosnpan
Such determination shall be made by the Accountasitsy reasonable good faith interpretations of@bde. Any determination by the
Accountants shall be binding upon the Company hadeixecutive, absent manifest error. The Compaal} ghy the fees and costs of the
Accountants which are incurred in connection whtis Section 2(f).

(@) All payments and benefits provided undes ®éction 2 are conditioned on and subject to #eelive's continuing compliance
with this Agreement and the Executive's timely exen (and effectiveness) of a reasonable and metprelease of claims and covenant not
to sue in a form prescribed by the Company orubsiliaries upon termination of employment. Theraa entittement to any payments or
benefits unless and until such and release of slainal covenant not to sue is effective.

(h) To the extent Executive receives severansinalar payments and/or benefits under any opiteen, program, agreement,
policy, practice, or the like of the Company ordtsbsidiaries, or under the WARN Act or similartstiaw, the payments and benefits due to
Executive under this Agreement will be correspoghljimeduced on a dollar-for-dollar basis (or vicerse).

(i) Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreerhshall also remain effective (and Executive shalkligible for payments and
benefits hereunder) if, during a period beginning 3




months immediately prior to a public announcemédrmmoimpending Change in Control that is actuatipsummated, the Company (or its
subsidiaries) terminates the Executive's employrfardany reason other than Cause, death or disabilithe Executive terminates his/her
employment for Good Reason and such terminatidetsrmined to be in connection with the Changeanttl. The Board shall determine
good faith whether such a termination is occurimgonnection with the impending Change in Contrdwever, such a termination shall in
any event be deemed to be in connection with arimdimg Change in Control if such termination (ijaguired by the merger agreement or
other instrument relating to such Change in Conto(ii) is made at the express request of thergblarty (or parties) to the transaction
constituting such Change in Control, or (iii) oceaiffter the public announcement of the impendingngk in Control.

3. Successors and Binding Agreement.

(@ The Company will require any successor (whedlirexct or indirect, by purchase, merger, constilixta reorganization or
otherwise) to all or substantially all of the biess or assets of the Company, by agreement indadrsubstance reasonably satisfactory t
Executive, expressly to assume and agree to petfiegreement in the same manner and to the sateat the Company would be
required to perform if no such succession had tgkace. This Agreement will be binding upon and@to the benefit of the Company and
any successor to the Company, including withoutt#ititon any persons acquiring directly or indirgdll or substantially all of the business
assets of the Company whether by purchase, megesplidation, reorganization or otherwise (anchssuccessor shall thereafter be deeme
the "Company" for the purposes of this Agreemdmni},will not otherwise be assignable, transferabldelegable by the Company.

(b)  This Agreement will inure to the benefit of admel enforceable by the Executive's personal ol legaesentatives, executors,
administrators, successors, heirs, distributeedeyadees.

(c) This Agreement is personal in nature and neitfi¢he parties hereto shall, without the consdrihe other, assign, transfer or
delegate this Agreement or any rights or obligatibareunder except as expressly provided in Sec8¢@) and 3(b). Without limiting the
generality or effect of the foregoing, the Execetiwright to receive payments hereunder will noagsgnable, transferable or delegable,
whether by pledge, creation of a security inter@sgtherwise, other than by a transfer by Exeelgiwill or by the laws of descent and
distribution and, in the event of any attemptedgasaent or transfer contrary to this Section 3{log Company shall have no liability to pay
any amount so attempted to be assigned, transferrdelegated.

4. No Retention Rights. This Agreement is noeerployment agreement and does not give the Exectiité right to be retained
the Company or its subsidiaries and the Executivees that he/she is an employee-at-will. The Compgar its subsidiaries) reserves the
right to terminate the Executive's service as apleyee at any time and for any reason.




5. Notices. For all purposes of this Agreematittommunications, including without limitation ti@es, consents, requests or
approvals, required or permitted to be given hedeumwill be in writing and will be deemed to hawesel duly given when hand delivered or
dispatched by electronic facsimile transmissiorti{weceipt thereof orally confirmed), or five busés days after having been mailed by
United States registered or certified mail, retieceipt requested, postage prepaid, or three sssategys after having been sent by a natiol
recognized overnight courier service such as FedlPg, or DHL, addressed to the Company (to thatidte of the Secretary of the
Company) at its principal executive office andtie Executive
at her principal residence, or to such other addassany party may have furnished to the otheriting and in accordance herewith, except
that notices of changes of address shall be effectily upon receipt.

6. Validity. If any provision of this Agreemeaot the application of any provision hereof to amygon or circumstances is held
invalid, unenforceable or otherwise illegal, theneénder of this Agreement and the application @hsprovision to any other person or
circumstances will not be affected, and the provisio held to be invalid, unenforceable or othemillegal will be reformed to the extent
(and only to the extent) necessary to make it eefle, valid or legal.

7. Arbitration; Governing Law. Any dispute beevethe parties under this Agreement shall be resolexcept as provided below)
in Pleasanton, California through informal arbiwatby an arbitrator selected under the rules efAmerican Arbitration Association and the
arbitration shall be conducted in that locationemithe rules of said Association. The arbitrat@lldmave the right only to interpret and apply
the provisions of this Agreement and may not chatsgerovisions. The arbitrator shall permit reasole prehearing discovery of facts, to
extent necessary to establish a claim or a defenselaim, subject to supervision by the arbitralide determination of the arbitrator shall
conclusive and binding upon the parties and judgrapan the same may be entered in any court hguiggliction thereof. The arbitrator
shall give written notice to the parties stating @i their determination and shall furnish to epatty a signed copy of such determination. To
the extent required by applicable law, the expen$ése arbitration shall be borne by the Compantlyerwise the arbitration expenses sha
borne equally by the Company and the Executiveggixthat each party shall be responsible for i legal fees and expenses). The
validity, interpretation, construction and performa of this Agreement shall be governed by the lafithe State of California without regard
to the conflicts of laws principles thereof.

8. Miscellaneous. No provision of this Agreemeraty be modified, waived or discharged unless suailier, modification or
discharge is agreed to in writing signed by thedtxige and the Company. No waiver by either pagseto at any time of any breach by the
other party hereto or compliance with any conditiorprovision of this Agreement to be performedsiigh other party will be deemed a
waiver of similar or dissimilar provisions or cotidins at the same or at any prior or subsequert tirhis Agreement constitutes the entire
agreement of the parties with respect to the subjatter hereof and supersedes any and all prieeagents of the parties with respect to ¢
subject matter. No agreements or representatioasppotherwise, expressed or implied with respe¢he subject matter hereof have been
made by either party




which are not set forth expressly in this AgreemBaferences to Sections are to references todBsatif this Agreement.

9. Counterparts. This Agreement may be exedatede or more counterparts, each of which shatldemed to be an original but
all of which together will constitute one and tleere agreement.

10. Section 409A. The Agreement is not inteniecbnstitute a "nonqualified deferred compensagiam” within the meaning of
section 409A of the Code. Notwithstanding the foirg, in the event this Agreement or any benefid pender this Agreement to Executive
deemed to be subject to section 409A of the IntdReaenue Code, the Executive consents to the Coygpadoption of such conforming
amendments as the Company deems advisable or apgeansts sole discretion, to comply with sectédOA of the Code (including without
limit delaying the timing of payments.

11. Withholding. All payments and benefits madeer this Agreement shall be subject to redudtiareflect any withholding
taxes or other amounts required by applicable lavegulation.

12. Restrictive Covenants.

€) Nondisparagement. Each party hereto will ngpaiage the other party or, in the case of the @ampts directors, officers,
employees, affiliates, subsidiaries, predecessarg,essors or assigns in any written or oral conications to any third party. Each party
further agrees that he/she/it will not direct angyém make any disparaging oral or written remaokarty third parties.

(b) Nonsolicit. During the Executive's employmerithaCompany or its subsidiaries and for twelve nherafter Executive's
termination of employment, the Executive shall mlirtectly or indirectly, either as an individual @ an employee, agent, consultant, adviso
independent contractor, general partner, officeectbr, stockholder, investor, lender, or in atlyaucapacity whatsoever, of any person, fi
corporation or partnership: (i) solicit, induce¢mdt or. encourage any of the Company's or itsilidries' employees or consultants to
terminate their relationship with the Company ersitibsidiaries, or attempt to solicit, induce, uécencourage any of the Company's or its
subsidiaries' employees or consultants to termitinetie relationship with the Company or its subsitlis, or attempt to solicit, induce, recruit,
encourage or take away employees or consultarited€ompany or its subsidiaries or (ii) attemphégatively influence any of the
Company's or its subsidiaries' clients or custorfrersa purchasing the Company's or its subsidiapesiucts or services or to solicit or
influence or attempt to influence any client, cuséo or other person either directly or indirecttydirect his or its purchase of products ar
services to any person, firm, corporation, instituior other entity in competition with the busises the Company or its subsidiaries or (iii)
participate or engage in the design, developmeatufacture, production, marketing, sale or sergighany product, or the provision of any
service, that directly or indirectly relates to thempany's or its subsidiaries' business as coadunt the date of the Executive's termination
of employment.




(¢) Nondisclosure. Notwithstanding any requiretrtéat the Company, or its
subsidiaries may have to publicly disclose the gafithis Agreement pursuant to applicable lawegufations, the Executive agrees to use
reasonable efforts to maintain in confidence thisterce of this Agreement, the contents and teffrtisi®Agreement, and the consideration for
this Agreement (hereinafter collectively referrechs "Agreement Information™). The Executive algeeas to take every reasonable precautio
to prevent disclosure of any Agreement Informatimthird parties, except for disclosures requirgdalv or absolutely necessary with respect
to Executive's family members or personal advisdre shall also agree to maintain confidentialityted Agreement Information.

(d) Confidentiality. Executive shall not, excestrequired by any court or administrative agengthout the written consent of the
Board or a person authorized thereby, disclos@ygarson, other than an employee of the Compaiitg subsidiaries or a person to whom
disclosure is reasonably necessary or appropriaterinection with the performance by the Execubivkis duties to the Company or its
subsidiaries, any confidential information obtairgchim while in the employ of the Company or itdbsidiaries with respect to any of the
Company's or its subsidiaries' inventions, processgestomers, methods of distribution, methods afimfiacturing, attorney-client
communications, pending or contemplated acquistiother trade secrets, or any other material wiielCompany or its subsidiaries are
obliged to keep confidential pursuant to any cosfitihlity agreement or protective order; providaeokvever, that confidential information sk
not include any information now known or which bews known generally to the public (other than essalt of an unauthorized disclosure
the Executive) or any information of a type notesthise considered confidential by a person engag#te same business or a business sit
to that conducted by the Company or its subsidiarie

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused thieAment to be duly executed and delivered as addbefirst above written.

THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC.

/s/ Robert S. Weiss
Robert S. Weiss
Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Office

Executive:

/s/ Daniel G. McBride
Daniel G. McBride




SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC.

A DELAWARE CORPORATION

NAME INCORPORATION
THE COOPER COMPANIES, INC. Delaware

CooperVision, Inc. New York
TCC Holdings S.a.r.l. Luxembourg
The Cooper Companies Global Holdings LP  England-Wales
CooperVision International Holding Company, LP  England
CooperVision do Brasil Ltda®  Brazil
CooperVision Caribbean Corp. Cayman Islands
CooperVision (UK) Holdings Ltd. United Kingdom
CooperVision Ltd. United Kingdom
CooperVision Manufacturing Limited England-Wales
CooperVision Australia Pty Limited Australia
CooperVision Distribution SPRL  Belgium
CooperVision Canada Corp. Canada
CooperVision GmbH Germany
CooperVision Italia srl  Italy
CooperVision Nederland, Belgian Branch Belgium
CooperVision Holdings Japan KK Japan
CooperVision Japan, Inc. Japan
Coopervision S.A. (Pty) Limited South Africa
Sauflon Pharmaceuticals Ltd. United Kingdom
Origio A/S Denmark

Cooper Medical, Inc. Delaware
CooperSurgical, Inc. Delaware
Origio, Inc. Virginia

Each subsidiary is wholly-owned either by The Cooper Companies, Inc. or by the wholly-owned subsidiary under which it is indented in the list above.

JURISDICTION OF

Exhibit 21



Exhibit 23

Consent of Independent Reqistered Public Accourking

The Board of Directors
The Cooper Companies, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference inréggstration statements (Nos. 322417, 333-108066, 333-25051, 333639
333-34206, 333-40431, 333-48152, and 333-80799fr@m S-3 and registration statements (Nos. 333-4,0993-58839, 333-
174682, 333-67954, 333-101366, 333-104346, 333-20,5533-133719, 333-133720, 333-14338, and 3339588n Form B
of The Cooper Companies, Inc. and subsidiaries @Gbmpany) of our report dated December 19, 2014 véspect to tt
consolidated balance sheets of the Company astob@c31, 2014 and 2013, and the related consetidstatements of incon
comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, anti dasvs for each of the years in the thygar period ended October 31, 2(
and the related financial statement schedule, hacetfectiveness of internal control over finanargborting as of October
2014, which report appears in the October 31, 20fvual report on Form & of the Company.

Our report dated December 19, 2014, on the effeéiss of internal control over financial reporteng of October 31, 201
contains an explanatory paragraph that states tmp&ny acquired Sauflon Pharmaceuticals LimitedAagust 6, 2014, ar
management excluded from its assessment of thetigfaess of the Comparsyinternal control over financial reporting a:
October 31, 2014, Sauflon Pharmaceuticals Lim#tadternal control over financial reporting whiokpresented 3% and 3C
respectively, of total net sales and total assktiseorelated consolidated financial statement amwaf the Company as of and
the year ended October 31, 2014. Our audit of madezontrol over financial reporting of the Compaaigo excluded an evaluat
of the internal control over financial reporting®duflon Pharmaceuticals Limited.

/s| KPMG LLP
San Francisco, California

December 19, 2014



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13a -14(a)/15d14(a)
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Robert S. Weiss, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKhe Cooper Companies, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anar¢ responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defin
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financiglaing, or caused such internal control over fahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrali$slosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proces] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig's internal control over financial reportifgit occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant's internal wohover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer angalve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatiiotiernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit commitifiethe registrant's board of directors (or pesgeerforming the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrsaability to record, process, summarize and rtefraincial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: December 19, 2014
/s/ Robert S. Weiss
Robert S. Weiss

President and
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT RULE 13a -14(a)/15d14(a)
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Gregory W. Matz, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fKhe Cooper Companies, Inc. (the “registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dméttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegos presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defin
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresused such disclosure controls and procedoites designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly duriig toeriod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigloiting, or caused such internal control over faahreporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrati$slosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid's internal control over financial reportifgit occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant's internal wohover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer andhlve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant's auditors and the audit commitfethe registrant's board of directors (or pesguerforming the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal comvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and rtefpwaincial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaweanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: December 19, 2014
/sl Gregory W. Matz
Gregory W. Matz

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Chief Risk Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Robert S. Weiss, do hereby certify, pursuant&U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant taoc8e@06 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

» the Annual Report on Form X0-of the Company for the fiscal year ended Octdier2014, as filed with the Securities
Exchange Commission (the “Reportfully complies with the requirements of Section d36r 15(d) of the Securiti
Exchange Act of 1934; and

* the information contained in the Report fairly pets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operatic
of the Company.

Date: December 19, 2014 /s/ Robert S. Weiss
Robert S. Weiss
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Gregory W. Matz, do hereby certify, pursuantlé® U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant taoBe@06 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, that, to my knowledge:

« the Annual Report on Form 10-of the Company for the annual period ended Oct@de 2014, as filed with the Securif
and Exchange Commission (the “Reporfilly complies with the requirements of Section d&36r 15(d) of the Securiti
Exchange Act of 1934; and

» the information contained in the Report fairly prets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operatic
of the Company.

Date: December 19, 2014 /sl Gregory W. Matz

Gregory W. Matz

Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Chief Risk Officer




